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COPY OF A PETITION
FROM
JAMES STUART, ESQUIRE,

TO HIS MAJESTY.

TO THE KING'S MOST EXCELLENT MAJESTY.

The humble Petition of James Stuart, of the City of Quebec, in the Province of
Lower Canada, Esquire,

SHEWETH,

That Your Majesty’s petitioner, in pursuance of a Mandamus in this behalf, was
appointed Attorney General of His late Majesty George the Fourth, for the Province of
Lower Canada, by Commission under the Great Seal of the said province, bearing date the
thirty-first day of January, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and
twenty-five, and, since Your Majesty’s accession, in pursuance of Your Majesty’s Man-
damus hath been appointed Your Majesty’s Attorney General for the said province, by a
like Commission, bearing date the eleventh day of December last.

That Your Majesty’s petitioner, from the period of his first appointment to the said
office, hath discharged the duties thereof, with unremitting assiduity, faithfully and
honestly; and his official conduct, in all particulars, has been not only unexceptionable,
but, he humbly presumes to believe, has been meritorious, and deserving of approbation.

That Your Majesty’s petitioner has, notwithstanding, experienced the mortification
of finding that his conduct has recently been misrepresented before a Committee of the
Assembly of Lower Canada, and that upon certain ex parte proceedings had in that
Assembly, an Address was adopted, in March last, to be laid at the foot of Your Majesty’s
throne, whereby the said Assembly prays that Your Majesty will be pleased to dismiss
your petitioner from the office of Attorney General for the said province, which he now
fills, and that Your Majesty will also be pleased henceforward not to grant to your
petitioner any place of trust whatever in the said province, upon the ground that your
petitioner hath been guilty of certain alledged offences set forth in the said Address.

While Your Majesty’s petitioner most respectfully entreats permission humbly to
represent to Y our Majesty, that the alledged offences whex:eof in the said. Ad.dress he is
declared to have been guilty, have not been committed by him, and that he is alike guiltless
of the said offences, and of every other offence ; he begs leave also humbly to state, that he
has been thus declared guilty of the said alledged offences, without ever.havm.g been made
aware, except by the said Address, that such offences were imp_uted to'hxm, without having
been afforded any opportunity of answering or disproving the imputation of such offences,
and without, previously to the said Address, having in any manner been privy to, or made
acquainted with the proceedings of the Assembly of Lower Canada, on which the said
Address has been grounded, or with any proceedings that could lead to such a result.—In
a word, Your Majesty’s petitioner has thus been convicted, by the mere authority of the
Assembly of Lower Canada, of the said alledged offences, of which he is wholly guiltless,
upon ex parte proceedings, to which he has been an entire stranger, without any opportunity
for defence or justification, or hearing of any kind ; and, upon this conviction, the punishment
and disgrace of your petitioner are, by the said Address, prayed for.

Under the excellent Constitution and Laws of this Country, of which Lowe}' Qanada,
happily for its inhabitants, continues to be a dependence, no violation of the principles of
natural justice, in the exercise of authority, is permitted, or can be apprehended.— From this
consideration, as well as from the well-known justice of Your Majesty, your petitioner is
persuaded that the infliction of punishment, for imputed offences, will never take place, under
Your Majesty’s wise and just Government, without allowing to the person accused an op-

portunity for self-defence and justification.
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Being entirely guiltless of the alledged offences of which, by the Assembly of Lower
Canada, he has been declared to be guilty as above mentioned, Your Majesty’s petitioner
humbly, but confidently, claims the protection of Your Majesty’s justice, that he may not,
for these imputed offences, be punished and disgraced, unheard.

Wherefore Y our Majesty’s petitioner most respectfully prays, that Your Majesty will be
graciously pleased to afford him an opportunity of establishing that the offences specified in
the said Address of the Assembly of Lower Canada have been untruly imputed to him,
and that he is guiltless thereof; and that Your Majesty will also be graciously pleased to
grant him such other relief in the premises, as Your Majesty, in your wisdom and justice,
may deem fit and proper. And, as in duty bound, Your Majesty’s petitioner will ever
pray, &c.

(Signed) J. STUART.

London, 46, Albemarle-Street,
6th August, 1831,



MEMOIR,
o,
STATEMENT IN EXPLANATION AND SUPPORT
OF TIIE
PETITION OF JAMES STUART, ESQ.
TO HIS MAJESTY.

THE petitioner, by his petition, appeals to the justice of His Majesty for protection in
the ofﬁge of his Attorney General for the Province of Lower Canada, and that he may not
be punished and disgraced for offences imputed to him by the Assembly of that province,
without an opportunity previously afforded to him for self-defence and justification.—In
the upright and faithful discharge of the duties of his office, it became incumbent on the
petitioner, in the years 1827 and 1828, to institute certain criminal prosecutions, which are
to be considered as having furnished motives for, and as being the immediate cause, of the
proceedings adopted against him by the Assembly of Lower Canada.— These prosecutions,
at the time they were instituted, were of urgent necessity to enforce respect for the laws
and constituted authorities of the country, and to maintain peace and good order.-- They
consisted in indictments for seditious libels; for aggravated riots, accompanied by acts of
violence against persons in authority ; and for perjury. Three of these indictments were
broyght to trial, at Montreal, in March Term, 1830. ~ One of them being for a riot at an
election held at that place, for the election of two members to serve in the Provincial
Assembly, and for assaulting and beating the Returning Officer, while employed in the
execution of his office, and the other two for perjury.—It was immediately after these trials,
and during the cxcitement they produced in the political party to which the defendants
belonged, that a petition to the House of Assembly was put into circulation, for signatures,
complaining of the conduct of the petitioner, in relation to criminal persecutions. This
petition was signed, exclusively, by the partisans and adherents of the same political party,
in subservience to whose views the principal offences which had been made the subjects of
indictment were committed ; and the signatures to it were, for the most part, those of the
persons accused, and of their attornies, counsel, and friends. According to parliamentary
usage, the petition became extinct with the Provincial Parliament in which it was presented,
which expired a few months after. A new Parliament met in January last, and earlyin the
session, General Committees were appointed, as is usual; and, among these, a standing
Committec of Grievances —To this Committee, composed entirely of persons belonging to
the same political party, of which some of them were prominent members, and all of whom,
from political animosity or personal resentment, were known to be hostile to the petitioner,
the petition already mentioned, to a former Parliament, without any renewal of complaint
on the part of the petitioners, and without any complaint whatever to the existing Parliament,
was referred ; and, it would appear, was ostensibly made the feundation of the proc.eedmgs
which are now brought under the consideration of His Majesty.—To these proceedings the
petitioner was an entire stranger, no intimation having been given to him that his conduct
was the subject of complaint or investigation—no explanations or defence having been re-
quired from him—and no participation in or privity to them having been afforded him.
With the result; only, of these proceedings the petitioner was madeacquainted, which he learnt
was an address to the Governor of the province to suspend him, and an address to His
Majesty to dismiss him from the office of At!:orney Gener.al, and thenceforward not to grant
him any place of trust whatever in the province. To this latter address, the petition, now
most humbly submitted to His Majesty, relates.

To avert the injustice which would be accomplished, if the address of the Assembly
were acceded to, and rescue his character from unmerited imputations, the petitioner
has left the country of his abode, his business and pursuits, that he might in person pre-
sent and sustain his petition for redress. He seeks justice on the facts of the case, without
regard to a want of jurisdiction in the Assembly, to technical objections, or irregularity
and insufficiency in the proceedings adopted against him; and, if he notices these par-
ticulars, it is that he may not appear to have been unaware of them, and of the considera-
tions of law and public policy which they suggest. While he adverts briefly to the
latter topics, he purposes, in support of his petition, most distinctly to establish that his
conduct in the matters referred to by the Assembly in their address, has been not only unex-
ceptionable, but meritorious, and that no cause whatever has been afforded for the in-
fliction of the punishment, with which the Assembly has sought unjustly to visit him, un-
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The punishment of the petitioner is prayed for by the Assembly, on the ground of the
following alledged or supposed offences, whereof they represent him to have been guilty.

1st. Because he has abused the power with which he has been invested, as such
Attorney General, so as to betray the confidence and trust‘wlth which His 1_\IaJes§y hqs
honoured him, and that he has, by the serious oﬂ"_ences,‘ \\'hl?ll he has committed in his
high office, rendered himself totally unworthy of His Majesty's future confidence.

2dly. Because the said James Stuart, Iisquire, Attorney General of this province, by
persisting in prosecuting, before the Superior Tribunals, persons accused of minor offences,
which ought to have been prosecuted at the Quarter Sessions of the Peace, has been
guilty of malversation in office, and this with the sordid view of increasing his emoluments.

3dly. Because the said James Stuart, Esquire, Attorney General of this province, in
order to show his attachment to the Executive Government of the day, has been guilty of
partiality and persecution in the execution of the duties of his office, by instituting libel
prosecutions, unjust and ill-founded, against divers persons, and has thereby rendered
himself unworthy of the confidence of His Majesty’s subjects in this province.

4thly. Because the said James Stuart, Esquire, Attorney General of this province, by
making, at the election of Sorel, or borough of William-Henry, in the year one thousand
eight hundred and twenty-seven, where he was one of the candidates, use of threats and
acts of violence to intimidate some of the electors of the place, and by promising im-
punity to others, displayed his contempt of the freedom of election, and has infringed the
laws which protect it.

5thly. Because the said James Stuart, Esq., Attorney General of this Province, by
prosecuting for perjury certain electors of Sorel aforesaid, who had voted against him, and
by refusing or neglecting to prosecute others who were no better qualified, but who had
voted in his favour, was actuated by motives of personal revenge, which made him forget
his duty and the oath he has taken as his Majesty’s Attorney General in this Province,
and that it would be dangerous to continue to him powers of which he has made use in so
arbitrary and unjustifiable a manner.

Gthly. Because the said James Stuart, Esq., Attorney General of this Province, by
inducing, at the said election of Sorel, certain electors who were not qualified to take oaths
usual on such occasions, although he knew that those individuals were not qualified, has
been guilty of subornation of perjury.

Lastly. Because, by bis conduct for several years past the said James Stuart, Esq.,
Attorney General of this Province, has brought the administration of Criminal Justice in
this Province, into dishonour and contempt; and that he has been guilty of high crimes
and misdemeanors; that his conduct has utterly deprived him of the esteem and confidence
of the inhabitants of this Province; and that his continuing to occupy any place of trust
therein could not be otherwise than injurious to his Majesty’s Government in this Province.

Before proceeding to give a distinct answer in detail to the imputation of each of these
alledged offences, in succession, the petitioner will beg leave, succinctly, to notice considerations
which appear to him of the highest importance, in relation to the course of proceeding thus
adopted by the Assembly of Lower Canada, to the nature of some of the alledged offences,
and to the form in which all of them are charged upon the petitioner.

By its address to his Majesty, the House of Assembly, it appears to the petitioner,
has not exhibited charges of official misconduct against him, to which he is required to
furnish an answer, and on which a determination, after the requisite investigation, is sought.
But assuming to itself, it would seem, the power, on the ex parte statements of individuals
made in the absence of the party accused, in secret, and not under oath, of convicting a
public officer, not only of acts of official misconduct, but even of criminal offences, within
the exclusive jurisdiction of Courts of Law, the Assembly, by its address, prays for
the punishment of the petitioner, as on a conviction which has determined his guilt.
Under this view of the address, the Assembly has assumed the character and functions
of judge, as well as accuser, in vespect of the same accusations; it has converted itself
into a Court of Justice for criminal offences, cognizable by Courts of Law only; it has
exercised and blended in itself the functions of accuser and Court, of Grand an’d Petit
Jury, in respect of the same accusation, by declaring the petitioner guilty of the offence
of subornation of perjury; and of all the alledged offences, specified in the address, in-
cluding the offence last mentioned, it has convicted the petitioner, in his absence without
defence or hearing of any kind, on his part, upon the ex parte statements of individuals
examined in secret, not under oath, without cross-examination, or opportunity for cross-
examination on his part, and entirely irresponsible for the falsehoods by which they have
sought to injure him.—That such a course of proceeding involves an assumption of
unconstitutional and illegal powers on the part of the House of Assembly, and is, moreover.
repugnant to reason and justice, is too evident to require observation. It becomes, there-
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fore, as it appears to the petitioner, in his humble apprehension, a most important prelimi-
nary point for consideration, whether the Address of the Assembly does or does not possess
the character now ascribed to it. If this character do belong to it, a conclusive reason
would seem to be thence derived, that it should not be acted upon, but that the House of
Assembly should be left to exhibit against the petitioner, if so advised, any complaint or
accusation which it may be within its competence to prefer, in such form and manner as
may admit of an answer, investigation, and decision on it. This being, as the petitioner
believes, the first instance of the assumption of such powers by a Colonial Assembly, it would
seem to be most expedient, for the security of public officers throughout His Majesty’s
Colonies, and for the faithful, upright, and efficient administration of the authority of
government therein, that it should not be permitted to acquire the force of a precedent.
Indeed, with the exercise of such powers in prospect, as have been assumed by the Assembly
of Lower Canada, in this instance, honourable men, it could not be supposed, would enter
into the public service, the faithful and honest discharge of official duties could not be
expected, nor could colonial governments continue to subsist.

If, however, the address of the Assembily is to be considered, not as importing a convic-
tion of alledged offences, which appears to be its true character, but as the exhibition of
charges which the petitioner is called upon to answer, the nature of the charges as well as
the form in which they are conveyed, necessarily demands attention. The charges, the
petitioner humbly apprehends, must be such as it is competent to the Assembly to prefer,
and they ought to contain a sufficient specification of facts to admit of an answer.
Conceding to the Assembly the right of preferring complaints and accusations against
public officers who abuse the trust confided to them, these complaints and accusations,
the petitioner also apprehends, must be restricted to acts of official misconduct, and
cannot embrace offences cognizable by Courts of Law, in respect of which the Assembly
can exercise no jurisdiction whatever. Two of the offences specified in the address
are of the latter description,—acts of violence at an election, amounting, it is to be
presumed, to breaches of the peace, and subornation of perjury. For charging the
petitioner with these offences, the shadow of a cause, as will be presently shown, was
not afforded by him: but, if he had been guilty of these offences, he could only be made
amenable to justice for them, by indictment and trial in a Court of Law, in like manner as
all other His Majesty’s subjects in Lower Canada would be.—Instead, not only of enter-
taining jurisdiction of these offences, but actually convicting the petitioner of them, the fit
course to have been pursued by the Assembly, if sufficient cause for it had been laid before
them, would have been, the petitioner apprehends, by address to the Governor, to have
prayed that he would direct prosecutions for these offences to be instituted and carried on,
by one of the Law Officers of the Crown, in the competent tribunal, in due legal course.

In the charges of the Assembly, as in those proceeding from individuals, it would
seem to be indispensably necessary for the purposes of justice, that a sufficient degree of
particularity should be used to convey information to the person accused, of the specific
facts on which his criminality or culpability is predjcated. Without such a specification,
giving certainty to the charge, he cannot be apprized of the facts to be proved on the
one side, and disproved on the other, and cannot, t_herefore, be prepa'rgd to defend
himself. In all the alledged or supposed offences imputed to the petitioner, by the
address of the Assembly, he has reason to complain of the absence of any such specification,
from which the facts rendering him criminal, or culpable, cou]q be known. This will be
made apparent, by reference to the heads of offence, as stated in th.e _address. The first
and last heads of offence contained in the address being charged, it is to be presumed,
merely as inferences from those of a more specific nature, need not be adverted to, as
objectionable, on the ground of generality. Under the second head of offence, the
petitioner conceives it would have been fit and proper that a specification should have
been given of the particular prosecutigns which, it is alledge('l, ought to have been c-%'..-ne’d
on in the Quarter Sessions, and were improperly made cogmzable by the Court of lepg s
Bench. Under the third head of offence, a specification of 'tl?e several prosecutions which,
it is alledged, were unjust and unfounded, wo_uld, the petitioner apprehends, have been
necessary and proper, to enable him to answer it. Under the fourth head of oﬂ'epce, the
names of the electors who, it is alledged, were 1r}t11111d.5_tted .b}f threats and acts of v10]epcg,
and also the names of the individuals to whom impunity, it is alledged, was offered, it is
presumed, ought to have been introduced. Under the ﬁfth head of offence, the names of
the individuals charged with perjury, whom the Attorney General, it is alledged, re}f"used
or neglected to prosecute, it is humbly conceived, ought to have been specified. Under
the sixth head of offence, which is a disgraceful _mls@emeanor, 3nd3ctable at Commop Law,
and cognizable in His Majesty’s Courts of Justice, it was of mdlspens@ble necessity, not
only with a view to the adoption of any measures to be grounded on it, but in common
justice and fairness to the party accused, that the names of the persons who, it is sup-
posed, were suborned to commit perjury, should have been specified.

Upon this statement it is sufficiently plain, 'tl?at, if _the address of the Assembly is to be
considered as containing charges which the petitioner is palled upon to answer, tl}ere is an
absence of the requisite specification of facts, to ascertain the precise offences with which
he is charged, and to enable him to defend himself. But, however defective the address,
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vicwed as an exhibition of charges, may be, in this respect, and howcver considerable and un-
reasonable the disadvantages to which the petitioneris hereby subjected, it would, nevertheless,
ill comport with the consciousness of perfect innocence on his part, to abstain, on this ground,
from entering into a full justification of his conduct, as to all the matters referred to by the
Assembly.—To enable him to do so, and for the purpose of supplying the particulars which
are not to be found in the address of the Assembly, he must necessarily advert to a document
which, otherwise, he conceives it would be improper to notice, and ought to receive no
consideration. He refers to a report of the Committee of Grievances, which, in an address
of the Assembly to the Governor of the Province, on the twenty-sixth March last, is called,
‘“ A copy of the evidence received by the Committee of Grievances, on the subject of the
matters of complaint set forth in the petition of divers inhabitants of the City of Montreal,
complaining of the conduct of James Stuart, Esquire, Attorney General,” and which, by
that address, the Assembly prayed might be transmitted and laid at the foot of the throne.
—This document contains the ex parte statements of individuals, not under oath, examined
as witnesses before the Committee, in the absence of the petitioner, and without cross-ex-
amination, or opportunity for cross-examination, on his part,— and these statements are de-
nominated evidence. l'rom the description of persons examined before the Committee,
being, exclusively as to all the material points of evidence, individuals rendered inimical to
the petitioner, by the discharge of his public duties, and who were under feelings of resent-
ment and revenge towards him, and other strong motives urging to misrepresentation and
falsehood, as well as from the partial and mutilated manner in which these statements, it
would appear ¥, were received and reduced to writing, this document is liable to objections
peculiar to itself.—But the petitioner, at this moment, is desirous of noticing it, merely in
its general character, as containing cx parte statements of witnesses, to ground an accusa-
tion against a public officer. In this character, its office, the petitioner apprehends, is li-
mited to the purpose of accusation, it cannot constitute evidence for the purpose of conviction ;
it stands on the same footing as evidence taken befove a Grand Jury, though inferior in
degree to the latter, as not having been given under oath, but equally inadmissible to prove
guilt, as having been given in an ex parte proceeding, in the ahsence of the party accused,
and without any opportunity for cross-examination on his part.—In principle, therefore,
the petitioner deems it an incumbent duty to protest against this document, as containing no
admissible evidence to establish the truth of the charges of the Assembly. At the same
time, in the peculiar situation in which he is placed, and without any sufficient specification
of the imputed offences in the address, to enable him to answer and disprove the charges
of the Assembly, he is unavoidably compelled to refer to this document, to supply the facts
and circumstances that ascertain what the imputed offences really are ; while, for the purpose
of establishing his innocence, it is equally necessary to refer to it, in order to prove the
falsehood and insufficiency of the statements on which the address of the Assembly has
been grounded.

Availing himself therefore of this document, for both these purposes, he will now pro-
ceed to show, that the offences imputed to him in the address of the Assembly have not
been committed by him, and that no cause whatever has been afforded for the imputation
of them.

On the first head of offence, no observation is necessary, it being too general to admit
of any answer.

On the second head of offence, the petitioner will beg leave to remark that it is singular
that even, upon the slightest inquiry, it should have been supposed by the House of Assembly,
that there was cause for imputing offence or blame to the petitioner, “ for persisting in pro-
“ secuting (as it is alledged) before the superior tribunals, persons accused of minor offences,
¢ which ought to have been prosecuted at the Quarter Sessions of the Peace.” Persons
at all conversant with the constitution and proceedings of the Criminal Courts in Lower
Canada, are perfectly aware, that it has always been, and continues to be, the duty of the
Attorney General, to prosecute before the Superior Tribunal, as it is called by the Assembly
that is, before the Court of King’s Bench, such persons as are in custody charged with the
offences which, by the Assembly, are denominated “ minor offences.” This duty is derived
from the powers with which the Court of King's Bench is vested, and which it has always ex-
ercised. Under the system of judicature established in Lower Canada, a Court of King’s
Bench sits twice a year, in each of the districts of Quebec, Montreal, and Three Rivers, ﬁ)r
the trial of all crimes and criminal offences whatsoever. At these times, the Courts of King’s
Bench, in the several districts, execute the powers and perform the functions of Courts of
General Gaol Delivery, in which all persons being in custody are entitled ex debito  justitice, to
be prosecuted and tried. The Attorney General of Lower Canada always has been, and con-
tinues to be, charged with the duty of instituting and conducting criminal prosecutions before
the Courts of King’s Bench. Hence he becomes auxiliary to these Courts in the execution
of their office as Courts of General Gaol Delivery ; and it is alike incumbent on him to prose-
cute, as it is on the Courts themselves to entertain the prosecution of, all persons in custody for
criminal offences, whatever may be the nature of these offences, from the highest to the
lowest. It has becn, therefore, in execution of the law of the land, that the offences referred

¢ Vide affidavits of W' Green, Esquire, and A. Von Iffland, Esquire, Nos. 2 and 15 in Appendix, p.24. 42,
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to by the Assembly have been prosecuted in the Courts of King’s Bench, not only by the
petitioner, but by all his predecessors in office, without exception; and, as well before as
since the petitioner came into office, no term of these Courts has passed over, in which
prosecutions for the offences termed by the Assembly “ minor offences” have not been in.
stituted and carried on by the Attorney General, for the time being. The petitioner, there-
fore, has been convicted by the Assembly, of alledged ¢ malversation in office” for havine
done that which it was his bounden duty to do, and for the omission of which he would
have been really culpable; and to this supposed offence, consisting in the right and proper
discharge of public duty, it has pleased the Assembly, without any reason whatever,
gratuitously, to annex the imputation of a “sordid” motive.

The petitioner will now beg leave briefly to advert to the evidence on which it would
appear that the Assembly proceeded, in thus erroneously converting the discharge of an
important public duty into an offence. The principal witness examined on this head was «
Mr. Jacques Viger, Road Surveyor at Montreal. Among the number of criminal prosecu-
tions instituted by the petitioner, which the political party, whose enmity he thereby
incurred, has made a subject of complaint, were indictments against a Mr. Stanley Bagg,
for a nuisance, and against this Mr. Jacques Viger, as Road Surveyor, for non-feasance of
duty, in having neglected to abate the same nuisance, which, by the provisions of a statute,
as well as by the express orders of the magistrates, in special sessions, he was required to
abate.* These prosecutions, than which none more legal could be instituted, were loudly
clamoured against by Mr. Viger and his party, as an infringement of law and justice, and
the Court of Oyer and Terminer, in which the indictments were found, was represented
to the country, as having illegally and oppressively assumed a jurisdiction which did not
belong to it, by entertaining these indictments. Mr. Viger, who, in making this unfounded
clamour, was evidently very ill-informed respecting the jurisdiction and powers of a Court
of Oyer and Terminer, appears not to have been better informed respecting the duties of
the Attorney General of Lower Canada, though equally disposed to find fault with both ;
and it is not uncharitable to suppose, that, on this latter head, the feclings excited in his
mind by the indictments against Mr. Bagg and himselt may have contributed to blind his
judgment. His error in this instance, however, has become of much greater importance,
than the errors of a person moving in his sphere could be expected to acquire. In other
countries, the errors of a Road Surveyor, in plain matters of law and government, it is
not likely would be adopted, as the determination of a legislative assembly. In Lower
Canada it is otherwise : Mr. Viger is connected with the leaders in the House of Assembly,
and his error has become in effect, it would appear, through his representations, the
error of the Committee of Grievances, and, through that Committee, the error, also,
of the House of Assembly itself. Being a member of the Grand Jury, in March
term, 1830, Mr. Viger, it seems, became impressed with the belief that a number of
the Indictments laid before the Jury at that time were improperly brought before them,
and ought to have been prosecuted in the Quarter Sessions ;. he, theret'ore,. in a spirit of
zeal for the public interest, as he would intimate, took notes of all these Indlctments, that
he might be the better enabled, afterwards, to disclose what took place in the secrecy of
the Grand Jury room. The benefit of these notes he afforded to the Committee of
Grievances, and it is this supposed important disclosure of ‘Mr. Viger (mpgular to mention!)
which constitutes the principal evidence, on this head of supposed oﬂenqe.—Now, these
notes of Mr. Viger, however valuable they may have been deemed by him, so far from
establishing that, in preferring the Indictments in question, the petitioner acted improperly,
lead to a directly contrary conclusion; they demonstrate that it was his imperative duty to
prefer them. Mr. Viger furnishes a list and descrl_ptlon of Indictments, .\Vhlch he says
ought to have been prosecuted in the Qu?u-ter Sesmpns; and he thepg:e ’mfers, that the
Attorney General was culpable, in prosecuting them in the Court of King’s Bench. But
Mr. Viger, from ignorance or inadvertence, does not appear to have been aw,a're,’that the
duty of the Attorney General to prosecute these Indictments in the Court of King’s Bench
became more urgent, from the omission of the Clerk of the Peace to prefter similar In-
dictments in the Quarter Sessions; and he seems also not to have percelved.' that the
Attorney General could not be censur:'«lble for the neglect of that officer to do'lus duty.—
According to the statement of Mr. Viger, two Quarter Sessions of the Peace (in October,
1829, and January, 1830) had intervgned since the commitment of some, and one Quarter
Session of the Peace since the commitment of others, of the persons accusedz before In-
dictments were preferred against them, by the petitioner, in March, 1830. These
persons, therefore, according to Mr. Viger's own statement, had been detained in custody
for several months after the period at whlch_th?y ought to have been tried; and at the
opening of the March term of the Court of King’s Bench, had legltlmzilte calll)se for corrll-
plaint on this ground. This cause of complaint would, oflcourze, _zilve h een greatly
aggravated, if their detention in qustody had been further pro engg R vlv]lt lt:u bprosgcutlfon
and trial, and they had not received, from the Court of King’s Bench, t el enefit of a
Gaol delivery; in which case, that court, as well as the Attorney General, would have
been liable to censure. It is most manifest, therefore, that, without a Vlola.thS] of the
liberty of the subject, and a culpable neglect of duty, in which the Court of I.(m% s Bench
itself would have been involved, the petitioner could not omit to prosecute, in that court,

* Vide Appendix to Report, (No. 3.) p. 54, 47. o
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the several Indictments of which Mr. Viger communicated a list and description to the Com-
mittee of Grievances. Besides these Indictments, Mr. Viger, evincing certainly a very vigilant
and minute though unusual superintendence of the Attorney General in the discharge of his
duties, adverts to three other Indictments preferred in a former term, and disposed of in
March term, 1830, which, he says, ought to have been pl‘osecutefi in the Quarter Sessions,
viz.—those against Duncan M‘Naughten, John Oliver, and William Covey. These In-
dictments were for very grave offences; the first being for a gross libel on the administra-
tion of justice by certain commissioners for the trial of small causes; the second, for the sale
of unwholesome meat, by which the health of a number of persons had been injured; and the
third for an offence which, a few years since, was of frequent occurrence in Lower Canada,
and of very injurious tendency, the defendant (an American) being charged with unlawfully
having in his possession a large number of forged notes of different banks in the United
States, amounting to fourteen hundred and sixty dollars, with the intent to utter
and dispose of them, in fraud of the King’s subjects. That these cases, from the nature of
the offences, were deserving of prosecution before the Court of King’s Bench, the petitioner
conceives no doubt could be entertained; but, if not prosecuted by the petitioner,
the persons accused would not have been made amenable to justice in any other court:—in
the two first cases, also, the defendants and witnesses had, in the first instance, been bound
over to the Court of King’s Bench, and, in the last, the defendant was in custody. In
prosecuting the three last mentioned indictments, therefore, as well as those already men-
tioned, the petitioner discharged his duty, he presumes to think, meritoriously; and as to
all of them, the singular supervision to which he has heen subjected, without heing aware
of it, might have been dispensed with.

The other witnesses examined before the committee of grievances on this head of
offence were Messrs. Green, Perrault, and Delisle, Clerks of the Peace, and two of them
also Clerks of the Crown. In the statements of these gentlemen, particular directions of the
executive governmernt are referred to, the object of which was to enforce and facilitate the
prosecution of certain offences in the Quarter Sessions. These directions originated in a
Report of a Committee of the whole Council of the 31st May, 1822, in which were con-
tained several recommendations, with a view to a reduction of the public expense in the
administration of justice, in criminal cases. One of the objects of the Report was to
compel the Clerks of the Peace to prosecute, in the Quarter Sessions, criminal offences
cognizable by that Court, which, for the want of prosecution there, were prosecuted, at a
greater expense, in the Court of King’s Bench. The recommendation of the Committee,
on the last head, appears to have received execution in the District of Quebec, but, from
circumstances which it is unnecessary to particularise, was very imperfectly executed in the
District of Montreal. Hence it became necessary, in the latter District, to carry on pro-
secutions in the Court of King’s Bench for offences, for which prosecutions might and
ought to have been instituted in the Quarter Sessions. But the remedy for this was not
to be obtained, by an unfounded inculpation of the Attorney General, for having done his
duty, but by compelling the Clerk ot the Peace to discharge that which the law of the
land, and the directions of the government, had imposed on him. To this subject the
attention of his Excellency, Sir James Kempt, while he administered the government of
Lower Canada, was drawn; and the petitioner will beg leave to refer to his report* to his
Excellency, in relation to it, as late as the 13th August, 1830, from which it will appear
evident that the remedy for the evil in question was to be found, in the proper discharge
of the duty of the Clerk of the Peace.

Before quitting this head of imputed offence, the petitioner cannot omit to notice that
Mr. Green, a gentleman of acknowledged character and probity, one of the witnesses last
mentioned, on his examination before the Committee, it appears, stated facts that micht have
rectified the erroneous view taken of this subject, by the House of Assem%ly, and
which entirely disproved this charge, as to the District of Quebec: yet these facts, it
is to be regretted, were not reduced to writing. It appears by the affidavit of Mr. Grc,een
that the material facts now referred to have been suppressed, in the report of evidence
taken before the Committee, and that this was done by desire of 2 member of the Com.
mittee (Mr. Lafontaine), who stated it was not necessary to reduce that part of Mr. Green’s
evidence to writing.—The petitioner has already adverted to the inadmissibility of such
evidence as that contained in the report of the Committee of Grievances, under any cir-
cumstances, to establish guilt. But when such mutilation has occurred in the manner of
taking it, its claim to credit for any purpose cannot but be considered most seriously
affected, if not destroyed.

On the third head of offence, it is to be observed, that all the prosecutions for libels
which have been carried on by the petitioner, originated in bills of indictment found by the
Grand Juries in the districts of Quebec and Montreal: in no instance whatever has the
petitioner exercised the right of filing ex officio informations for libels. He is at a loss
therefore, to conceive on what ground he can be held criminal or culpable, for having been
merely auxiliary to Grand Juries in the institution of these prosecutions, which are not to be
considered as proceeding from him, but from the country itself, throu gh that organ by which

* Vide Appendix, No. 1.
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it is constitutionally represented in such cases. These prosecutions, it is alleged by the As-
sembly, were “ unjust and unfounded.” Without inquiring into the constitutional right of the
House of Assembly, to sit in judgment on the decisions of Grand Juries in finding bills of in-
dictment, or the expediency or fitness of such an exercise of power by the Assembly, the
petitioner will beg leave to remark, that it does not appear, that either the Committee of
Grievances, or the Assembly itself, had before it any materials whatever, by means of which
it could be ascertained, whether the prosecutions complained of were unjust and unfounded,
or not. Neither the indictments in question, nor any of the evidence on which the Grand
Juries proceeded in finding them to be true, nor any evidence whatever respecting the
charges contained in them, were laid before the Committee, or the Assembly itself. So that
the determination of the Assembly, that these prosecutions were ¢ unjust and unfounded,”
appears to have had no other foundation than the will of the Assembly to declare them so:
Sic wvolumus, sic jubemus; stet pro ratione woluntas. To this determination is opposed
the legal and constitutional authority of Grand Juries, by which the prosecutions have been
sanctioned, and declared to be well founded. Resting on such authority, these prosecutions,
the petitioner apprehends, must be presumed to have had a legal, just, and sufticient cause.
till the contrary may be established, by the verdict of a jury. This mode (the only legal and
satisfactory one), of determining whether the prosecutions complained of were or were not
“ unjust and unfounded,” the House of Assembly does not desire should be pursued ;
and the defendants themselves have never signified, or manifested,any wish for its adoption;
nor are they likely to do so. A conclusive and satisfactory answer to this head of offence,
the petitioner, therefore, humbly presumes, is found in the indictments themselves.
But apprehending, as in all humility he does, that his agency in these prosecutions was
not only not criminal or culpable, but meritorious, he secks not to shelter himself under
the constitutional authority of Grand Juries;—he is ready to justify each and every of
them, as having been urgently necessary, when instituted, and as having largely contributed
to arrest the progress of disorder, and maintain the authority of his Majesty’s government,
and the tranquillity ef the Province, when both were assailed an.d endangered. It would
be easy for the petitioner to establish this assertion, by entering into particulars, and at the
same time to show the connexion which subsists, between the defendants in these prosecutions,
and the individuals whose labours and influence have been conspicuous, in the proceedings
adopted against the petitioner. But he does not deem it proper, to give such an un-
necessary extension to this statement ; and will beg leave merely, on this head of imputed
offence, to refer to his Report* on the subject of these prosecutions, which was made to his
Excellency, Sir James Kempt, soon after he assumed the administration of the Govern-
ment of Lower Canada, and of which a copy is hereunto annexed. In this Report, he
humbly apprehends, will be found the true character of the prosecutions in question, and
sufficient reason to justify his conduct in relation to them, as well as that of the Grand
Juries, by which the bills were found.

On the fourth head of offence some explanations, the petitioner begs leave to submit,
are necessary, in order that a just opinion of it may be entertained. To represent the
Borough of William-Henry, or any other part of the Province, in the Assembly as now
constituted, was not an object of the ambition of the petitioner ; and, if inclination had
been consulted, he would have been a stranger to the e[echons for‘ that Boroug'h. But, on
his receiving the appointment of Attorney General, it was intimated to him, that it
was deemed proper that he should represent it, as his predecessors in office generally
had done. At the first election, therefore, which occurred after his appointment, he
became a candidate for the Borough, and, at considerable personal expense, was elected.
The Borough constituting part of the seignory of Sorel, which belongs to his Majesty,
the King’s Agent for that seignory, on that as on other similar occasions, was relied on for
the canvassing of the Borough. When a new election was about to take place in July,
1827, the petitioner placed the same reliance on the exertions of the Agent, as he had
done at the previous election, and arrived at the Borough, only the day before the election.
He then found that no communication had been had with any of the electors on his
behalf, while active measures, of which he had remained ignorant, had been used against
him, and that all the influence and activity of a powerful political party, opposed to the
then administration of the Colonial Goverpment, fmd whlc}_l is now domm.ant in the Housg of
Assembly, would be exerted to prevent his election. This fact was verified at the opening
of the election, the next day, as a large concourse of persons from distant parts f’f the
country, including officers of militia, from colonels dowfn to serjeants, Justices of the Peace,
and other persons of influence, wholly unconnected with the Borough, were found ready
to sustain the interests of an adverse Candldate.—Among these there were alsp _lr_1d1v1duals
of inferior condition, whose physical powers had evidently been put in requisition, t(ﬁ be
used as circumstances might require. On the other hand, the petitioner, personafyha
stranger to the Borough, was absolutely alone and unsupported, except b)ﬁ s(c])mezl o 3 e
principal inhabitants of the place. It is not to be supposed, therefore, afs Ele ged un T:l
this head of offence, that acts of violer}ce, in restraint of the fl‘eedpm of Election, couh
proceed from the petitioner, with the ald.of four or five pga.ceably disposed bu;.ge?e-sd(t le
whole amount of the physical force on his side) in opposition to hundreds of individuals
thus collected together, acting, besides, under the influence of strong political excitement,

* Vide Appendix, No. 16.
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i ioi judices, and exhibiting both power and inclination
heightened l')y national an'(:l rellxltgll)(()e‘il:gpsrgsﬁzxclii’s asto the meags, on thi cher side.—Th.ere
fo et A e he nature of things could not be, the slightest foundation,
is absolutely, thel'ef:OI'E, anf'l o cts f violence to the petitioner; while, on his part, he
or colour, for the imputation of acts of vio fo the e head e Tnste g

srtainly had reason to entertain well-founded apprehensions on ad.  As littl ‘
Y i ting to the petitioner the use of threats. —In endeavouring in a very
is there also, for Jmpu mcl,nbers Eysical strength, and the employment of means, to sustain
upegual cotnte:t; Z;r:gil}:te thg [}))etitioner couﬁl have no reliance. except on the execution
his mte]*res ) aIn the e\:erci,se of rights derived from these, he d.l(l object to the ad'mlss!on
Og !l};en alwvs;)t—es ;—when such votes were insisted upon, he did require the oath ofquallﬁca}}on
o i)eezgministe;‘ed;—and, when the want of right was ev1dent,' he did, as far as t;([?poui]g
:'(i)olen‘ce would permit, caution the individuals abou§ to con}:protl*r));?s thje(:?]f)(i-]:s: :ﬁéd i]l]?tger;;:
sl agaglst deor:glgtiz(s) ;t;e};re\\fgglgl?gc];ﬁ},)r:rslfin(;i(tloirtlf]'s:r:](tth:r)xll theygwguld be prosecuted for
%:3(:1];2 if]fhzy took the oath.—But all this was done by him, as woul;il have beer;e(ig;z l;}fr‘
any other candidate, under like circumstances ; and, on his part, wasd‘u: {nere e ercise of
the essential rights of a candida{:a, w1thou; wtll:ch hetin(;:]lslgeh?hv:;::?;i]};ztleg };(fgr(;?r:liniqter he
t. The urgent occasion there was for the cautic ! S
g(())?ntgsof the vote%s, and the exp]gnatlons ?e was desxrtousth(l)geafzofrg]l:gv(:?eerr:,‘glzay;st:il:]f;
i illustrated, by referring, by way of specimen, to thr , viz.
ﬁAclllzrsl;lnyt,l]jl{Jr:toine o uZ dit Cour?loyer, and Francois _Van.da].—Tl.)ei two forme! l(lrad exeoc:lt;e);l
deeds of giit of their property, in ft‘}{)e Bor;)u]gh,dto tl(]lelfr clhtl)l;ht'ir;, B‘é;g:st lgie;,‘;g'}’;i;y i[r)) rtion
i ideration of being lodged and fec s, j _
l.;fn::]ees,e:\fﬁ;? it;nvfﬁ[g];ﬁ;lcalle(l in Lower Canada la Jortune du pots with the 1'f1‘g(l;'t also, in tlrl]fé
case of Aussant, of insisting on a l!'fe‘.rent, or pension viagere, 1? calse oy‘“ lsf?grte’e;nt:m‘
between the parties; and the latter clauimed the right of voting und Er the wi Of .'; lea
still living. The returning officer (Mr. Crebass?)? who was also ;‘ e nti)ta}l;y 0 ‘]tl 1e p a(fe,
and in that character had in his custody the original deeds of gift aIn l: e WIhZ wa?‘ 1;
quested to put these men on their guard, when brought up to vpte.ﬁ‘— t \\i‘lls otn is reﬂtllsm
to do so, that the petitioner interposed, a_nd endeavoureq, bug me] ectuak y,l to sal\f/‘eh 'ed
from the offence they were about to commit. He could with difficulty make }lnlsel: eard,
amidst the loud vociferations of the adverse candidate and his partisans, urg‘mg tlllese'mer}
to take the oath, under the circumstances now mentioned, of which they were well aware ;
and, to vanquish their scruples, the adverse candidate gave them the stronl%est 'c‘lss(tixrla]m.ces
that he would protect them against all consequences, and stand betwe}a}en tbfim an ;umi.
False swearing, with such attendant circumstances in tl_le very face of the public, must be ;)d
rare occurrence ; and cases more deserving of prosecution than th_e'se, it is presumled, cou
hardly occur :—Yet these are three of the cases, in which the petitioner is held cu qule for
indicting the individuals; and the explanations h_e attempted to give them respecting the
offence -?hey were about to commit, and the penal'tles annexed toit, have be.e'n calle_:d threats,
in restraint of the freedom of election !—Under th}s head of oﬁenc?, the petitioner is (~harge'd
with having intimidated some of the electors, while he promised Impunity to others. This
allegation is altogether untrue, and destitute ofany the sl_lghteslf fou‘ndatlon. Itis dern./ed from
misrepresentation of facts which reall_Y occm:re.d, mtermlxe_d'wnh falsehood, proceeding frorp
individuals influenced by a strong desire to injure the petitioner, and subject to no responsi-
bility, for the means thus employed to gratify their malice and resentment.— By misrepresenta-
tion, the legal and proper conduct of the petitioner, in cautioning ignorant and deluded men
against the commission of perjury, is converted into intimidation ; and by falsehood,. in
ascribing to the petitioner language which he never uttered, a colour is obtamed,_ for charging
him with having held out an impunity to voters in his favour, which the most ignorant per-
sons must have been aware it was not in his power to afford, and which Do person in his
office, not actually deprived of his reason, c.ould possibly have .even_hmteq at, as an
inducement to perjury, in the face of the public. The falsehood in this mallcmu.s.cOm_
pound thus defeats its object, by its very extravagance. It wou}d be easy for the pentlongr,
to analyse the statements of the different witnesses fx:om which this compound of_ mis-
representation and falsehood has proceedgd, ar_ld establish, as to each of them successively,
their entire unworthiness of credit, even 1_f their statements had been legally made_ u_nder
oath, with the responsibility incident to evidence in that form. But a great and, he thinks,
unwarrantable extension of this memoir would be thus occasioned unnecessarily, inasmuch
as the misrepresentation and falsehood now referred to, besides the intrinsic evidence of it
resulting from the facts which are stated, is distinctly proved by the affidavits on oath
of the most respectable inhabitants of the borough, who were intimately conversant with
the proceedings of the election from first to last, and who have been under the influence
of no motive that could affect their veracity. To these affidavits, as wg]l as t.hose_ of several
other persons, the petitioner will beg le_ave to refer*, as not only dlspl‘ovn.ng in toto this
alledged head of offence, but as establishing the scrupulous fairness, and entire correctness
of the conduct and deportment of the petitioner, throughout the election.

On the fifth head of imputed offence, the petitioner will observe, that he prosecuted
no person for perjury whom he did not caution, at the time of taking the oath, against
doing so, and whose want of qualification was not so evident, as to exclude all doubt as to

* Vide Appendix, Nos. 3, 4, 5,6, 7, 8, 9, 15.



the falsehood of the oath which had been taken. The number of cases in which this false
swearing occurred was so great, compared with the entire number of votes for the borouglh,
which is only between one hundred and one hundred and twenty, that the legal right of
voting must be rendered entirely illusory, if the false assumption of this right, by perjury,
were not checked. The effect of this assumption, in the case alluded to, was evident,
inasmuch as the majority of the adverse candidate was only two or three votes, and the
number of his voters against whom indictments for perjury were subsequently found was
not less than seven. For the sufficiency of the grounds on which each of these prosecutions
was instituted, the petitioner most willingly holds himself responsible. The prosecutions
which he is held culpable, under this head of offence, for not having instituted against
persons who voted for him, he could not have instituted, without a gross breach
of his duty, for two very conclusive reasons. In the first place, no private prose-
cutor ever requested him to institute such prosecutions, or ever said one syllable to him
respecting them ; and, in the second, no sufficient evidence ever reached his hands to war-
rant or justify him, in laying any such accusations as those referred to, before a grand jury.
The facts, with respect to this fifth head of offence, the petitioner begs leave to state are
these.—In the term of the Court of King’s Bench at Montreal, which succeeded the elec-
tion at Sorel, there were dclivered to him, by the Clerk of the Crown, to whom they had
been sent, several depositions, charging persons who had voted for the petitioner, with
perjury ; but, from that period to the present, no private prosecutor ever required that
these depositions should be acted upon, nor has any inquiry respecting them ever been
made. Upon looking into the depositions, the petitioner found them to have been made
by persons of very low condition in life, and to be wholly insufficient to admit of any prose-
cution being grounded on them. He likewise found that one of the persons charged in
these depositions with the commission of perjury, in having falsely sworn to a qualification,
had, indeed, voted at the e'cction, but his vote had not been objected to, and he had, in
fact, taken no oath at all. It was also, on the depositions of the same person (one Joseph
Allard, an indigent carter) by whom this charge of perjury was thus falsely made, that two
other of the charges rested. = Under these circumstances, no prosecutions were, or could be,
grounded on the depositions now referred to. But, it was deemed proper to prosecute
Allard for the perjury he had committed, in charging, with that offence, the voter who
had voted, without taking any oath; and an indictment was accordingly found against him
for perjury, in a Court ot Oyer and T'crminer and General Gaol Delivery held at Montreal,
in November 1827 And in the same session an indictment was also found against Louis
Marcoux, > for subornation of perjury, in having procured him to commit the offence.
After the arrest of Allard, the criminal means by which he had been prevailed on, by
Marcous, falsely to charge Cameraire with perjury, as well as those by which these depo-
sitions, generally, had been procured, were disclosed. + By thr:; dlsclpsure, the prud'er.lt.lal
considerations, which had prevented any private prosecutor from incurring the responsibility
of acting on such depositions, were rendered sufficiently evident.

On the sixth head of imputed offence,—

Leaving to the consideration of His Majesty’s Government the extraordinary assumption
of power, by the Assembly of Lower Canada, i convicting him of this offence, by ghelr
own mere authority, as already mentigned, the petitioner cannot, w1thou_t the most pamful
sense of injury, proceed to exonerate himself from the disgraceful imputation thus arbitrarily
and unjustly fastened upon him. The laws of the land, as to him, have been virtually
suspended ;—the safeguards provided for the security of‘ men’s persons, reputation, and
fortunes, have, in this proceeding of the Assembly against .hlm, been disregarded, and
rendered of no avail. The whole extent of the injury thus inflicted can never be effectually
counteracted by the petitioner. The establishment of his innocence, 1n the form now adqpted,
cannot effect this purpose. A wide dissemination ha.s b_eep given, unde}' the authority 'of
the Assembly, to a disgraceful charge, not within its jurisdiction or cogmzance, and no cir-
culation of its refutation, proceeding from the petitioner, can !)e equally extensive. Under
any circumstances, therefore, the petitioner can only flatter himself with partial reparation
for the injury he has experienced.

The offence of which the Assembly, by its assumed .aughority, has convicted the
etitioner, is that of subornation of Eerjury “in having (as it 1s alleged) induced, at the
¢« election at Sorel, certain electors, who were not qualified, to take (-)aths”usual on su_ch oc-
« casions, although he knew that these individuals were not qualified. Sub.ot;jn.at_n(;)n ]of
erjury is thus ex ressly charged on the petitioner, In respect of several in 1lv1 ufa s;
et it is not stateg who these individuals were; 'and if the charge alone, therefore,
“vere adverted to, there could be no means of repelling and disproving it. ”It is only, l})ly
referring to the above-mentioned document called ¢a Copy of Evidence, h&’w'd that the
foundation of the charge can be ascertained. The petitioner has looked into this hocument,
to find the names of the several individuals, with the subornation of whom it might ble sulp_
posed the Assembly meant to chargfa him ; an_d he finds the name of One.lndl.\’ldli.a on ﬁr,
~whose oath, it would appear, has given occasion to the charge. It qertalnlyﬂ_lmp 1es,h.t e
petitioner may be permitted to remark, singular facility in the imputation of offence to him,

* Vide Appendix, No. 12. + Vide the affidavit of Joseph Allard, Appendix, NOI.)H, p- 34
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that such an increased latitude should be given to the charge, beyond the foundation on
which it rests ;—that one supposed act of subornation, in the evi.den_cc,. should be multiplied
into several in the charge and conviction of the Axsembly; while it is also true, that the
magnitude of the charge, and the impression to be made by it, as well as the difficulty of re-
pelling it, are thereby improperly enhanced.

The individual in respect of whom, it would appear, it was the intention of the H9use of
Assembly to charge the petitioner with subornation of perjury, is one Frangois Gazaille dit
St. Germain, who, at the time of the election held at William-Henry, was a respectable in-
habitant of that place. The facts, with respect to the oath taken by this man, within.the
personal knowledge of the petitioner, are the following. —On the second day of the election,
mn the morning, when in the act of proceeding alone, from his lodgings to the poll, which was
then held in a small apartment in the Presbytére, or Parsonage-House, the petitioner was met
near the door by Francois Gazaille dit St. Germain, whom he had never seen before, and
who informed him that he had come to offer him his vote. The petitioner inquired of him,
as he was in the habit of doing when votes were tendered to him, the nature of his qua-
lification, and learnt from him that his qualification consisted in a usufruct for life, or life-
estate, in part of a house or houses and lands in the Borough, of the whole of which he had
executed a deed of gift to his son, subject to the reservation of a life-estate in part thereof,
the annual value of which part so reserved he stated to exceed that which is required by law
to confer the right of voting. Upon this statement, St. Germain was told by the petitioner
that he had a right to vote, and that his vote would be gladly accepted. The ground of the
opinion so expressed could be susceptible of no difficulty. The act of the Imperial Parliament,
31 Geo. I11. c. 31. by which the Constitution of Lower Canada is established, annexes to a
frechold the right of voting, and a life-estate being a freehold, the right of St. Germain to
vote on his usufruct, or life-estate, exceeding in annual value the sum required by law, could not
be questioned. After this short explanation with St. Germain, the petitioner proceeded to
the poll, where he was for some time unattended by any of the persons who favoured his
election. In this interval St. Germain presented himself as a voter, and tendered his vote for
the petitioner. His right to vote was objected to by the adverse candidate, on the ground
that an absolute right of property, or estate in fee-simple, alone conferred the right of voting,
that it could not be claimed or exercised on a usufruct for life, or life-estate, and that, there-
fore, St Germain could not vote on the reservation contained in the deed of gift to his son.
This objection was answered by the petitioner. and some altercation took place between the
adverse candidate and him, as to the admissibility of the vote; the one insisting that the ohjec-
tion was well-founded, the other that it was not ; while the returning officer (as was usual with
him) gave occasion to the altercation, by not interposing his authonty, on the point in dispute.
But, 1n all that was said, the fact of the reservation of a life-estate as stated by St. Germain
was not called in question or doubted, either by the adverse candidate, or by the returning
officer, or by any person present ; the legal effect of the reservation being, alone, the subject of
debate between the adverse candidate and the petitioner. 'While the discussion on this point.
was going on in English, St. Germain, not understanding that language, withdrew of his own
accord ; he soon after returned, and of his own free-will (without having been spoken to b
the petitioner in the intermediate time) took the oath, and voted. If any doubt had been
expressed as to the fact of the reservation having been made, the petitioner would have desired
St. Germain to go for and produce the deed of gift, in order to remove it; but this was
not thought of at the time, and by the most scrupulous person could not be deemed necessary,
when the fact was acquiesced in by the adverse candidate, who is a native of the place,
and intimately acquainted with the inbabitants and their concerns, and also by the returning
officer, who, m his capacity of notary, had attested the execution, and was in possession, of
the original deed of gift. Except on the occasion of offering him his vote, and voting as
already mentioned, the petitioner, to his knowledge, has never seen or spoken to St. Germain,
either before or since the election, and would not know him if he were to see him. It is on
these facts, that the petitioner has been subjected, by the House of Assembly of Lower
Canada, to the extraordinary charge of subornation of perjury, in having, as it is alleged
induced St. Germain to swear to a qualification which, it is now said, he did not possess, That
such a charge should originate in such facts could not have been anticipated: the malicious
misrepresentation and falsehood by which it has been sought to obtain a colour for it are now
to be explained. The individuals examined before the Committee, consisting of the adverse
candidate, his partisans and friends, two of whom are still under Indictment for perjury and
subornation of Eerjury, on whose statements this charge has been founded, assert that St.
Germain, when he tendered his vote, stated that he had given away his property to his son
and that, notwithstanding this fact, he was assured by the petitioner, that he had a right to
vote. The fact thus stated is incredible: it cannot be supposed that the petitioner would
assure St. Germain that he had a right to vote, if he had merely said, that he had given away
his property, which would have been equivalent to a declaration on his part that he had no
rxght' to vote; .and no person in his senses could, in such case, have ascribed to St. Germain
the right of voting. Tt is here the misrepresentation occurs, on the part of these witnesses, by
stating only a part of the fact, or res gesta, and suppressing the rest. It is true that St.
Germain did state, that he had given away his property to his son, and it is also true that the
petitioner assured him he had a right to vote; but it is equally true, that St. Germain added,
that he had reserved a life-estate in part of the property so given away, on which he claimed
the right to vote, and that it was, on this alledged reservation, not denied at the time, that he
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was fold by the petitioner that he had a right to vote. The statement of the whole fact, as it
occurred, would have excluded all pretence for attaching offence or blame to the petitioner,
as his assurance to St. Germain, that he had a right to vote, would have been predicated on a
fact, acquiesced in as true at the time, and sufficient to confer that right. Hence the sup-
pressio veri in the particular now mentioned ; and still further to give a colour to the charge,
falsehood has heen added, by representing St. Germain to have been reluctant in taking the
oath, and to have beer‘l pr_essed by the petitioner to do so, who, it is even falsely said, laid his
hand on the bool:. To disprove the statements of these witnesses in foto, and deprive them of
all credit, it is §ufﬁc1.ent to esta_lhlish the fact which they have maliciously suppressed, viz.—
that St. Germain claimed the right of voting, on the reservation of a life estate. This fact is
ascertained by the Affidavits* of the most respectable inhabitants of the Borough, to whom St.
Ge!'njam, the day before, and on the morning he voted, stated his intention to vote for the
petitioner, and the ground on which he claimed the right of voting, viz.—the reservation of a
life estate in part of the property he had given to his son, and to two of whom+ he mentioned
tl_lat he had spoken to the petitioner, as above mentioned, and had been told by him, he had a
right to vote on his life estate. To these Affidavits the petitioner is enabled to add the
Affidavits of St. Germain himself, and of his son{, the occasion and manner of taking which he
begs leave to mention. Never anticipating that he could have become subject to such a
c_harge as that in question, it was not, till after the Address of the Assembly, and the pub-
lication of the document called ¢ A Copy of Evidence, &c.,” that he deemed it necessary to
ascer_tain the actual residence of St. Germain.—He had removed, with his son, after the
election, to another part of the country, where the petitioner caused him to be referred to,
and his Affidavit taken of the facts as they really occurred, and also the Affidavit of his son,
with whom he now lives. In his Affidavit, St. Germain confirms the fact established by the
Affidavits already mentioned, that he claimed the right of voting, and voted, on the reserva-
tion of a life estate.—He also negatives the use of anv influence whatever on the part of the
petitioner to induce him to vote;—he states, that having signitied, at the poll, his mtention ta
vote for the petitioner, a discussion (diffculté ) took place between the two candidates (referring
no doubt to the discussion as to the admissibility of his vote on a life estate, which, being in
English, he did not understand) and he withdrew ; —that he soon after returned, and of his
own free-will and accord took the oath ;—that the Holy Evangelists, on which he was sworn,
were put into his hand by Mr. Crebassa, the Returning Officer, and that the petitioner
never touched his hand for the purpose of laying it on the hook.—He likewise states facts, of
which the petitioner was not previously aware, viz.—that Mr. Nelson, the adverse candidate,
the evening before he voted, called at his house to solicit his vote, and in answer to his inquiry
how he had disposed of his property, he (St. Germain) told him that he had reserved
to himself, by his deed, a life estate in one or other of his two houses, at his option,
and thereupon Mr. Nelson told him he had a right to vote, and that if any difficulty
was made about it at the poll, he (Mr. Neclson) would soon put an end to it. He
also swears that on the same qualification, and at the solicitation of the same Mr. Nelson, he
had previously voted for the two members for the county, in which the borough of William-
Henry is situated.—He likewise states, that the morning he voted, in oyder to be more
secure as to his right of voting, he went to consult Mr. Crebassa, the Returning Officer, belpg
the Notary before whom his Deed of Gift to his son had been executed, who refused to give him
either information or advice on the subject, telling him at the same time to do as he pleased ;
by which he was the more confirmed in the belief that he had a right to vote. These last-
mentioned facts, contrasted with the statements made before the Committee of Grievances,
sufficiently exemplify the character, principles, and conduct of the persons with whom the
proceedings in question against the petitioner originate. But they are not neccssary for the
petitioner’s entire justification, which results from the simple fact, that St. Germain claimed
the right of voting on a life estate, and that the assurances he received from the petitioner
that he had this right, were predicated on the supposed existence of such life estate, which at
the time was not denied or called in guestion.

The falsehood of the charge of subornation of perjury, of which he has been convicted
by the Assembly, and the absence of any the slightest probal)le cause for 1t, is thus con-
vincingly established ; and the petitioner might abstain from further observations respecting
it. But the true character of this proceeding against him would be imperfectly understood,
without some explanation also of the motives for the misrepresentation and falsehood which
have been made manifest. St. Germain had voted, early in the election, when a single vote
was deemed of little importance, and his vote, as already estab}ished, _had been distinctly given
on the ground of a reservation of a life-estate in the deed of gift to his son. At a later period
of the election, when it was drawing to a close, and the value of a vote was rpuch enhanced,
two persons, Aussant and Cournoyer, who had also given away their property, 1n th_q Boroug!;,
to their children, but who, by their own confession, h.ad made no reservation of a life-estate in
any part of it, were prevaile(i' on by the adverse candidate and his partisans to swear, as above
mentioned, to a qualification, without the semblance of a reason for doing so. These men, as
they were forewarned by the petitioner, when they took the oath, were afterwards prosecu}:ed
for perjury. It then became an object with the persons by whose means and influence th _eg;
had been got into this predicament, to extricate them from it, by falsifying the facts w 1cf
had occurred, in relation to the vote given by St. Germam. He had voted on a life-estate o

* Vide Append. Nos. 4, 5, 6, and 15. + Vide Append. Nos. tand 5. t Vide Append. Nos. 13and 1t.
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which, it would appear, he bond fide supposed the reservation to be contained in the deed of
gift to his son, and which his neighbours, and other persons (including the adverse candidate,
Mr. Nelson himself) supposed him to possess. But, after the election, it was ascertained
(whether from the fault of the notary by whom the deed of gift was prepared, or other
cause,) that the deed of gift did not in fact contain such a reservation as St. Germain
had supposed, and was believed, at the time he voted, to exist. With the aid of t'hls
circumstance, a defence and justification, or excuse for Aussant and_ Cournoyer, in ha.vmg
sworn falsely to a qualification which they did not possess, it was imagined, might be obtained,
by converting St. Germain's vote into a precedent for the votes they had given, under very
dissimilar circumstances. For this purpose, it was necessary to suppress the mention of the
alledged title (a life-estate) on which St. Germain voted, and represent him to have voted
precisely under the same circamstances under which Aussant and Cournoyer voted. The
persons who have concurred in this suppression have done so with the greater confidence, as
there were few persons present when St. Germain voted, and among these none of the persons
whofavoured the election of the petitioner, from whom contradiction could be apprehended. This
singular mode of justifying the perjury, for which Aussant and Cournoyer were indicted, by
endeavouring to establish that another person had previously committed a similiar perjury,
was resorted to on the trial of Aussant; and it was afterwards thought that the same mis-
representation and falsehood, which had been irregularly and irrelevantly introduced into that
trial, might be successfully directed against the petitioner, in another quarter. The motives,
therefore, for the misrepresentation and falsehood, which have been clearly established as to
what occurred when St. Germain gave his vote, are to be found in the desire to obtain,
by these means, justification or excuse for Aussant and Cournoyer, and to injure the pe-
titioner.

So far as the justification of the petitioner is in question under this head of imputed
offence, it matters not whether the life estate on which St. Germain voted was really possessed
by him or not; it is sufficient that he claimed the right to vote on that title, and that it was
with reference to it, that the petitioner assured him he had a right to vote. It may, however,
not be unfit to mention, that the petitioner was not aware, till the trial of Aussant, that the
reservation of a life estate in favour of St. Germain was not to be found in the deed of gift
to his son. The fact of the reservation having been made was, at the election, acquiesced in
as above mentioned ; and it appears, by the Aflidavits of both St. Germains, father and son *,
that it was stipulated between them, and ought to have been included in the deed of gift. It
appears, also, that the elder St. Germain, who cannot read or write, still remains under the
firm persuasion that the reservation is contained in the deed of gift ;—that his son continues
to give effect to the reservation as if it were contained in the deed ;—and that the elder St.
Germain, ever since the deed was executed, has enjoyed and still enjoys the benefit of it.

Under different circumstances, the petitioner might have deemed it proper to advert to
facts which are of a nature to invalidate the credit of the several witnesses examined before
the Committee of Grievances, in support of this head of imputed offence.— But, considering
the falsehood of the charge to have been clearly and plainly established, he thinks he may, at
least for the present, omit this disagreeable task ; reserving, however, his right to do so, if it
should hereafter be rendered necessary. :

As he has already done, under a preceding head of imputed offence, it is incumbent on the
petitioner that he should, under this head also, notice an alleged irregularity and incorrectness in
the taking of evidence bﬁ the Committee of Grievances, in support of it, which must excite
cxtreme surprise.— By the affidavit of Dr. Von Iffland t, one of the witnesses examined before
the Committee, it appears that, in the Report of the evidence taken before it, there has been
a suppression of material facts and circumstances which made part of his answers to the questions
put to him, and that the evidence contained in the Report, in a number of particulars, is in-
correct, and different from the evidence really given by him before the Committee, In what
relates to Frangois Gazaille dit St. Germain, it appears that Dr. Von Iffland stated before the
Committee, facts from which it was to be inferred, that the said St. Germain took the oath. of
his own free will, I:Fon an alledged reservation of a life-estate, the existence of which est’ate
was not denied or doubted at the time he voted ; and that these facts have been entirely sup-
Eressed in the evidence ascribed to Dr. Von Iffland.—The facts which this witness thus stated

efore the Committee, and which have been suppressed in the Report of evidence, being the
document above designated as ¢ A copy of evidence, &c.” are in his affidavit proved to be
the following, viz. “ That St. Germain called upon Dr. Von Iffland the day before he voted
“ and, after mentioning his intention to vote for James Stuart, Esquire, one of the Candidates,
¢ stated also the nature of his qualification, which he represented to cousist in the usufruct
¢ for life, or life-estate, in part of the house in the Borough, which he had given to his son
““ by Deed of Gift, executed before Mr. Crebassa, Public Notary.—The next morning, the
“ said St. Germain again called on Dr. Von Ifland, and informed him that he haf Jjust
“ seen the said James Stuart, who had told him, that if he (St. Germain) had reserved a
“ lllff;ie estate, as he represented he had done, he would have a right to vote.—That Dr. Von
ol la;md be:qg 355_11‘0\;15 of assuring himself of the terms of the reservation stated by St. Germain
o be contained m the Deed of Gift to his son, immediately after went to the office of the said

* Vide Append. Nos. 13 and 14. + Vide Append. No. 15.
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* Crebassa, for the purpose of sceing the said Deed of Gift, and applied for the perusal of it,
* to the said Mr. Crebassa, who refused to let him see it.—That soon after Dr. Von Iffland
“ met the said St. Germain, who persisted in the confident assertion that the said Deed of Gift
* contained such a reservation, as he had stated, and that he would go and vote for the said
*» James Stuart: and, in the course of the same morning, Dr. Von Ifland heard that the said
+¢ 8t. Germain had voted for the said James Stuart :—That Dr. Von Ifland did not hear any
¢ doubts expressed of the truth of the fact stated by the said St. Germain, as to the said re-
“ servation, until five or six days after the election was over, when the said St. Germain, in
* conversation with him, renewed his assertion, that he had reserved to himself a life estate, as
* above-mentioned.”

.

~

The evidence of Mr. Green, which he states on oath to have been suppressed, was of u
nature to defeat the second charge, by disproving it.—The material facts, making part of Dr.
Von Iffland’s evidence, which he states, on oath, to have been suppressed, were equally calculated
to disprove and defeat the sixth charge against the petitioner. Under these two heads of accusa-
tion, then, according to the express affidavits of Mr. Green and Dr. Von Ifﬂax.lgl, the evidence to
prove innocence has been suppressed, while evidence, from which culpability of some kind
or other might be inferred, has alone been reduced to writing.—Upon such an extraordinary
mode of investigating the conduct of a public officer, and establishing his guilt, by suppressing
the evidence of his innocence, no observation can be deemed necessary. It is, however,
strikingly illustrative of the spirit and manner in which the proceedings against the petitioner
have been promoted and carried on, by the individugls w1th.wh0m they originate, and of the
means which have been perseveringly employed to injure him. He will only further permit
himself to express his regret, that the facts thus suppressed should not have been reported to
the House of Assembly, as it might reasonably be presumed, that with this evidence, of which
it appears to have been improperly depr.ived, the Assembly of _Lower Canada, in the judicious
exercise of its high and important functions, would have abstained from both these charges.

Having, as he humbly apprehends, fully established the grounds on which his respectful
appeal to his Majesty has been made, the petitioner submits the case set forth in his petition,
to his Majesty’s gracious consideration, in the full persuasion, that the measure of justice due
to a servant of the Crown, in the faithful and honest discharge of his duty, will not
be withheld from him.

(Signed) J. STUART.

London, 46, Albemarle Street,
6th August, 1831.

True Copy, J. STUART.
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Copy of a Letter from James Stuart, Esq., to the Right Hon. Lord Viscount
Goderich, one of His Majesty's principal Secretaries of State, relating to
the foregoing Petition and Memoir.

London, 46, Albemarle Street, 6th August, 1831.
My Lorp,

In conformity with the intention expressed in my memorial, addressed to your lordship
from Quebec, the 14th April last, on the subject of my suspension from the office of Attorney
General for the Province of Lower Canada, I now do myself the honour to transmit to your
lordship, to be laid at the foot of the throne, my humble petition, that his Majesty will be
graciously pleased to afford me an opportunity of defending myself against, and disproving,
the charges specified in the address of the assembly of that province, for my dismissal from
office. Together with this petition, T also do myself the honour to transmit to your lordship
a memoir or statement in explanation and support of it. Being solicitous that the charges of
the assembly may receive the most complete and satisfactory Investigation, it has been with
much satisfaction that I have observed, that an agent has been deputed by the assembly, to
sustain their charges and address; and I beg leave to express my bumble wish that, under
your lordship’s authority, he may be made acquainted with every allegation and document
proceeding from me, in relation to this matter, in order that he may be enabled to contest
them, if so advised.

I have the honour to be, with the greatest respect,
My Lord,
Your lordship’s most obedient humble servant,

(Signed) J. STUART.

To the Right Hon. Lord Viscount Goderich,
&e. &c. &e.

T'rue copy, J. STUART.
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No. 1.

Copy of a Report made by James STUART, Esq., Attorney General of Lower Canada, to

His Excellency S1n James KEMPT, in a letter to Liur. Cor. YORKE, Secretary to His
Excellency.

Quebec, 13th August, 1830.
Sig,

I have been honoured with the commands of his Excellency, Sir James Kempt, sig-
nified in your letter of the 5th May last, transmitting an extract from a report of a
Committee of the whole Council of the 81st May, 1822, in which certain recommendations
are made with a view to the reduction of the public expenditure in the administration of
Justice in criminal cases; and requiring me to take the subject generally into consideration,

and suggest any measures that may occur to me, as necessary to give greater effect to the
reccommendation of the Council.

In obedience to his Excellency’s commands, I have perused the extract of the
Report of Concil above referred to, with the documents connected with it.

In order to ascertain whether any thing can be done in furtherance of the object of
this Report, it is necessary to mention the heads of expenditure, which it was intended by
the Report to reduce, the means suggested for accomplishing the proposed reduction, and
the effect of them.

The heads of expenditure were, 1st, The expense incurred in the conduct of criminal
prosecutions by fees to the officers of the crown.

2ndly, The expense incurred in subpeenaing witnesses for the Crown, in such
prosecutions.

3rdly, The expense incurred in allowances to witnesses for the Crown, in such
prosecutions.

4thly, The amount of expense arising from the number and description of criminal
prosecutions conducted by the officers of the Crown, in the superior courts of criminal
jurisdiction.

Under the first head, was to be remedied the increased expense occasioned, by allowing
the Solicitor General, to charge fees, in criminal prosecutions conducted by the Attorney
General. This objectionable cause of expense originated in an order of Council of 21st
August, 1817, by which it was directed that the Solicitor General should be employed with
the Attorney General in all criminal prosecutions, and that he should be allowed for this
service the fees granted by the Tariff of 1801. Under this order, the services which at all
times previously had been, and could well be, performed by one officer, were to be
performed by two, with a consequent duplication of the expense. That this increased
expense was unnecessary, and ought not to be incurred, was very evident, and
the committee recommended it to be discontinued, by rescinding the order above men-
tioned ; so that, under this first head of expense, the proposed reduction has been ac-
complished.

Under the second head, a very large expense has been incurred, by permitting the
person charged with the duty of procuring the attendance of witnesses for the Crown, to
make a Bill in detail in each prosecution, without, perhaps, a very minute examination of
the grounds of his charges. Instead of this mode of remuneration, it was deemed pre-
ferable, that the service in question should be performed for a specific sum in globo, and
1007 was allowed for it, each term. This expense has been further diminished since I
came into office, several hundred pounds having been saved to the public, by the course 1
have pursued; and Tam not aware that it admits of any further reduction, except by
taking away the cause for this expenditure; that is, by obtaining the attendance of
witnesses, by means of recognizances, instead of §ubpoenas. Thfere is no doubt, _tbat if
the Justices of the Peace were to discharze their duty, by putting under recognizances
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the persons capable of giving evidence in criminal prosecutions, and transmitting these
recognizances regularly to the Criminal Courts for which they are intended, the necessity
of subpcenaing witnesses would be obviated, and this cause of expense prevented. But
this duty is omitted to be performed in the greater number of cases, and hence the con-
tinuance of expense that ought to be unnecessary. The true and effectual remedy for this
evil would be found in a Legislative enactment, similar to one recently adopted in England,
empowering the Criminal Courts, in a summary manner, to impose a fri.ne on Justices
neglecting to take and transmit recognizances, as required by law. Without such an
enactment the object in view cannot be effectually attained. In the meantime, all that
can be done is, to limit the service of subpcenas to cases of absolute necessity, and
restrict the charge for it to the lowest possible amount. This has been, and continues to
be, done by me. "

Under the third head, it was recommended by the Committee, that needy witnesses
only should be paid, and that an affidavit of want of pecuniary means should be made by
each witness, to entitle him to an allowance. This recommendation has been since acted
upon; and no reduction under this head of expenditure can be effected, except in so far
as it may be accomplished, by a close adherence to the recommendation of the Committee,
and a scrupulously exact taxation of each witness. Since I came into office as Attorney
General I can assert, that these restraints have been rigidly inforced, and nothing that I
am aware of remains to be done, to diminish this head of expenditure.

Under the fourth head, it was recommended by the report, that offences properly
cognizable by the Quarter Sessions should be prosecuted in that Court. This recom-
mendation, it is most expedient, should be acted upon at all times, and, if carried into
execution, must have the effect of diminishing the number of prosecutions in the Superior
Criminal Courts. The Officer whose duty it is to prosecute offences in the Quarter
Sessions is the Clerk of the Peace; and it is only necessary that he should be assiduous
in the discharge of this duty, to accomplish the object of the Report on this head. I am
of opinion, that the Clerk of the Peace ought to be allowed a reasonable sum for the
conduct of each criminal prosecution which it becomes his duty to carry on; and beyond
this, it is only necessary, for the accomplishment of what is desired, that he be compelled
to do his duty.

Under this view of the subject, it is plain that the reduction of the expense in
criminal prosecutions can only be expected,—First, from a more exact and regular
discharge of the duty of Justices of the Peace, in taking and transmitting recognizances.
Secondly, from a more exact discharge of the duty of Clerks of the Peace, in prosecuting
offences cognizable by the Quarter Sessions. An injunction, in the form ofa circular letter,
was laid by the Governor on Justices of the Peace, subsequently to the Report in 1822,
to discharge their duty, in the particular just mentioned. Perhaps a renewal of this
Injunction might be of some use; and it might also, perhaps, be of advantage, that the
Clerks of the Peace should, by a circular letter, be required to discharge the duty which,
as above mentioned, belongs to their office. No other steps than these, and a recom-
mendation to the legislature to pass an enactment, such as above suggested, for compelling
Magistrates to take and transmit recognizances, can, I conceive, be adopted by the
Executive Government, with a view to the reduction of expenditure, in the administration
of justice in criminal cases.

I have the honour to be,

Sir,
Your most obedient humble servant,

(Signed) J. STUART, Attorney General.
True Copy, J. STUART.

No. 2.

Affidavit of WiLLiam GrEEN, Esquire, Clerk of the Crown for the District of Quebec.
PROVINCE OF LOWER CANADA.

~ DistricT oF
QUEBEC.
To wit:

WILLIAM GREEN, of the City of Quebec, Esquir
W, : N, of 3 » Lisquire, maketh oath, that he hath
held jointly with Francois Xarvier Perrault, Esquire, the office of Clerk of,the Pezce a;‘or
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the district of Quebec, during nineteen years, and hath held the office of Clerk of the
Crown, during seven years. And the deponent further saith, that on the twenty-sixth day
of February, now last past, at the said city of Quebec, he was examined as a witness
before the Committee of Grievances, sitting under the authority of the honse of Assembly
of. this Province.—That in the course of his examination as such witness, as aforesaid, he,
this deponent, stated to the said Committee, as a part of his evidence, that the Attorney
General (meaning James Stuart, Esquire, His Majesty’s Attorney General for this Province)
had never taken any step for causing cases to be tried before thé Court of King’s Bench for
the district of Quebec, which were susceptible of trial, or might be tried before the Court
of Quarter Sessions for the same district; and that the said Attorney General had never
thrown any obstacle in the way of prosecutions before the said Court of Quarter Sessions ;
but, on the contrary, that the said Attorney General had, on numerous occasions, and
whenever applied to by the Clerks of the Peace, given every facility for removing such diffi-
culties as occasionally occurred, in carrying on prosecutions before the said Court of
Quarter Sessions.

A_nd the deponent further saith, that he also, at the same time, stated to the said
Committee, as part of his said evidence, that the consideration by which the said Attorney
General has been governed in prosecuting, or not prosecuting, in the Court of King’s Bench,
offences of petty larceny and misdemeanor, has always been, that of the party accused being
in custody or not, during the session of the Court of King's Bench : if the party accused
has been in custody during such session, he has been prosecuted in the Court of King’s Bench,
in favour of the liberty of the subject, and as being incident to the delivery of the gaol; if
not, the case has been left for prosecution in the Quarter Sessions. :

And the deponent further saith, that his said evidence, in the particulars aforesaid,
though given before the said Committee as aforesaid, was not reduced to writing, it having
been stated by the member of the Committee, {Mr. Lafontaine) who put the question, in
answer to which the said evidence was given as aforesaid, that it was not necessary to reduce
to writing that part of the deponent’s said evidence, which is herein before recited.—And the
deponent further saith, that the evidence aforesaid, so given by him, the deponent, as afore-
said, is in all particulars true.—And the deponent further saith, that the said James Stuart,
since he came into office, as Attorney General as aforesaid, has not, in any instance, to the
knowledge of the deponent, deviated from the course pursued by his predecessors in office,
as to the description of crimes prosecuted by him in the Court of King’s Bench.—And the
deponent further saith, that he passed his clerkship to entitle him to admission to the Bar,
in this Province, in the office of the Honorable Jonathan Sewell, Esq., now Chief Justice,
and formerly Attorney General of this Province, in and between the years one thousand eight
hundred and three, and one thousand eight hundred and eight; and that the same course
pursued by the said James Stuart, in the prosecution of larcenies and misdemeanors as
aforesaid, was observed by the said Jonathan Sewell, in the criminal prosecutions of that
nature, carried on by him in the Court of King’s Bench.—And further the deponent saith
not.

(Signed) W. GREEN.
Sworn at the City of Quebec, this 4th day of
April, 1831, before me,
(Signed) EDWD. BOWEN, J. B. R.

True Copy, J. STUART.

No. 3.
Affidavit of JouNn KeNt WELLES, Esquire.
PROVINCE OF LOWER CANADA.

DisTRICT OF}

UEBEC.
¢ To Wit:

JOHN KENT WELLES, of the Borough of William Henry, Esquire, m.aketh_ oath,
That he now is, and hath been, for upwards of nineteen years past, Agent for His Majesty’s
Seigniory of Sorel. That he was acquainted w_nth the proceedings which took place at the
Contested Election for the said Borough, which was held there in the month of July, in
the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and twenty-seven, and Waé daily at the
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Poll, during the continuance of the said Election.——.That he was present, Yvhen some of the
voters were objected to by James Stuart, Esquire, one of .the Candidates, and were
required to take the oath of qualification, and did hear the s?.ld James Stuart explain to
them the consequences of their taking a false oath. That neither on these_ occasions, nor
on any occasion whatever, did he hear the said James Stuart state, or in any manner
intimate, that he, as Attorney General, had alone the power of prosecuting persons for
Perjury, and that he would prosecute those who voted against him, for that offence, while
those who voted for him had nothing to fear ;—nor did he ever hear the said James Stuart
utter any words of such import, or that could bear such an interpretation; nor did he ever
hear, either during or subsequently to the said election, that such words, or words of
similar import, had ever been used by the said James Stuart, until, to his surprise, he
heard Mr. Wolfred Nelson, on his examination as a witness on the trial of Antoine
Aussant for Perjury, at the said election, in the Court of King’s Bench at Montreal, in
March last, declare that such words had been used by the said James Stuart.—That the
Deponent does not think that such extraordinary words could have been used at the said
election, without their being made a subject of conversation then, or subsequently, so as
to have reached his ears.—That the Deponent was principally referred to by the said.-James
Stuart, during the said election, for information, respecting the qualification of the voters,
and in every instance, within the knowledge of the Deponent, in which the right of a
person desirous of voting for the said James Stuart, was deemed doubtful, the particulars
of his qualification were inquired into by the said James Stuart, and if his right was found
defective, he was told so, and his vote was not accepted. That, to the knowledge of the
Deponent, several persons who had voted at former elections for the said Borough, and
were desirous of voting for the said James Stuart, having submitted to him, during the
election, and towards its close, the particulars of their supposed right, were informed by
him, that they were without the necessary qualification to entitle them to vote, and that
he therefore declined their votes, which in consequence were not given.—That among
these persons, whose votes were so rejected, there were a Mr. John Carter, a gentleman
residing in the Borough, who had voted at former elections, and who was willing to swear
to his qualification, and one Gingras, and two or three other persons, whose names the
Deponent does not now recollect, who were also willing to swear to their qualification:—
And to the Deponent’s knowledge, the said Gingras, and the said two or three other
persons, at the most critical period of the election, and when a single vote might decide
the result, by the desire of the said James Stuart, were sent to a distance from the Borough,
at his expense, lest the partisans of the adverse Candidate (some of whom were known not
to be scrupulous on this head) might induce them to swear and vote for him. That the
expense of sending these persons out of the way, amounting to eight dollars, was paid by
the Deponent, and reimbursed to him by the said James Stuart, after the election was
over. That the Deponent was present when several of the voters, who have since been
prosecuted for Perjury, were sworn to their qualification, and heard the said Wolfred
Nelson encourage them, in the most pressing manner, to take the oath, assuring them
that no harm would happen to them from it, and that he would stand between them and
harm.—And the Deponent further saith, that it is within his knowledge, that in objecting
to the qualification of voters, as well as in his attempts to make them aware of the conse-
quences of taking a false oath, the said James Stuart experienced the greatest difficulty in
obtaining a hearing, by reason of the loud clamours, and the interruption proceeding from
the adverse Candidate and his partisans, and the encouragement given to the voters to take
the oath, at all hazards. And further this Deponent saith not.

(Signed) JOHN K. WELLES.

Sworn at the City of Quebec, the 21t day of
May, 1830, before me,

(Signed) EDWD. BOWEN, J. B. R.
True Copy, J. STUART.

No. 4.

Affidavit of RosERT JoNEs, Esquire.

DisTrICT 0F )
MONTREAL. §

ROBERT JONES, of the Borough of William Henry, in the District of Montreal
in the Province of Lower Canada, Esquire, Lieutenant Colonel in the Militia of the saici
Province, and also one of His Majesty’s Justices of the Peace, for the said District, maketh
oath, that he has resided for upwards of fifty years in the said Borough, and was particularly
acquainted with the proceedings which took place at the Election of a Representative for
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the said Borough, held there in July one thousand eight hundred and twenty-seven.—That
he the Deponent attended the Hustings daily, during the continuance of the said Election,
and was seldom absent therefrom.—That he the Deponent was present when Antoine
Aussant, Frangois Vandal, Nicholas Buckner, Joseph Claprood, and others, who presented
themselves as Voters at the said Election, were objected to by James Stuart, Esquire, one
of the Candidates, and were required to take the oath of qualification, to entitle them to vote.
—That the said James Stuart, when the said oath was about to be administered to the said
persons, used every exertion in his power to make them acquainted with the nature of the
said oath, and the penalties they would incur if they swore falsely, but experienced great
difficulty in doing so, in consequence of clamorous interruptions proceeding from the
adverse Candidate, Mr. Nelson, and several of his partisans, who loudly and vehemently
urged the said persons to take the oath, the said Mr. Nelson assuring them in the most
earnest manner, that no harm could or should happen to them from doing so, and that he
the said Mr. Nelson would stand between them and harm: and the Deponent recollects
that it was stated by the said James Stuart, with reference to the impropriety of these
assurances, that the Pillory was one of the punishments annexed to the offence of Perjury,
and that Mr. Nelson could not, and would not, supply their places there.—That the said
James Stuart repeatedly represented to the Returning Officer, Mr. Crebassa, the necessity
there was, that he should explain to these individuals, they being illiterate and extremely
ignorant, the nature of the oath to be taken, that they might not unguardedly become
liable to the penalties of Perjury, but the said Returning Officer refused to do so, saying it
was his duty to administer the oath and nothing more, without any explanations on his part,
and he did accordingly administer the oath to them, amidst the clamorous outcries of Mr.
Nelson, and several of his partisans, urging them to take the oath, and the assurances of
indemnity on the part of Mr. Nelson as aforesaid.—That the said James Stuart did tell the
said persons by whom the oath of qualification wus taken us aforesaid, that if they swore
falsely, they would be prosecuted for perjury, and this was said by him, as it would have
been said by any other candidate under like circumstances :—but the said James Stuart did
not say, that he, as Attorney General, would prosecute them for perjury, or that he, as
Attorney General, had alone the right of prosecuting for perjury, or that those who voted
for him had nothing to fear, while those who voted against him would be prosecuted for
perjury, nor did the said James Stuart, on the occasion of administering the oath to the
said persons, use any words of such import, or that could bear such an interpretation, nor
did the Deponent ever hear, either during or subsequently to the.sald elecnon,' that any
such language had ever been used by the said James Stuart until to his great surprise, being
present in Court, he heard the said Mr. Nelson, on his examination as a witness, on the
trial of the said Antoine Aussant for perjury, in March last, declare that such language had
been used by the said James Stuart.—That Deponent having been long resident at the
Borough of William Henry, and having himself represented the said Borough in several
Parliaments, was frequently referred to by the said J.ames Stuart, for information respecting
the qualification of persons about to vote, or who it was expected would vote at the said
election ; and in every instance, within the knowledge of the Deponent, in which the right
of a person desirous of voting for the said J‘ame_s Stgart was deerped questuznable, the
particulars of his supposed qualification were mqu}md into by thg said James Stuart, and
if his right to vote was found defective, he was told it was 50, and his vote was not accepted.
That the Deponent is well acquainted with one F rangois St. Germain, who voted for the
said James Stuart, at the said election.—That the said St. Germain told the Deponent, the
day before he voted, that he intended to vote for the said James Stuart, and grounded his
right to vote on a reservation, which he said he had made in 2 Deed of Gift to his son, of a
house in the Borough, by which he had reserved to himself the usufruct for his life of two
apartments in the house, over and above a life rent; and thg Depqnent q]so knows that
the said St. Germain, before he gave his vote, went to the lodgings of the said James Stuart
to consult him as to his right to vote, under the reservation which he stated he had made in
the Deed of Gift to his son as aforesaid.—That the conduct of the said James Stuart,
throughout the said election, in every instance, in which it came w1thlp the knowledge of
the Deponent, was marked by fairness, and a strict regard to propriety.—That to the
Deponent’s knowledge persons who had voted at for.mer elections, and were'desn-ous of
voting for the said James Stuart, were interrogated by him as to the nature of tl(llen}'] supposed
qualification, and he being of opinion that they had no right to vo}ge, declme1 their vot(laS,
which were not given.—That the Deponent has also a knowledge that several persons who
were desirous of voting for the said James Stuart, and were willing to tal\ed_the oath of
qualification, towards the close of the election, were sent out of the way to a ;‘Staml:\e from
the Borough, by the desire, and at the expense of the said JameshStufa:rt(i a t(ler le ‘hi}]d
inquired into their supposed qual}ﬁcatlon, and ha.d ascertained that they had no legal right
to vote :—and the reason then assigned by the said James Stuart for this §teﬁ) wj?s,h that the
partisans of the adverse Candidate, not being scrupulous as to mear}s, n}nlxg tiI} ;) ese per-
sons were not sent out of the way, induce them to vote for him.——And further this Deponent

saith not. (Signed) R. JONES.

Sworn at William Henry, this 9th day
of June, 1830, before me,

(Signed) ~ANTHONY VON IFFLAND, J. P.
True Copy, J. STUART.
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No. .
Affidavit of AxruoNY VoN IFFLAND, Esquire.

DisrricT oF
MoNTREAL. §

ANTHONY VON IFFLAND, of the Borough of William Henry, in the District of
Montreal, in the Province of Lower Canada, Esquire, Doctor of Physic, and one of His
Majesty’s Justices of the Peace for the said District of Montreal, maketh oath, that he has a
particular knowledge of the circumstances which occurred at the Election of a Repre-
sentative for the said Borough, held there in July, one thousand eight hundred and twenty-
seven,—he the Deponent having been present daily at the Hustings, aud having only
occasionally absented himself from them.—That the Deponent was present when Antoine
Aussant, Antoine Hus, alias Cournoyer, Nicholas Buckner, Frangois Vandal, and others
who presented themselves as voters at the said Election, were objected to by James Stuart,
Esquire, one of the Candidates, and were required to take the oath of qualification to
entitle them to vote.—That the said James Stuart, previous to the administering of the oath
to the said persons last named, endeavoured to make them acquainted with the nature of
the oath they were about to take, and the penal consequences they would incur, by swearing
falsely, but found great difficulty in doing so, by reason of the interruptions he experienced
from the adverse Candidate, Mr. Nelson, and several of his partisans, who with vehemence
and loud clamour urged the said persons, and particularly the said Aussant, Hus, alias
Cournoyer, Buckner, and Vandal, to take the oath; the said Mr. Nelson assuring them, in the
most positive terms, that no harm should, or could, happen to them from doing so, and that
he the said Mr. Nelson would stand ketween them and harm; in reference to which
assurances, and by way of putting the said persons on their guard, it was stated by the said
James Stuart, that the Pillory was one of the punishments annexed to the offence of Perjury,
and that Mr. Nelson could not, and would not, supply their places there.—That the said
James Stuart, to prevent the effect of the assurances and solicitations proceeding from the
adverse Candidate, repeatedly represented to the Returning Officer, Mr. Crebassa, the
necessity there was that he should explain to these individuals, they being extremely
ignorant, the nature of the oath to be taken, that they might not be unguardedly involved
in the penalties of Perjury, but the said Returning Officer refused to do so, saying it was
his duty to administer the oath, and nothing more, without any explanation on his part, and
he did accordingly administer the oath to them, amidst the loud and importunate requests
of the said Mr. Nelson frequently repeated, that they would take the oath, and his assurances
of indemnity as aforesaid.—That the said James Stuart did tell the said persons, by whom
the oath of qualification was taken as aforesaid, that if they swore falsely, they would be
prosecuted for Perjury, and this was said by him, in such terms as would have been used by
any other Candidate, under like circumstances;—but the said James Stuart did not say,
that he, as Attorney General, would prosecute them for Perjury,—or that he, as Attorney
General, had alone the right to prosecute for perjury,—or that those who voted for him had
nothing to fear, while those who voted against him would be prosecuted for perjury ;—nor
did the said James Stuart, on the occasion of administering the oath to the said persons, use
-any words of such import, or that could bear such an interpretation ;—nor did the Deponent
ever hear, either during or subsequently to the said election, that any such language had
ever been used by the said James Stuart ; until, to his great surprise, he learnt that the said
Mr. Nelson, on his examination as a witness on the trial of the said Antoine Aussant, for
Perjury, in March last, had declared, that such language had been used by the said James
Stuart, when the said Antoine Aussant took the oath of qualification as aforesaid.—That the
Deponent, having been long resident at the Borough of William Henry, was frequently
referred to by the said James Stuart, for information respecting the qualification of persons
about to vote, or who it was expected would vote at the said election, and in every instance,
within the knowledge of the Deponent, in which the right ofa person desirous of voting for
the said James Stuart was deemed questionable, the particulars of his supposed qualification
were inquired into by the said James Stuart, and if his right to vote was found defective, he
was told it was so, and his vote was not accepted.—That the Deponent is well acquain,ted
with one Frangois St. Germain, who voted for the said James Stuart, at the said election.—
That, on the first day of the election, being the twenty-fifth day of July, the Deponent met
the said Frangois St. Germain, when he signified a desire to vote for the said James Stuart,
and, upon the Deponent’s inquiring into the nature of his qualification, he told the Depo-
nent that in the Gift which he had made to his son, of his house in the Borough, he bad
reserved to himself the usufruct during hislife of two apartments in the said house over and
above a life rent, and he referred the Deponent to Colonel Jones for the truth of this fact.—
That th‘e Deponent thereupon advised the said Frangois St. Germain to consult the said
J ames Stuart, as to the suﬂicnency. of his qu:ithﬁcatlon, to entitle him to vote; and, the next
morning, having again met the said Francois St. Germain, he told the Deponent that he
had seen the said James Stuart, at his lodgings, and that the said James Stuart had told
him, that under the reservation he had made he could vote.—That the Deponent felt anxious
to ascertain the precise terms of the reservation which the said Frangois St. Germain alledged
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he had made, and went to the office of Mr. Crebassa, Public Notary, by whom it was
understood that the Deed of Gift from the said St. Germain to his son had been passed, for
the purpose of seeing the said Deed, but he could not obtain access to it.—That the conduct
of the said James Stuart, throughout the said election, in every instance in which it came
w1th1r} the knowledge of the Deponent, was marked by fairness, and a strict regard to
propriety; and the Deponent has a personal knowledge, that several persons desirous of
voting for the said James Stuart, and willing to take the oath of qualification, among whom
were one Gingras and one Bellan,—at the most critical period of the election, and when a
single vote might determine the result of it, were sent to a distance from the Borough, by
the desire, and at the expense of the said James Stuart, lest the partisans of the adverse
Candidate might induce them to vote for him; it being well known, that some of them were
not scrupulous as to the legal sufficiency of votes, or the means of obtaining them.—And

further the Deponent saith not.
(Signed) ~ANTHONY VON IFFLAND, M. D.

Sworn at William Henry, this 10th day of
June, 1830, before me,

(Signed) R. JONES, J. P.
True Copy, J. STUART.

That further, the above said Deponent maketh oath, that at the election of a Repre-
sentative for the said Borough of William Henry, held in the month of August, in the year
one thousand eight hundred and twenty four, one Catherine Lameére took the oath of quali-
fication to entitle her to vote at the said election, under an honest belief on her part, that
she had the requisite legal estate, during the temporary absence of her husband, Paul
Levalle, to qualify her as a voter, and she did after taking the said oath vote for Norman
Fitzgerald Uniack, Esquire, then His Majesty’s Attorney General for the Province of Lower
Canada, and one of the Candidates at the said election —'hat at the election for a Repre-
sentative for the said borough, held there in July one thousand eight hundred and twenty-
seven, she the said Catherine Lamére signified to the said Deponent her desire of voting for
the said James Stuart, Esquire, then one of the Candidates, but, on explaining to the said
James Stuart the particulars of her supposed qualification, her vote was declined as contrary
to Law, and therefore not given at the said election.

(Signed) ANTHONY VON IFFLAND, M. D.

Sworn at Willium Henry, this 10th day of
June, 1830, before me,

(Signed) R. JONES, J. P.
True Copy, J. STUART.

No. 6.
Affidavit of Mr. RicHARD Burkr.

DistricT oF )
MONTREAL. §

RICHARD BURKE, of the Borough of William Henry, in the District of Montrgal,
Gentleman, maketh oath, that he was particularly acquainted with the proceedings which
took place at the election for the said Borough, in the month of July, one thousand eight
hundred and twenty-seven, having attended the Poll daily, during the continuance of the
said Election.—That he knows Frangois St. Germain, who at that time resided in the said
Borough. That previous to the said Frangois St. Germain having voted at the said Election,
he told the Deponent that he would explain the nature of his qualification to James Stuart,
Esquire, one of the Candidates at the said election, which qualification, he then also told
the Deponent, consisted in a life estate in two apartments, making part of a dwelling-
house which he had given to his son, which said two apartments he had reserved to himself
for his life, by the deed of gift which he had executed to his said son.

. That, to the Deponent’s knowledge, the said James Stuart was scrupulous in the
examination of the qualification of persons desirous of voting for him, whose right to do
so was thought in any way doubtful, and the Deponent has a personal knowledge that
several persons desirous of voting for the said James Stuart, and willing to take the oath,
were prevented by him from doing so, after he had examined their papers, and had
ascertained from them that they had not a legal right to vote. That the Deﬁonent has a
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perfect knowledge, that one Francois Thibault, who appeared willing to take the oath,
and vote for the said James Stuart, having submitted the papers establishing his supposed
qualification to the said James Stuart, on the day the elgction ended, and a short time
before the closing of the poll, was told by the said James Stuart, that he had no right to
vote, and his vote was declined.—That one Joseph Claprood, who voted at the said election
for Mr. Nelson, and who has since been convicted of Perjury, for having then falsely
sworn to a qualification to enable him to vote, came to the Deponent’s house, during the
election, and before he voted as aforesaid, and offered to the Deponent to vote for the said
James Stuart; but the Deponent, knowing that he had no right to vote, and that the said
James Stuart constantly declined illegal votes, rejected his otler, and the said Claprood
then went away, and was afterwards induced to vote for the said Mr. Nelson. That the
Deponent was present, when different individuals, offering their votes at the Poll, were
objected to by the said James Stuart, and also when some of the persons who have since
been prosecuted for Perjury at the said election, took the oath of qualification, and voted
for the said Mr. Nelson.—That, neither on those occasions, nor at any time during the said
election, did this Deponent hear the said James Stuart say, or in any manner intimate,
that he, as Attorney General, had alone the power of prosecuting for Perjury, and that he
would prosecute those who voted against him for that offence, while those who voted for
him had nothing to fear ;—nor did he ever hear the said James Stuart utter any words of
such import, or that could bear such an interpretation; nor did he ever hear, to his
knowledge, either during or subsequently to the said election, that such words, or words
of similar import, had ever been used by the said James Stuart, until, to his surprise, he
learnt that Mr. Wolfred Nelson, the Candidate above mentioned had, on his examination
as a witness on the trial of Antoine Aussant, for Perjury, at the said election, declared that
such words had been used by the said James Stuart. That the Deponent thinks that if
such extraordinary language had been used by the said James Stuart, it would have been
made the subject of conversation, and must have reached his ears.—That the conduct of
the said James Stuart, throughout the said election, was marked by the greatest fairness;
and although intimately acquainted with the proceedings of the said election, from the first
to last, the Deponent never observed the slightest deviation, on the part of the said James
Stuart, from such fairness of conduct.—That the said James Stuart, in his attempts to put
voters on their guard against taking the oath, without a legal qualification, was on several
occasions, to the knowledge of the Deponent, interrupted by the said Mr. Nelson, the
adverse Candidate and his partisans, who urged such voters to take the oath, the said Mr.
Nelson at the same time assuring them that he would stand between them and harm.—
And further this deponent saith not.
(Signed) RICHD. BURKE.
Sworn at William Henry, this 8th day of
June, 1830, before me,

(Signed) ANTHONY VON IFFLAND, J.P.
True Copy, J. STUART.

No. 7.

Affidawvit of Mr. JouN CARTER.

DisTRICT OF
MONTREAL. }

JOHN CARTER, of the Borough of William Henry, in the Distri i
the Province of Lower Canada, Gentleman, maketh oath, t);lat at the etlzlgttic?rf lx\)lfogt;g:l’rlen
sentative for the said Borough, held in the month of August, in the year one thousla)mci
eight hundred and twenty-four, he, the Deponent, took the oath of qualification, to entitle
him to vote at the said election, under an honest belief on his part, that he had th’e requisite
legal estate to qualify him as a voter, and he did, after taking the said oath, vote for N((]n'man
F. Uniacke, Esquire, one of the Candidates at the said election.—That ;t the election of
a Representative for the said Borough, held there in July, one thousand’eight hundred and
twenty-seven, he, the Deponent, was desirous of voting for James Stuart, Esquire, one of
the Candidates at the said election, and signified to the said James Stuart’quclcl1 his, desire
at the same time explaining to the said James Stuart the particulars of his supposed qua-
lification.—That the said James Stuart, after learning these particulars, told tl?ep De ogent
%at he could, by }l;ea}ion of ﬁ]emf,‘ claim no right to vote, and with ::ivility dec]ingd the

eponent’s vote, which was, therefore, not given at t i ion.—
Degonent > 1ote, W] > A g he said election.—And further the
Sign
Sworn at William Henry, this 10th day of (Slgned) JOHN CARTER.
June, 1830, before me,

(Signed) R. JONES, J. P.
True Copy, J. STUART.



APPENDIX. 31

No. 8.

Affiduoit of My. MICHAEL GLACKMEYER.

DisrtricT oF
MoONTREAL.

MICHAEL GLACKMEYER, of Berthier, in the District of Montreal, Gentleman,
maketh oath, that he acted as Clerk of the Poll at an Election held at the Borough of Wil-
liam Henry, in July one thousand eight hundred and twenty-seven, for the Election of a
Representative to serve for the said Borough in the Provincial Parliament.—That he was
present when Antoine Aussant, Antoine Paul Hus dit Cournoyer, Nicholas Buckner,
Francois Vandal, and others, took the oath required by law as to their qualification to vote.
—That, when the said persons last named offered themselves as voters, they were objected
to by James Stuart, Esquire, one of the Candidates at the said Election, on the ground of
their not being qualified to vote.—That the said James Stuart, as far as he had it in his
power to do, explained to the said persons their want of right to vote, and the penalties
they would incur, if they swore falsely; but the said James Stuart did not, either on the
occasions of the swearing of the said persons, and of the giving of their votes, nor at any
other time, to the knowledge of the Deponent, declare or say, that, as Attorney General,
he alone had a right to prosecute persons guilty of perjury, and that those who voted for
him had nothing to fear, while those who voted against him would be prosecuted, nor did
he use any words of such import; that the said James Stuart seemed desirous of putting
the said persons above named on their guard, and explained to them the consequences they
would incur by swearing falsely, and nothing more; at the same time telling them, that if
they did, notwithstanding, swear falsely, they would be prosecuted for it.

(Signed) ML. GLACKMEYER.

Sworn at Montreal, this 11th day of
March, 1830, before me,

. (Signed) SAMUEL GALL, J. I
True Copy, J. STUART.

No. 9.
Affidavit of Mr. Louis IPauvt,

District DE
MoNTREAL.

LOUIS PAUL, Habitant de la Paroisse de Sorel, ayant été assermenté sur les S:ai'nts
Evangiles, depose et dit, qu’i} s’esﬁ trouvé ’présent P l’électlorl tenile au/Bo/urg de William
Henry, au mois de Juillet, mil huit cent vingt sept, pour y/ehre un Réprésentant pour /le
dit Bourg, dans le Parlement Provincial.—Que le deposant étoit présent quand les nommés
Antoine Aussant et Antoine Hus dit Cournoyer, depuis poursuivis pour parjure a la dite
élection, se sont presentés pour donner leur voix comme voteurs a la’dlte_ élection. Que le
déposant a entendu James Stuart, Ecuier, un deS‘dltS (_Janghdat's, prévenir l¢3§ dits Aussant
et Cournoyer, qu'ils mavoient pas droit de voter i la dite élection, et que s'ils le faisoient,
ils seroient sujets & étre poursuivis pour parjure. Que le dit James Stuar,t a prié loﬁic’xfar
Rapporteur dexpliquer aux dites personnes leur defaut de droit, a fin d’empécher qu’ils
ne s'exposassent aux mauvaises suites du parjure, mais l'officier Rapporteur a Ilepondu que
son devoir se bornoit & les faire préter serment, et en effet leur a admlm.stre le serment
requis en tel cas. Que sur les ten.tatlfs que le dit J ames Stuart a\falt d_e falre cpmpr:endre
aux dits Aussant et Cournoyer qu'ils n'avoient pas droit de voter a la gxte élection, lautre
candidat, Mr. Nelson les a assuré qu'ils avoient droit (}e voter, et qu il les garantiroit de
toutes conséquences qui pourroient s'ensuivre, et en méme tems le dit l\:lr. Nelson et ses
partisans alors presents ont gngagé les dits Aussant et Cournoyer de préter le serment.—
Que le déposant étoit aussi présent quand Nicholas Buc!mel,’, depuis poursuivi_pour
parjure, Sest presenté la premicre fois, pour voter a la dite élection, et a entfnd,u les
explications qui ont été faites au dit Buckner, alors, pour le faire compl;gndre qu'il n’avoit
pas droit de voter, lesquelles ont paru 'convamcre_le dit Buckner, qu'il ne pouvoit pas
voter, et il s’est retiré sans donner sa voix.—Que ni dans les occasions ci dessus mention-

. : b ") . . -
nées, ni en aucunc autre, il n’a entendu Mr. James Stuart dire, que ceux qui voteraient
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contre lui sans en avoir le dl_-oit,\ seroient pours.uivi’s pour ‘parJure,dtandt}x‘s que c.eu‘;( qui
voteroient pour lui n’avoient rien a qramdre, et il n'a jamais entendu dire au dit ames
Stuart qu’étant Procureur Général il pourroit en agir ainsi :—-/Il/n a jamais entendu dire
non plus, au dit James Stuart, que sa_charge de Procureur Général donnoit a.lul, seul le
droit de faire des poursuites pour parjure, et que ceux qul vgtel'?lent pour lui n’avoient
rien 4 craindre de ce coté la. Et le deppsant dit de plus qu’il n'a pas entendu proferer
aucunes paroles par le dit James Stuart, a Toccasion des votes données par les dits Aussant
et Cournoyer, et des explications faites au dit Buckner comme susdit, ni en aucun autre
tems, aux quelles on pourroit donner un tels sens ou signification.—Que le dit James
Stuart dans les occasions susdites, n’a fait que prévenir les dits Aussant, Cournoyer et
Buckner, des mauvaises suites qui s'ensuivroient, s'ils faisoi ent un faux serment, et rien de
plus, et cétoit avec difficulté qu’il a pi se fal/re entendre, en voul’{mt le_faire, 4 cause de
Iopposition violente que faisoit le parti opposé aux explications qu’il vouloit donner.

Sa
(Signé) LOUIS x PAUL.
Marque.

Assermenti a Montréal, le 11¢
Mars, 1830, devant moi,

(Signé) SAMUEL GALE, J. P.

True Copy, J. STUART.

No. 10.

Affidavit of Mr. BExJAMIN JOHN ScHILLER, of the City of Montreal, Gentleman,

DisTricT DE
MoNTREAL.

BENJAMIN JEAN SCHILLER, de Montreal, dit District, I'un des huissiers de
la Cour du Banc du Roi, dans et pour le dit District, ci-devant Capitaine dans le troisiéme
bataillon de la milice incorporée, pendant la derniére guerre avec les états unis de I’ Amerique,
aprés serment prété sur les Saints Evangiles, deposé et dit, que dans le terme criminel de la
dite Cour qui se tint en Mars, mil huit cent trente, Henry Crebassa, Ecuier, Notaire Public, de-
meurant au Bourg William-Henry, autrement appellé Sorel, étoit 4 Montreal susdit comme I'un
des temoins de la dite Cour, a ce que croitle deposant. Que vers la fin du dit terme criminel,
le dit Henry Crebassa, que ce Deposant connoit familicrement depuis plusieurs années, ayant
rencontré le Deposant a la Maison de Justice, lui dit que lui le dit Henry Crebassa avoit
été une couple de fois chez le Procureur General (scavoir I'Honorable James Stuart)
pour signer un affidavit, mais qu’il n’avoit pas trouvé Monsieur le Procureur General a son
logis. Que le deposant croit, que le dit Henry Crebassa lui dit ceci pour que lui le Deposant
le repetit au dit Procureur General, que lui le Deposant, en sa qualité d’huissier, étoit dans
Ihabitude de voir souvent. Que le lendemain, ou sur lendemain, le dit Procureur Gene-
ral, étant sur le point de partir pour le District des Trois Riviéres, rémit au dit Deposant
TPaffidavit ci-annexé, lui disant en méme temps de se rendre au dit Bourg William-Henry,
et de faire signer le dit affidavit au dit Henry Crebassa, aprés que celui-ci auroit été
diiement assermenté devantle Lieut. Col. Jones, 'un de Juges de Paix de sa Majesté pour
le dit District de Montreal. Que le deposant s’étant rendu chez le dit Lieut. Col. Jones,
celui-ci envoya chercher le dit Crebassa. Que le dit Crebassa étant arrivé, le dit Lieut. Col.
Jones lui donna le dit affidavit a lire; qu’ayant achevé de le lire, il lui fit 14 deux fois par
une des personnes lors présentes. Que le dit Crebassa declara alors bien comprendre le con-
tenu du dit affidavit, et ajouta qu’il n’avoit aucune objection de le signer, mais qu’il vouloit
auparavant voir si ce qui y étoit dit des voteurs dont les noms y étoient mentionnés s’accordoit
ounon avec son livre de poll, et que si Paffidavit se trouvoit 4 cet &gard conforme avec son dit
livre de poll, il reviendroit dans 'aprés midi le signer. Que le dit Crebassa vouliit alors em-
porter le dit affidavit avec lui, mais que le Deposant le lui refusa, parceque le Deposant sqavoit
parcequ'il avoit vii 4 election, que le dit Crebassa étoit plutét interessé pour le candidat
adverse que pour le dit Procureur General. Que sur la promesse du dit Crebassa, le dit
Deposant laissa I'affidavit chez le dit Juge de Paix, et s'en retourna & Montreal. Que le
Depos}ant peut dire sous serment que Paffidavit ci-annexé est le méme affidavit dont il fat
chargé comme dit est, parcequ’il en connoit bien Iécriture et quau Jurat d'icelui se
trouvent les mots * Wilham Henry”, qui furent ajoutés a icelui, au dit Bourg, en sa pré-
sence, aussi bien que la date ou le jour de la date exprimé par les chiffres “ 17.” Le De-
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posant ajoute qu’il & revii avec surprise le dit affidavit, sans étre révétu de la signature du di
Crebassa. Et le Deposant n’a plus rien dit.

(Signt) B. J. SCHILLER.

Assermenté pardevant moi le deuxiéme jour de Mai,
1831, & Montreal susdit.

(Signé)  BENJAMIN HOLMES, J. P.
True Copy, J. STUART.

Afffidavit referred to in the foregoing Affidavit of Mr. BENSAMIN JOHN SCHILLER.

DISTRICT DE
MoNTREAL.

HENRY CREBASSA, Ecuier, Notaire Public au Bourg de William-Henry, ayant été
assermenté sur les saints Evangiles, deposé et dit, quil a rempli la charge d’officier
rapporteur & Pelection qui s’est téniie au dit Bourg, au mois de Juillet, mil huit cent
vingt sept, pour y élire un representant pour le dit Bourg dans le Parlement Provincial.—
Que le Déposant en sa qualité d’officier rapporteur comme susdit a fait préter serment aux
nommés Antoine Aussant, Antoine Hus dit Cournoyer, Nicholas Buckner, Francois
Vandal, et autres, avant de regevoir leurs votes a la dite election. Qu’au moment ol les
dites personnes susnommées se sont presentées pour donner leurs voix, James Stuart,
Ecuier, un des candidats, a objecté a la reception d'icelles comme n’étant pas régévables,
faute de qualification de leur part. Que le dit James Stuart a prié le Déposant d’expliquer
aux dites personnes susnommées leur defaut de qualification, et les consequences aux-
quelles elles s’exposeroient en prétant le serment réquis en tel cas, ce que le Déposant a
decliné de faire, croyant que son devoir se bornoit & leur faire préter le dit serment, et pas
autre chose.—Que le dit James Stuart la-dessus, en autant que opposition qu’y a fait le
candidat adverse et ses partisans le lui & permis, a expliqué aux dites personnes ci-dessus
nommées leur defaut de droit de voter, et leur a aussi fait savoir la punition & laquelle ils
s’exposeroient en faisant un faux serment: Mais que le dit James Stuart, en aucune des
occasions susdites, ou les dites personnes susnommées ont prété serment comme susdit,
ni en aucun autre tems, pendant la dite election, 4 la connoissance du Deposant, n’a dit
ni donné a entendre qu’en sa qualité de Procureur General, il avoit seul le droit de pour-
suivre les personnes qui se rendroient coupables de parjure, ni que ceux qui voteroient
contre lui seroient poursuivis tandis que ceux qui voteroient pour lui n’auroient rien a
craindre. Et le Deposant dit de plus qu’il n’a aucune connoissance que pendant le cours
de la dite election, des expressions pareilles, ni aucunes expressions auxquelles on pourroit
donner un tel sens aient ¢té proferées ou employées par le dit James Stuart.—Qu'il a paru
au Deposant que le dit James Stuart, en ce qu’il a dit au dites personnes susnommées,
I'occasion des serments qu'ils ont fait a la dite election, a voulu les mettre sur leur garde,
en les prévenant des pénalités auxquelles elles s’exposeroient en faisant de faux serments,
et pas autre chose.

Assermenté a William Henry, ce 11 Mars, 1830,
devant mot.

The foregoing affidavit, not signed or sworn to, is the paper, writing, or affidavit
referred to in the affidavit of George Okill Stuart, Esquire, sworn to before the Honourable
James Kerr, Esquire, on the 14th day of May, 1831.

(Signed) J. KERR.
G. O. STUART.

Affidavit of GEorGE OxiLL STUART, Esquire.
PROVINCE OF LOWER CANADA.

DISTRICT OF
QUEBEC.
To wit:

GEORGE OKILL STUART, of the City of Quebec, in the Province of Lower Canada,
Esquire, Advocate, maketh oath, that he the Deponent, being clerk to James Stt;art, Esquire,
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His Majesty’s Attorney General for the Province of Lower Canada, was em’ployed by the said
James Stuart, in that capacity, during the criminal term of His Majesty’s Court of King’s
Bench held at Montreal, in the month of March, in the year of our Lord one thousand
eight hundred and thirty.—That he the Deponent was present in the lodging§ of the said
James Stuart, at Rasco’s Hotel, on or about the tenth day of March, in the year
last aforesaid, at the close of the said term, when Henry Crebassa, of_ the Borough of
William Henry, Esquire, Public Notary, being there, expressed his readiness to make an
affidavit to contradict certain facts that had been stated, a day or two before, by Wolfred
Nelson, on his examination as a witness, on the trial of one Antoine Aussant for perjury,
upon which the said James Stuart reduced to writing the statement of the said Henry
Crebassa in the form of an affidavit, the rough draft of which, after it had been read over,
and approved by the said Henry Crebassa, was given to the Deponent, with directions to
make a fair copy of it.—That the paper-writing hereunto annexed, purporting to be an
affidavit of the said Henry Crebassa, not signed or sworn to, is the fair copy of the rough
draft of an affidavit, made by the Deponent as aforesaid, and is a true copy of the said
rough draft.—That the said paper-writing, being such fair copy, was, in the presence of the
Deponent, carefully and deliberately read over by the said James Stuart to the said Henry
Crebassa, who declared it to be perfectly correct, and expressed his desire to swear to it
immediately.—That the Deponent received the said paper-writing from the hands of the
said James Stuart, in the presence of the said Henry Crebassa, with directions to go with
the said Henry Crebassa before one of the Judges of His Majesty’s Court of King’s Bench,
in order that he might swear to it; and the Deponent did accordingly go with the said
Henry Crebassa to the Court House, for that purpose. That the only Judge whom the
Deponent and the said Henry Crebassa found at the said Court House was the Honourable
Mr. Justice Pyke, who was then on the Bench, and could not be interrupted for the pur-
pose of taking the said affidavit, and thereupon the said Henry Crebassa said he would call
again at two o'clock in the afternoon at the lodgings of the said James Stuart, for the pur-
pose of going with the Deponent, before a Judge, to swear to the said affidavit.—That the
said Henry Crebassa did not again come to the lodgings of the said James Stuart, for the
purpose last aforesaid, either during that day or any subsequent day, while the said James
Stuart remained at the said City of Montreal; and the Deponent, in the course of the same
day, learnt that the said Henry Crebassa had left town, on his return to William Henry.
And further the Deponent saith not.
(Signed) G. O. STUART.

Sworn at the City of Quebec, this 14th day of
May, 1831, before me,
(Signed) J. KERR, J. B. R.

True Copy, J. STUART.

No. 11.

Affidavit of JosEPH ALLARD, of Sorel, Labourer.

DISTRICT DE
Mox~NTREAL.

JOSEPH ALLARD, de Sorel, Journalier, ayant fait serment, depose et dit comme
suit :—dJ’étois le 20 A’ Aoust dernier, de bon matin, sur le Quai de M. See & Sorel, quand Louis
Marcoux, du méme lieu, Contracteur de Bois pour les Steam-Boats, est venu au quai, et m’a
demandé si je voulois deposer contre Camerere.—Je lui ai fait réponse, “ Non, M. Marcoux,
je ne veux point:” il a repliqué, ¢ Viens donc.” Aprés quelques importunités, je I'ai accom-
pagné a sa maison, ol il a versé du rum dans un  tumbler.”— Ensuite, Je suis parti pour aller
chez moi: en revenant au bout de quelque tems, j'ai passé devant sa porte: il m’a appellé,
et w’a fait rentrer de nouveau, et alors m'a demandé de deposer contre Pierre Lusignan,
ce que Jai refusé: il ma ensuite dit, ¢ Va-t-en chez M. Jean Crebassa, querir une pinte de
rum."—J’ai été querir le rum, et I'ayant livré au dit Marcoux, il m’a donné encore un verre
de rum. Ensuite, il m’a dit, “ Va querir Noel Guillot pour deposer avec toi contre le bon
horpme St. Germain.”"—J"ai été chercher Guillot, comme il m’avoit dit; et, étant de retour,
Guillot et moi nous nous sommes trouvés ensemble avec le dit Marcoux.— Alors Marcoux m’a
‘cZu:,,“ Fais tO,l done un honneur de deposer contre Camerere.”—J’ai dit alors & Marcoux,

L’homme n’a pas fait serment sur le poll.”—¢ Eh bien,” disoit Marcoux, “ c'est bon, nous
lui ferons payer dix louis d’amende.” Tout de suite, aprés avoir ainsi parlé, Marcoux
Sest mis a ecrire ce que je lui disois (du moins, il me disoit que c’étoit cela qu’il faisoit). 11
m’a demandé entre autres choses qui étoient les voisins de Camerere.—Je lui ai dit que c’étoit
le bon,homme _Paul Lefebvre et Baptiste St. Jean. Marcoux m’a dit que non, que c’étoit
marque sur le livre de poll autrement, que c'étoit marqué sur le livre de poll, que John Hall
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et Pierre Credit étoient les voisins de Camerere.—J’ai dit 2 M. Marcoux, “ Prenez garde,
parceque les voisins sont ceux que je vous ai dit.”— M. Marcoux a repondu, “ Ils verront leurs
erreurs.”—Enfin M. Marcoux a complété son écrit, qui contenoit 4 ce que je croyois ma de-
position.—Mais il ne m’en a pas fait lecture dans sa maison, et je ne lui ai jamais dit que Ca-
merere avoit fait serment au poll. Ayant complété son écrit, Marcoux m'a demandé d’aller
dans I'Isle de M. Morrison, ol jai été avec lui et une douzaine d’autres personnes, parmi
lesquelles se trouvoient M. Jean Crebassa, M. Kimbert, Guillot, &c. &c. Etant arrivé a 'Isle,
j’avois tant bit de rum que je ne sgavois pas 2 peine ce que je faisois. Peu de temps apres,
Mons. Douaire Bondy est arrivé a I'Isle, et je me rappelle qu'il ma demandé si toutes les
depositions étoient pretes. Mons. Marcoux lui a repondu que non, mais que bientot elles
seroient prétes. Au bout de quelque temps, j'ai été appellé pour faire serment a la depo-
sition, Mons. Kimbert s’est mis (2 ce que j’ai cru) en devoir de la lire. Je ne me rappelle
Pas 2 present du contenu de ce qu'on me lisoit, mais je me rappelle d’avoir dit que * son
nom n'¢toit pas Jean Camerere ;” a quoi Mons. Marcoux a repondu, ¢ C’est nous autres qui
marquons cela.” Dans le temps j’étois bien pris de boisson, et ne comprenois pas que je
faisois serment de la verité de ce qu’on me lisoit, et Jétois hors d’état de pouvoir en juger.

Il y a a-peu-prés vingt jours que le dit Marcoux m’a rencontré sur le quai de Mons.
Molson, et il m'a dit, ¢ Tu feras bien de te sauver pour ce que t’a fait & Berthier™ (voulant
dire dans I'Isle de Mons. Morrison, qui est & Berthier.) J'ai repondu, ¢ Si vous avez fait
quelque vilaine affaire, je n'en suis pas l'auteur, et je ne me sauverai pas.”—Dit de plus
qu’il ne s¢ait pas écrire.

Affirmé devant mo: ce 14 Nov. 1827.
(Signé) SAMUEL GALE, J. P.

True Copy, J. STUART.

No. 12.

Copy of an Indictment for Subornation of Perjury against Louis Marcoux.

PROVINCE OF LOWER CANADA.

DistrICcT OF
MONTREAL. §
, .
To wit:

Be it remembered that at a Session of Oyer and Terminer and General Gaol Delivery
of our Sovereign Lord the King, of and for the district of Montreal in the province of
Lower Canada, begun and holden at the Court House in the City of Montreal in the said
district of Montreal on Friday the second day of November in the eighth year of the reign
of our Sovereign Lord George the Fourth, by the grace of God, of the United Kingdom of
Great Britain and Ireland, King, Defender of the Faith, before the Honourable James
Reid, Esquire, Chief Justice of His Majesty’s Court of Kings Bench for the district of
Montreal, Louis Charles Foucher, George Pyke, and Norman Fitzgerald Uniacke,
Esquires, Justices of the same last-mentioned Court, John Richardson, Toussaint Pothier,
Samue! Gale, and Louis Guy, Esquires, and others their fellows, Justices of our said Lord
the King, assigned by Letters Patent of our said Lord the King under the Great Seal of
the said Province, to the same Justices above named and others, their fellows, Justices of
our said Lord the King, or any two or more of them, directed, of whom one of them the
said James Reid, Louis Charles Foucher, George Pyke, and Norman .Fxtzggrald Uniacke,
amongst others in the said Letters Patent named our said Lord the King willed to be one,
to inquire more fully the truth by the oath of good and lawful men of the said district
of Montreal, and by other ways, methods, and means, by which they should or might
better know, as well within liberties as without, by whom the truth of the matter might be
better known and inquired into, of all treasons, misprisions of treason, insurrections,
rebellions, counterfeitings, clippings, washings, false coinings, and other fal.smes of the
money of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Ireland, and all other kingdoms and
dominions whatsoever, and of all murders, felonies, manslaughters, killings, burglaries, rapes
of women, unlawful meetings and conventicles, unlawful uttering of words, assemblies,
misprisions, confederacies, false allegations, trespasses, riots, routs, retentions, escapes, con-
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tempts, fulsities, negligences, concealments, maintenances, oppressions, champerty, deceits,
and all other evil doings, offences, and injuries whasoever, and also the accessaries of the
same, within the district aforesaid as well within liberties as without, by whomsoever, and
in what manner soever done, committed or perpet.rated, and.by what person or persons,
when, how, and after what manner, and of all articles and circumstances concerning the
premises, and of every of them, or any one or more of them, in any manner whatsoever,
and the said treasons and other the premises according to the laws and customs of England,
and of the said province of Lower Canada for this time, to hear and determine, and also
justices of our said Lord the King, assigned by other Letters Patent of our said Lord the
King, under his Great Seal of the said province to the same justices above named, and
others their fellows, or any two or more of them directed, of whom one of them the said
James Reid, Louis Charles Foucher, George Pyke, and Norman Flt_zgerald Umac]&e,
amongst others in the said last-mentioned Letters Patent named our said Lord the King
willed to be one, the gaol of our said Lord the King of his said district of Montreal of the
prisoners therein being, to deliver, by the oath of Henry M‘Kenzie, Alexander M‘Kgnzne,
Jules Quesnel, Edward Martial Leprohon, Louis F. de Chambault, John Jamieson,
Thomas Barron, Charles Stuart, Louis Barbeau, Jacques L. de Martigny, John Yule,
Arthur Webster, John Porteous, George D. Arnoldi, William Smith, Charles Morrison,
Isaac Valentine, Joseph Roy, Jacques P. S. de Beaujeu, William Molson, Samuel Gerrard,
and George Gregory, Esquires, good and lawful men of the district of Montreal aforesaid,
now here sworn and charged to inquire for our said Lord the King for the body of the said
district, touching and concerning the premises in the said two several Letters Patent men-
tioned, it is presented in manner and form as in the Bill of Indictment to this Schedule
annexed is contained.

MonTrEAL. To wit:

The jurors for Our Lord the King upon their oath present,—That heretofore, to wit,
on the twenty-fifth day of July, in the eighth year of the reign of our Sovereign Lord
George the Fourth, by the grace of God of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and
Ireland, King, Defender of the Faith, at the Borough of William Henry in the parish of
St. Peter of Sorel, in the county of Richelieu, in the district of Montreal, an election of one
burgess of the said Borough to represent the said Borough in the Assembly of this Province,
to be holden at the City of Quebec, on the twenty-fifth day of August then next ensuing,
was duly had and held, by virtue of a certain writ of election of our said Sovereign Lord,
the King before them duly issued, and directed to the returning officer of the said Borough,
under and in pursuance of a certain Instrument of our said Sovereign Lord the King, under
the Great Seal of this Province, bearing date at the Castle of St. Lewis, in the City of
Quebec, the fifth day of July, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and
twenty-seven, for summoning and calling together an assembly in and for this Province, at
which said election James Stuart and Wolfred Nelson were “candidates to represent the
said Borough, as such Burgess as aforesaid, in the said Assembly, and a poll for
taking the votes of the Electors of the said Borough for the purpose of electing such
Burgess as aforesaid, was then and there duly granted and held; and while the said
election was had and held as aforesaid, afterwards, to wit, on the said twenty-fifth
day of July, in the eighth year aforesaid, one Jean Cameraire appeared as a Free-
holder at the said election and poll, at the said Borouch of William Henry, and then
and there polled and gave his vote as such Freeholder, without any objection having
been made to his right of voting, by or on the part of either of the said Candidate;
and without any oath having been required from him, as to his qualification to vote
as aforesaid. —And the Jurors aforesaid, upon their oath aforesaid, do further present
that Louis Marcoux, late of the said Borough of William Henry, in the parish aforesaid
in the county aforesaid, in the district aforesaid, gentleman, being a person of an evil mind,
and wicked disposition, and not having the fear of God before his eyes, but being moved
and seduced by the instigation of the devil, and wickedly and maliciously devising and
intepding unjus.tly to vex and aggrieve the said Jean Cameraire, and to subject him to the
pumsh_ment, pains, and p_enalties by the laws of this Province provided for persons guilty
of Perjury, on the twentieth day of August, in the eighth year aforesaid, at the parish
of Berthier, in the County of Warwick, in the district of Montreal aforesaid, did falsely,
corruptly, knowingly, and wilfully solicit, suborn, and procure one Joseph Allard, to g(;
before_ Joseph Douaire Bondy, Esquire, then and yet one of the Justices of the P:aace of
our said Lprd_ the King, assigned to keep the peace of our said Lord the King in and for
the said District of Montreal, and also to hear and determine divers felonie: trespasses
and othex: misdemeanors in the said District committed, and charge the said Jeat’l Camerairé
with Perjury, and make oath that the said Jean Cameraire had then lately before at the
said election, been guilty of Perjury. And the Jurors aforesaid, upon their oath aforesaid
do further present, that in consequence, and by the means, encouragement, and effect of
the wicked and corrupt subornation and procurement of the said Louis Marcoux, he, the
said Joseph Allard, afterwards to wit, on the said twentieth day of August, in the ei’ghth
year aforesaid, at the parish of Berthier aforesaid, in the county aforesaid, in the district
aforesaid, did go in his proper person before the said Joseph Douaire Bondy, being such
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Justice as aforesaid, and then and there having sufficient power and authority to ad-
minister an oath, and take the deposition of the said Joseph Allard hereinafter mentioned,
and the said Joseph Allard was then and there sworn and took his corporal oath, before
the said Joseph Douaire Bondy, on the Holy Gospel of God; and the said Joseph
Allard, being sv sworn as aforesaid, by the means, and in consequence, of the said wicked
solicitation, subornation, and procurement of the said Louis Marcoux, did then and there,
upon his oath as aforesaid, in a written deposition then and there taken by and before the
said Justice, touching the charge of Perjury by the said Joseph Allard, so as aforesaid
made against the said Jean Cameraire, falsely, wickedly, maliciously, and corruptly say,
depose, and swear (amongst other things) in substance and to the effect following; that is
to say, that Jean Cameraire, of William Henry and district aforesaid, invalid (meaning the
said Jean Cameraire hereinbefore named) on the twenty-fifth day of the month of July, one
thousand eight hundred and twenty-seven, did take his oath, and swear before Henry
Crebassa, Esquire, Returning Officer of the said Borough of William Henry, on the Royal
Square (to wit, on a square called the Royal Square, at and in the said Borough) at an
Election there, for electing a Member to represent the said Borough in the Assembly of
Lower Canada, that he the said Jean Cameraire was qualified to vote at the said Election,
as proprietor, as being possessed for his own proper use and benefit, in virtue of a legal title
in the said Borough, of a Lot of Ground and Dwelling-house thereon, joining on one side
to John Hall, and on the other to Joseph Pierre Credit, and that the said Lot of Ground
and Dwelling-house thereon belonging to him was of the yearly value of five pounds, sterling,
that is to say, five pounds, eleven shillings, and one penny farthing, currency, or more, over
and above all rents and charges payable upon or in respect of the same, and that the said
Jean Cameraire (meaning the said Jean Cameraire first above named) had been really in
possession of the said lot of ground and dwelling-house thereon, or of the receipt of the
rents and profits thereof, for his own use, during six calendar months and more, immediately
preceding the said Election, and that the said Jean Cameraire (meaning the said Jean
Cameraire first above mentioned) in swearing as aforesaid, had been and was guilty of
wilful Perjury: Whereas, in truth and in fact, the said Jean Cameraire, hereinbefore and in
the said written deposition of the said Joseph Allard named, did not, on the twenty-fifth
day of July, one thousand eight hundred and twenty-seven, or at any other time, take his
oath, or swear before the said H.nry Crebassa, Returning Officer for the said Borough
Henry, on the Royal Square, or elsewhere, at any Election for electing a Member to re-
present the said Borough of William Henry in the Assembly of Lower Canada, or on any
other occasion, that he the said Jean Cameraire was qualified to vote at the said lilection,
or at any Election whatever, as proprietor and being possessed for his own proper use and
benefit or otherwise, in virtue of a legal title or otherwise, in the said Borough, of a lot of
ground and dwelling-house thereon, joining on one side to Jol}n Hall, and on the other to
Joseph Pierre Credit, or of any other lot of ground and dwelling-house, and that the said
lot of ground and dwelling-house thereon belonging to him, was of the yearly value of five
pounds sterling, that is to say, five pounds, eleven shillings, and one penny farthing, currency,
or more, over and above all rents and charges payable upon or in respect of the same, and
that the said Jean Cameraire had been really in possession of the said lot of ground and
dwelling-house thereon, or of the receipt of the rents {md ‘proﬁts.thereof for his own use,
during six calendar months or more, or any other time lmmedlate])_' preceding the said
Election ;—And whereas, in truth and in fact, he the said Jean Cameraire, hereinbefore, and
in the said written deposition named, did not, on the twenty-fifth day of July, one thousand
eight hundred and twenty-seven, or before, or after that day, take any oath whatever, or
swear in any manner whatever, before the said Her_n"y Crebassa, Returning Q[hger for the
said Borough of William Henry, touching his quz.ilxhcatlon' to vote at the s.al.d hlectxop, or
touching and concerning the matters and things. in the said written deposmon' contained,
or touching or concerning any other matter or thing wha.tsoever; fmd whex:e_as, in truth and
in fact, he the said Jean Cameraire, hereinbefore and in the said dpposnﬂor_x named, was
not by swearing as aforesaid, or in any other manner or way, gmlty. of w11'fu1 perjury.
And so the jurors aforesaid, upon their oath aforesaid, do say, tl_lat the said Lpuls Marcoqx,
on the said twentieth day of August, in the eighth year afOI:esald, at the parish of Be.rthler
aforesaid, in the county aforesaid, in the district aforesaid, did falsely, co'rruptly, knowingly,
wilfully, and wickedly suborn and procure the said Jqseph Allard to commit wilful and corrupt
perjury, in and by his oath aforesaid, befqre the Sald. Joseph Douaire Bondy so then ar}d
there having lawful and competent authority to administer the said oath, to the great dis-
pleasure of Almighty God, in contempt of our said L_ord the King and his laws, to the ev:ﬂ
and bad example of all others in the like case offending, and against the peace of our said
Lord the King his Crown and dignity.

(Signed) J. STUART, Attorney General.

(Signed) J.DELISLE,C.R. O. & T. & G. G. D.

A True Copy, J. DELISLE, C. K. Crown.
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(Indorsed)

COURT OF OYER AND TERMINER AND GENERAL GAOL
DELIVERY, MONTREAL.

November Session, 1827,

THE KING
v

LOUIS MARCOUX.

—

INDICTMENT

Jor
SUBORNATION OF PERJURY.

A True Bill, H. MACKENZIE, Foreman.

Witnesses, HEenry CrEBASSA, Esa.
Narcisse CREBASSA.
MicHEL GLACKMEYER.
JEAN CAMERAIRE.
JoserpH Douaire Bonpy, Esg.
JOSEPH ALLARD.
PierrE Jos. CHEVREFILS, EsQ.

No. 13.

Affidavit of Mr. FRANGOIs GAZAILLE dit ST. GERMAIN, late of the Borough of William Henry,
now of the Parisk of St. Remi, in the District of Montreal, Yeoman.

DisTRICT DE
MONTREAL.

FRANCOIS GAZAILLE dit St. Germain, ci-devant notable cultivateur, residant a
William-Henry, en la Seigneurie de Sorel, district de Montreal, province du Bas Canada,
maintenant de la paroisse de St. Remi, dit district, aprés serment prété sur les Saints Evangiles,
depose et dit que lors de Pelection qui se tint au dit Bourg, en Juillet, mil huit cent vingt
sept, le deposant y residait.—Que James Stuart, Ecuier, Procureur General de Sa Majesté,
pour la province du Bas Canada, et Wolfred Nelson, de St. Denis, dit district, médecin,
étoient candidats 3 la dite election. Que par un certain acte fait et passé & William-Henry,
le quinziéme jour de Mars, mil huit cent vingt deux, pardevant les nommés Crebassa et
R(ﬂland, Notaires Publics, le deposant et Charlotte Meneclier, sa femme, de lui duément
authorisée, firent une donation en faveur de Frangois Gazaille dit St. Germain, leur fils, de
tous et chacuns leurs biens meubles et immeubles, consistant en trois emplacements, situés
au dit Bourg, dont deux avec maisons et autres bitisses dessus construites, et le troisiéme
sans aucun batiment, et encore une terre de deux arpens de front sur vingt plus ou moins
de profondeur, située en la dite Seigneurie de Sorel. Que le deposant est parfaite-
ment persuadé, et croit dans son 4me et conscience, qu'il a l'usufruit pour la vie de l'une
ou de lautre des dites maisons béties sur deux des dits emplacements, et ce en
vertu d’'une reserve ou convention expresse, qu'il croit aussi en son &me et con-
science avoir été inserée et étre conteniie A cet effet aun dit acte de donation. Qu’il
croit que ce droit lui appartient si bien, qu’il n’est pas au pouvoir de son dit fils de vendre
Pune ou l'autre des dites maisons, sans son consentement pendant sa vie. Que depuis la
passation du dit acte de donation il s’est toujours cri proprietaire pendant sa vie de celle
des dites maisons, qu’il lui plairoit de choisir pour en avoir I'usufruit et disposer du dit
usufruit, comme bon lui sembleroit, et ce en vertu de la dite reserve. Que le soir du pre-
mier jour de la dite election, qui eiit lieu comme dit est en Juillet, mil huit cent vingt sept,
le dit Wolfred Nelson vint chez le dit Deposant au dit bourg, lui le dit Deposant habitant
alors une des dites maisons, ainsi qu’il Pavoit habité depuis une couple d’années, et ce tout
seul avec sa femme, en vertu du dit droit d'usufruit, et avec un domestique a leur service.
Que le dit Wolfred Nelson demanda 14, et alors au Deposant de lui donner sa voix comme
candidat: qu’il lui demanda en méme tems comment il avoit donné ses biens. Que le
D’eposant lui repondit, qu'il s’était reservé par son acte un droit d'usufruit pour sa vie
d une de§ dlte_s deux maisons, a son choix. Que la dessus le dit Wolfred Nelson lui dit
qu’il avoit droit de voter, et que si on lui faisait quelque difficulté au poll, lui le dit Wolfred
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Nelson saurait bien I'en tirer. Que le Deposant ne promit pas au dit Wolfred Nelson de
voter pour lui. Que le lendemain matin le Deposant ayant formé la resolution de voter
pour le dit James Stuart fit, pour se satisfaire de plus en plus de son droit de voter, et se
consulter 4 ce sujet, trouver le dit Henry Crebassa, comme c¢’étoit lui qui aveit passé le
dit acte de donation, mais que le dit Henry Crebassa refusa de lui donner aucune
connoissance ou conseil & ce sujet, et dit au Deposant de faire comme il voulait. Que
la dessus le dit Deposant partit satisfait de son droit de voter, et fat au poll
pour donuer sa voix. Que le dit Henry Crebassa, comme officier rapporteur lui
ayant demandé pour qui il donnait sa voix, celui-ci repondit quil la donnait pour le
dit James Stuart. Qu’alors une difficulté séleva entre les deux candidats. Que
pendant icelle le Deposant se rétira de la table. Qu’il y retourna peu de tems aprcs,
et qu'il fit le serment requis pour se qualifier pour voter, dans la sincére et ferme croyance
que le dit acte de donation contenait une reserve et stipulation de la nature ci-dessus men-
tionnée, croyance qui existe encore fermément en son me et conscience.—Que lui le Depo-
sant fit le dit serment Librement, et entiérement de lui-méme. Que ce fit le dit Crebassa
qui lui donna a baiser les Saints Evangiles. Qu’il n’hesita pas un instant a les baiser,
parcequ’il ne sentit aucune repugnance quelconque & prendre le serment, en autant qu’il
étoit convaincu qu'il en avoit le droit, a cause de la dite reserve et clause du dit acte de
donation, et qu'il avoit déja exercé le méme droit, a la solicitation du dit Wolfred Nelson,
en fuveur de deux membres pour le Comté de Richelieu dans lequel est situé le dit Bourg.
Que lui le dit Deposant est positif & affirmer sous son dit serment que lui le dit James
Stuart ne lui a jamais pris la main pour la méttre sur les Saints Evangiles. Qu’il croit que
le nommé Burke était la present alors, mais qu'il ne se rappelle pas les noms d’autres per-
sonnes. Le dit Deposant dit de plus que des deux maisons ci-dessus mentionnées, Vune
valait alors environ vingt louis, cours actuel, de loyer pur annee, et Pautre de trente six a
quarante piastres. Le dit Deposant dit de plus qu’il n’a jamais parlé au dit James Stuart
depuis qu’il lui a donné sa voix, et qu'il ne se rappelle pas de lui avoir jamais parlé au para-
vant de la lui donner. Que lui le dit James Stuart lui dit au poll qu'en vertu de la dite
reserve, et du dit usufruit, il avait certainement droit de voter. Le Deposant ajoute qu'il
a soixante et (ix neuf ans, mais qu'il jouit encore de toutes ses facultes, et il se porte bien;
se rappelle bien tout ce qui s’est passé 4 la dite election en mil huit cent vingt sept lorsqu’il
donna sa voix, et qu'il n’a donné cette deposition que pour rendre hommage 4 la verité et a
la justice. Le Deposant declare ne sgavoir signer.

Assermenté devant moi ce 6e jour de Mai, 1831,
cette deposition ayant été par moi-méme lué et expliquee
au dit Deposant avant que de lui administrer le
serment.

(Signé) P. T. PINSONAUT, J. .
Truc copy, J. STUART.

Translution of the forcgoing affiducit.

DisTrICT OF
MoNTREAL.

FRANCOIS GAZAILLE dit ST. GERMAIN, late of William-Henry, in the Scignory
of Sorel, in the District of Montreal, in the Province of Lower Canada, now of the Parish of
St. Remi, in the said district, yeoman, having been duly sworn on the Holy Evangelist_s,
deposeth and saith, that at the period at which the election was held at the said borough, in
July, one thousand eight hundred and twenty-seven, he the Deponent resided there. That
James Stuart, Esq., Attorney General of his Majesty for the Province of Lower Canada, and
Wolfred Nelson, of St Denis, in the said district, physician, were candidates at the said
election. That by a certain deed, made and executed at William-Henry, the fiftecnth day
of March, one thousand eight hundred and twenty-two, before Crebassa and_ Rolland, pubhc
notaries, the Deponent and Charlotte Meneclier his wife, by him duly authorized, made a gift,
or donation in favour of [Francois Gazaille dit St. Germain, the_lr sou, of all their estates real
and personal, consistinﬁ of threelots of ground situated in the said borough, upon two whereof
were erected dwelling-houses and other buildings, and the third without any building thereon,
and also a lot of land of two arpents in front, by twenty arpents, more or less, in depth,
situated in the said seignory of Sorel. That the Deponent is under the fullest persuasion,
and verily and in his conscience believes, that he is vested_ w1t!1 a life-estate (usufruit pour la
vie) in one or the other of the said two dwel-lmg-houses, in virtue of a reservation or special
stipulation to this effect, which he verily believes to have been lnserteq, an'(l to be .coptamef],
in the said deed of gift ; and this right he conceives to be so complete in him, that it is not in
the power of his son to sell either-of the said houses during his life, w1t.hout hls. consent,—
That, from the time of executing the said deed Qf ft, he has fdways considered himself to be
proprietor, during his life, of whichever of the.sald auses he mlght choose, to have the usufruct
thereof, and dispose of such usufruct as he might think fit, in virtue of the said reservation.
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t day of the said election in July, one thousand eight hundred
and twenty-seven, the said Wolfred Nelson came to the house of the Deponent, in the said
Borough, being one of the said dwelhng—hous.os, _whlch was tl_)en mh.alnted, as it ha}d been for
two years previous]y, by the Deponent and his wife, alone, with thel_r servant, in virtue of the
said usufruct or life-estate. That the said \Wolfred Nelson then solicited the vote of him, the
Deponent, atid at the same time inquired of him in what manner he had disposed of his pro-

crty. That the Deponent, in answer, told the said Wolfred Nelson, that by his deed of gift
Ee had reserved to himself a life-estate («n droit dwsufruit pour lu vic) in one of the said
houses, at his option ; whereupon the said Wolfred Nelson told the Deponent that he had a
right to vote, and that if any difficulty was made about it at the poll, he, the sa}d Wolfred
Nelson, would soon put an end to it. That the Deponent did not promise the salc.l Wplfl'etl
Nelson to vote for hun.  That the next morning, the Deponent having made up his mind to
vote for the said James Stuart, was desirous, for his greater satisfaction as to his right of voting,
of consulting the said Henry Crebassa, before whom the said deed of gift had been executed,
and went to him for that purpose, but the said Henry Crebassa refused to give him any in-
formation or advice on the subject, and told the Deponent to do as he pleased; whereupon
the Deponent left him confirmed in the belief of his right to vote, and went to the poll to
give his vote. 'That the said Henry Crebassa, as Returning Officer, having asked the
Deponent for whom he voted, the Deponent answered that he gave his vote for the said
James Stuart; whereupon an altercation (difficulté) took place between the two Candidates ;
and while it continued, the Deponent withdrew from the table—That the Deponent soon
after returned, and took the oath of qualification to entitle him to vote, in the sincere and
firm belief that the said Deed of Gift contained a reservation and stipulation of the nature
above-mentioned, which belief he still conscientiously retains.~—T'hat the Deponent took
the said oath voluntarily, and of his own free-will and accord. That it was the said Henry
Crebassa who put the Holy Evangelists into his hand.—That he did not hesitate an instant
to kiss the booE, inasmuch as he felt no repugnance whatever to take the oath, being con-
vinced that he had a right to do so, in virtue of the said reservation in his Deed of Gift, and
having, besides, already exercised the same right, at the solicitation of the said Wolfred
Nelson, in favour of two members for the county of Richelieu, in which the said borough is
situated. That the Deponent is positive in affirming upon his oath, that the said James
Stuart never touched his hand for the purpose of placing it on the Holy Evangelists.—That
he thinks that one Burke was present, but he does not recollect the names of the other
persons. And the Deponent further saith that one of the two houses above-mentioned was
of the annual value, in rent, of about twenty pounds currency, and the other from thirty-five
to forty dollars.  And the Deponent further saith, That he has never spoken to the said James
Stuart since he voted for him, and does not recollect to have ever spoken to him before.—That
the said James Stuart, at the poll, told the Deponent, that, on the life-estate which he had
reserved to himself, he clearly had a right to vote. And the Deponent adds, That he is
seventy-nine years old, but is in the full enjoyment of his faculties, and in good health: he
recollects perfectly all that took place at the said election, in the year one thousand eight hun-
dred and twenty-seven, when he gave his vote; and that he has no other motive for making
this deposition than the desire to render homage to truth and justice. 'The Deponent declares
that he cannot sign his name.

"T'hat in the evening of the firs

Sworn before me this 6th day of May, 1831.  This
Deposition having been by me read and explained to the
Deponent before administering the oath to him.

(Signed) P. T. PINSONAUT, J. P.

No. 14,

Affidavit of Frangols GazalLLE dit ST. GERMAIN, the younger, late of the Borough o
William-Henry, now of the Parish of St. Remi, in the di§trictgof }Wontrel{;, Shop- Keegper,f

DisTRICT DE
MoNTREAL. §

. _FRANCOIS GAZAILLE dit ST. GERMAIN, fis, de la Paroisse de Saint Remi
dit District, Province du Bas Canada, Marchand, ayant prété serment sur les Saints Evan-
giles, dit que Frangois Gazaille dit St. Germain, et Charlotte Meneclier, parties & un certain
Acte de Donation passé en sa faveur, le quinze de Mars, mil huit cent vingt deux, devant
Crebassa et Rolland, Notaires Publics, sont ses pere et mere.—Que, depuis la passa,tion du
dit acte, ses pere et mere ont habité long temps, seuls, avec leur domestique, une des maisons
mentionneés au dit Acte de Donation.—Que, sepuis la passation d'icelui, son dit pére a toujours
ete dans la ff:rme croyance, et I'est encore qu'il avoit et qu'il & droit d’usufruit pour la vie de
I'une ou de I'autre des dites maisons; que son dit pére est dans la ferme croyance qu'il peut

réprendre possession de I'une ou de I'autre des dites maisons, quand bon lui semblera; et que
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ce West que Pamitié paternelle qui a porté son dit pere d laisser sa demeure a Sorel, pour
venir demeurer d Saint Remi susdit avec lui et son épouse.  Le Deposant dit deplus, que
des deux dites maisons I'une vaut environ vingt louis, cours actuel, et I'autre environ trente
six ou quarante piastres de loyer, par année, ou plutot c’étoit 1a leur valeur annuelle pendant
que ses dits pere et mére en habitoient une, Le dit Deposant dit deplus, que lui, le dit De-
posant, se croyoit, et se croit encore obligé, d’apres ce qui s’est passé entre lui et son dit pere,
lors de la passation du dit Acte, de lui laisser I'usufruit pour sa vie de celle des dites maisons
quil a habitée comme dit est; et ce quoique les conventions passées et faites de rive voix
entre lui le Deposant, et ses dits pere et mcére, ne soient pas exprimées au dit Acte, comme,
et conformément, et aussi amplement, comme les obligations verbales contractées par le dit
Deposant, au sujet du dit droit d’usufruit pour la vie, en faveur des dits Donateurs; et que
si le Deposant, lors de la lecture du dit acte par le dit notaire, n’a pas fait corriger le dit acte,
c’est qu'en consultant son amour, et son respect filial, il savoit que ces obligations seroient
toujours observées par lui d’une maniére sacrée.

(Signé) FRS. ST. GERMAIN.

Assermenté pardevant moi cc 6 Mai, 1831, le dit
Deposant ayant declaré avoir lui-méme 14
lu susdite deposition, ¢t qu’elle contient lu
Terite.

Signe) P. T. PINSONAUT.

True Copy, J. STUART.

Transtution of the forcooing A ffidait.

Districrt oF
MoNTREAL.

FRANCOISGAZAILLEdit ST. GERMAIN, the younger, of the Parish of St. Remi,
in the District of Montreal, in the Province of Lower Canada, shop-keeper, ha)'ing been du_ly
sworn on the Holy Evangelists, doth depose and say, that Francois Gazaille, dit St. Germain,
and Charlotte Meneclier, parties named in a certain deed of donation, executed in his favour
the fifteenth day of March, one thousand eight hundred and twenty-two, before Crebassa and
Rolland, public notaries, are his father and mother. That, after the execution of the said
deed of gift, his said father and mother, for a considerable length of time, inhabited alone,
with their servant, one of the houses mentioned in the said deed of g]ft.. That ever since the
said deed of gift was executed, his said father has alway§ been,_ and continues to be, under the
firm persuasion and belief, that he was and is vested with a hfe_-estate (usufruit pour la vie)
in one or other of the said houses, and that he may take dpossesslon of: the one or the o'ther at
his pleasure; and that his said father has been induced, only by his paternal affection, to

uit his abode at Sorel, and come and live with him and his wife at St. Remi. And the

eponent further saith, that one of the said houses is of the annual value, in rent, of twenty
pounds currency, and the other of thirty-six or fo'rty dqllars, or rather, they would have
rented for these sums at the time one of them was inhabited by hl_s said fat_her :zmd mother.
And the deponent further saith, that from what passed between him 'and h1§ said father at
the time of the execution of the said deed of gift, he the deponent considers himself bound to
allow to his father the enjoyment of a life-estate in that. one gf the said two housgs wh.wh was
inhabited by his said father as aforesaid ; and he conceives himself to be under this obligation,
although the verbal agreement between the deponent and his said father and mothe.r has not
been included in the said deed, to the same extent, and as largely and amply as was lmported
by the said verbal agreement touching the said life-estate ; and .1f the deponent, at the time of
the reading of the said deed by the notary, did not cause the said deed to be corrected, it was
because he was satisfied that with his feelings of filial love and respect, the said obligations
would always be fulfilled by him, as being of a sacred character.

(Signed)  FRS. ST. GERMAIN.

Sworn before me, this 6th May, 1_831 , the Deponer_zt
ham{g declared that he had himself read the said
deposition, and that it contains the {ruth.

(Signed)  P. T. PINSONAUT.
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No. 15.

Affidavit of ANTHONY Von IrrLanp, Esquire.

PROVINCE OF LOWER CANADA.

DISTRICT OF To wit :
QUEBEC.

ANTHONY VON IFFLAND, of William Henry, in the Province of Lower Canada,
Esquire, Doctor of Physic, maketh oath, that he was examined on the twenty-second day
of February now last past, before a Committee of the House of Assembly of Lower Canada,
sitting under the name of a Committee of Grievances, which Committee, at the time of the
Deponent’s examination, consisted of Messrs. Labrie, Bourdages, Heney, Lafontaine, and
Duval.—That, soon after his examination, having heard various particulars spoken of as
making part of his evidence before the said Committee, which particulars he had never
stated, and were untrue, he called on James Stuart, Esquire, his Majesty’s Attorney General,
to learn from him what course he ought to take to obtain the correction of the evidence
ascribed to him; and the said James Stuart, without entering into any explanations with
the Deponent, told him, that if his answers had been untruly or incorrectly reported to the
House of Assembly, the fit course to be taken was, by petition to the House of Assembly,
to pray that an opportunity might be afforded to him for the correction of the errors and
inaccuracies which had been committed, in taking down and reporting his answers.—That
the Deponent, from the late period of the session at which he became acquainted with the
incorrectness of the evidence ascribed to him as aforesaid, and from other circumstances,
could not succeed in obtaining the correction of the evidence contained in the Report of
the said Committee.—And the Deponent further saith, that in the evidence ascribed to him
in the Report of the said Committee, styled “ The Second Report of the Committee of
Grievances,” there has been a suppression of material facts and circumstances which made
part of the Deponent’s answers to the questions put to him by the said Committee ; and
the said evidence, in a number of particulars, s incorrect, and different from the evidence
really given by the Deponent before the said Committee. And the Deponent further saith,
that in that part of the evidence ascribed to him in the said Report, which relates to one
Gazaille dit Germain, whose real name is St. Germain, there has been a suppression of
material facts and circumstances which made part of the evidence given by him, the Depo-
nent, before the said Committee, and there is also untruth and incorrectness in the said
evidence, in various parts, as therein reported.—The Deponent stated before the said Com-
mittee, that he was not present when Gazaille dit Germain took the oath and voted, and
could not, therefore, know whether he showed reluctance to take the oath or not: But the
Deponent also stated facts, from which it was to be inferred, that the said Germain took
the oath of his own free will, and that he did so, upon an alleged reservation of a life estate,
the existence of which estate was not denied or doubted at the time he voted ; and these
facts have been entirely suppressed in the evidence «scribed to the Deponent as aforesaid.—
The facts which the Deponent stated before the said Committee, with respect to the said
Germain, and which have been suppressed as aforesaid, are the following : viz. * That the
“ said Germain called upon the Deponent the day before he voted, and after mentioning his
“ intention to vote for James Stuart, Esquire, one of the Candidates, stated also the nature
¢ of his qualification, which he represented to consist in the usufruct for life, or a life estate,
“in part of the house in the Borough, which he had given to his son, by Deed of Gift, exe-
“cuted before Mr. Crebassa, Public Notary: the next morning, the said Germain again
“called on Deponent, and informed him that he had just seen the said James Stuart, who
“had told him that if he (Germain) had reserved a life estate as he represented he had done
“he would have a right to vote.—That the Deponent being desirous of assuring himself of
:“ the terms gf th(le re:ervation stated by Germain to be contained in the Deed of Gift to his
« slc:n, m_]de la(;e )fl‘i;f‘r’ we:int to the office of the said Ml:. Crebassa, for the purpose of seeing
) ft‘ e (Sial : elf' o" I t,a'll'l‘h applied for the perusal of it, to the said Mr. C?ebassa, who re-
“ 'usi to e;i dlm see it.—That, soon af:ter, the Depqnent met the said Germam,v:vho persisted

in the confident assertion that the said Deed of Gift contained such a reservation as he had
“ stated, and that he would go and vote for the said James Stuart ; and, in the course of the
“ same morning, the Deponent heard that the said Germain had voted for the said James
¢ Stuart.—That the Deponent did not hear any doubts expressed of the truth of the fact
:: stated by the said Ger.mam, as to the said reser_vatiop, until five or six days after the election
“ was over, when the said Ggrmam, 1n conversation with the Deponent, renewed his assertion

that he had reserved to himself a life estate as above-mentioned.”

f

And the Deponent further saith, that the said facts so suppressed as aforesaid are in

all particulars true, and were stated by the Deponent, in answer to the seventh question
put to him by the said Committee.

And the Deponent further saith, that the said Germain, at the time of giving his vote
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as aforesaid, was an entire stranger to the said James Stuart, to whom he had never spoken
(as the Deponent learnt from the said Germain) till he went to call on the said James Stuart,
the morning he gave his vote as aforesaid.—And the Deponent further saith, that the said
Germain has always borne the character of an honest, respectable man, and his connexions
also are respectable, and that the said Germain, before and at the time of giving his vote

as aforesaid, would not have been deemed capable of telling, much less of swearing to, an
untruth, knowingly.

_. And the Deponent further saith, that the evidence ascribed to the Deponent in the
said Report of the Committee of Grievances, in what respects certain affidavits said to
have been sent to Sorel, by a Mr. Schiller, does not correspond with the evidence actually
given by the Deponent before the Committee, and would convey an impression contrary to

truth. The veal facts, with respect to these affidavits, as represented by the Deponent
before the said Committee, are the following.

In consequence of untrue statements which, recently before, on the trial of one Aussant
for perjury, had been made respecting the conduct of the said James Stuart, at the election
for Sorel, drafts or outlines of several affidavits to contradict such statements, were, on
the part of the said James Stuart, transmitted to Sorel, accompanied by instructions that
they were to receive any alterations and corrections that might be necessary to render them
exactly conformable to the knowledge of the persons making them, and to truth. One of
these affidavits was intended for Mr. Crebassa, who had been Returning Officer, who told
the Deponent that it had been prepared at his desire, when at Montreal, and that he had
called on the said James Stuart, to swear to the said affidavit, but had been prevented from
doing so, by finding him too much engaged to be spoken to.—And the Deponent further
saith, that the said Mr. Crebassa declined making the said affidavit when required to do so
at William Henry, not on the ground of any inaccuracy in the said affidavit, but, because,
as he stated, his brother and son were unwilling that he should make the said affidavit, and
had told him not to do so.—And the Deponent further saith, that with respect to the
proposed affidavit of the said Mr. Crebassa, as well as two or three others he received in
the early part of June last, a letter from the said James Stuart, dated the 2d June, 1830,
which he annexes to this affidavit, and to which he refers, as containing the instructions
under which the said affidavits were to be taken.

And the Deponent further saith, that having in compliance with the said letter, renewed
his request to the said Mr. Crebassa to be informed whether he would make the said
affidavit, and, if not, that he would state his reason for not doing so, he was told by the
said Mr. Crebassa, that he would make his own affidavit and send it down to the said
James Stuart.

And the Deponent further saith, that among the particulars untruly stated in the
evidence ascribed to Deponent as aforesaid, are the following: viz.—The Deponent in the
said evidence is made to state that the said James Stuart used #hreats to voters; whereas
the Deponent did not state, before the said Committee, that the said James Stuart had used
threats to voters. The Deponent, in the said evidence, is also made to say, that by the
said affidavits, the said James Stuart prefended that he had not used violence to electors,
whereas no such language was, or could have been, used by the Deponent, inasmuch as it
was within his knowledge, and he had stated before the said Committee, that no violence
had been used by the said James Stuart.—The Deponent, in the said evidence, is also made
to say, that he swore to affidavits, with “ alferations;” whereas he stated before the said
Committee, that he had sworn to them with “ additions;” the Deponent having added to the
said affidavits the mention of facts which had been omitted in them.—The Deponent, in
the said evidence, is also made to state, that persons had refused to swear to affidavits
which had been sent to Sorel, whereas no such refusal occurred, except in the case of Mr.
Crebassa, as above-mentioned. The Deponent in the said evidence is also made to state,
that abusive words had been used by the said James Stuart to the said Mr. Crebassa;
whereas the Deponent did not so express himself, but only stated that he heard the said
James Stuart say, that the said Mr. Crebassa acted stupidly, which was said with re-
ference to the mistakes committed by Mr. Crebassa in confounding the oaths to be taken
by tenants and proprietors, and substituting the one for the other; and the Deponent
could not state before the said Committee, and cannot now state, to whom the said James
Stuart, in using the said words, addressed himself.—The Deponent, in the said evidence,
is also made to state, that the said James Stuart threatened Mr. Wells, that he would
complain of him to the Governor ; whereas the Deponent in his evidence, as really given
by him, stated that the said James Stuart, being a stranger and unacquainted with the
qualifications of the voters, relied on the assistance of Mr. Welles, being Agent for the
Seigniory of Sorel, to give him the requisite information on this head; and, finding that
Mr. Welles absented himself from the poll, by which he was deprived of such information,
he remonstrated with Mr. Welles on his conduct, and insisted that he should not absent
himself from the poll, at the same time stating if he did so, he would report him to the
Governor. The Deponent, in the said evidence, is also made to state, that he had a
knowledge that certain letters had passed between the Curé and the Governor; whereas he



44, APPENDIX.

stated before the Committee, that he had no knowledge of any such fact, except that de-
rived from a Report of the Committee of Grievances in 1829.

And the Deponent further saith, that he did not, and could not have stated, before the
said Committee, any particulars of misconduct on the part of the said James Stuart, at the
said Election, or any circumstances from which such misconduct .cou!d be inferred, inas-
much as the conduct of the said James Stuart, throughg)ut. the said Lle(_:tlon, in so0 far as
the Deponent became acquainted with it (and he was intimately acquainted with all the
proceedings which took place at the said Election), was not only altogether unexceptionable,
but meritorious in discountenancing and preventing, as far as he could, all 1r1_-egularmes and
improprieties, as well as all acts of violence.—And further the Deponent saith not.

(Signed) A. VON IFFLAND, M. D.

Sworn at the City of Quebec, this 2nd day of
May, 1831, before me,

(Signed) J. KERR, Judge of the Court of King's Bench, Quebec.

True Copy, J. STUART.

Copy of the Letter referred to in the foregoing Affidavit.

Quebec, 2nd June, 18350.
DEear SIr,

In conformity with what was suggested when 1 had the pleasure of seeing you at
William Henry, a few days since, I now send to you, enclosed, Affidavits of the facts which
it is understood can be sworn to by yourself and by Messrs. Burke and John Carter, to-
gether with a mem. of particulars which it would be proper to introduce into the Affidavits
of Mrs. Graves, and St. Germain, if they should be within their knowledge, and accord
with truth.—1I also return to you the Affidavit of Mr. Crebassa. You would oblige me to
recall to his recollection these facts, viz. that when I saw him at Montreal, after the trial of
Aussant, he told me that the facts contained in this Affidavit were within his knowledge ;
that he would call on me at two o’clock in the course of the same day, and make Affidavit
of them, which Affidavit I was to prepare in the mean time.—That he did not call on me
as he promised, or, if he did, he did not announce himself, so as to admit of the Affidavit
being made; that he told Schiller that he intended to make the Affidavit, but had been
prevented by learning that I was occupied, &c. In recalling these facts to Mr. Crebassa,
you will oblige me by putting the question to him distinctly, whether be will or will not
make the Affidavit, and if not, by asking him to specify the reason of his refusal. It is
of course understood, that the Affidavit proposed to be made is subject to all alterations
and corrections on his part, so as to render it entirely conformable to his knowledge of
facts, and to the truth.—[ am extremely sorry to be under the necessity of giving you so
much trouble; but, with your knowledge of the circumstances which have rendered it
necessary, I am persuaded you will deem any apology on my part superfluous. 1 have only
to add, that a great obligation will be conferred on me by a minute attention to the subject
of this letter, which will at all times be acknowledged, by yours very truly,

(Signed) J. STUART.
This Letter referred to in the Affidavit of Anthony
Von Iffland, Esquire, made before me this 2nd
day of May, 1831.

(Signed) J. KERR, I. B. R. Quebec.
A. VON IFFLAND, M. D.

True Copy, J. STUART.
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No. 16.

Copy of @ Revort made by Javes Stuart, Esquire, His Majesty's Attorney-
General for the Province of Lower Canada, to His Excellency Stz Janes
Kenrer, Addministrator of the Government of that Province, respecting
certain Prosecutions for Libels, pending undetermined in the Courts of
Justice of the said Province.

To His Excellency Sir James Kempt, Knight Grand Cross of the most honourable
Military Order of the Bath, Lieutenant-General, and Commander-in-Chief of
His Majesty’s Forces in the Provinces of Lower Canada and Upper Canada,
Nova Scotia and New Brunswick, and their several Dependencies, and in the
Island of Newfoundland, Administrator of the Government of the Province of
Lower Canada, &c. &c. &c.

May it please your Excellency,

I have been honoured with your Excellency’s commands, signified in Mr. Secretary
Cochran’s letter of the 24th September, requiring me to make a report of the prosecutions for
libel, which have been instituted by me on the part of the Crown, since November last, and
of the present state of the proceedings, together with any information deemed necessary for
your Excellency, on this subject.

In obedience to your Excellency’s commands, I have the honour to state, that all the
prosecutions, referred to by your Excellency, have originated in indictments found by the
Grand Juries of the Districts of Quebec and Montreal, respectively ; and that the first three
of them were instituted in a Court of Oyer and Terminer and general Gaol delivery, held in
the latter of these Districts, in November, 1827.

The adoption of any legal proceedings to restrain the licentiousness in which some of
the conductors of Newspapers had indulged, had been long, and probably in the estimation
of the sober and discreet part of the community, too long delayed. It was not, indeed, till
after it was evident, that the evil was greatly increased by this forbearance, and that a check
to it was urgently required, that resort was had to legal measures, and for these the sanction
of a Grand Jury was taken.

Before this step was adopted, the editors of these newspapers, with their auxiliary
contributors, not satisfied with the free, temperate, discussion of public measures, had erected
themselves into censors of the Government, and of the Administration of Justice, and were
in the habit of pronouncing judgment erroneously against both, in terms of indecent
disrespect. In these publications, the conduct and measures of Government, and the pro-
ceedings of the Courts of Justice were grossly misrepresented and calumniated, and the
acts of both, within the limits of their legal power, in most important particulars, werc
held up to the public as illegal and uncons.titutionnl, and in such language, as was calculated
to invite opposition to their authority ; wln}e the person at the head of the Government was
openly aspersed, vilified, and made the prgct of indecent personal attack.. Of the urgent
necessity of putting a stop to these publications, no doubt could be entertained, as Govern-
ment, however leniently and justly administered, could not continue to subsist, if it could be
thus perseveringly attacked with impunity. In this country also, the injurious consequences
to be apprehended from these libels, it is fit to rem.ark, were Fhe greater, as the mass of Ehe
population are profoundly ignorant, and may easily, for this reason, be made to imbibe
unfounded distrust and prejudices against the. Goverx_\mcnt; un_der the mﬂuen.ce of which
they might be hurried into a criminal opposition to its author{ty, or long retain a sense of
wrong, which was never done. That an_extreme degree of hardihood had been acquired by
the authors of these libels, will be considered as sufficiently evinced, by the fact of their not
having suspended publications of t_his description, even while a.Criminal.C_ourt was sitting, to
which they could be made immediately amenable. It was during the sitting of the Court of
Oyer and Terminer, and at the place at which its session was held, that the most offensive of
the libels now alluded to were published ; and some of them were even diregted against the
Court itself, containing the most criminal misrepresentation of its proceedings, and arraigning
its justice, without the slightest reason.

In order to make your Excellency acquainted with the libels selected for prosecution,
I shall beg leave to mention the prosecutions in the order in w_hlch ghey occurred ; and, for
the libellous matter which has been made the §ubj_ect of Frosecunon, will refer your Excellency
to the annexed Appendix, in which a copy of it will be found.

The first of these prosecutions is founded on an article contained)i~n the Capadian
Spectator, a newspaper published at Montreal, of the 7th November, 1827, for which an
indictment was foun(s, against Mr. Waller, the Editor, and Mr. Duvernay, the Printer of that
paper, in the Court of Oyer and ’];‘ermmer'and g(.ener.'al Gaol f]ehver}y, hel(_i there in that
month ; and the matter charged as libellous in t_he mdlct.ment will l?e o_und in the Extract,
(No. 1), in the annexed Appendix. In explanation of this prosecution, it mav\;\ Il)e proper to
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observe, that the Editor of the paper now referred to, came hither from Ireland some years
since, and, being afterwards in dlstre§sed circumstances, was hired to conduct this paper,
which has been, since its first establishment, the organ through which a party, acting in
opposition to His Majesty’s Government in the Provincial HO\‘Jse of'Asser.nbly, _has ‘mani-
fested its sentiments, and by which it has been supported. The Editor himselfis without
stake or interest in the country; the language he holgls wopld seem to be the la_nguage of
his employers, by whom he is paid ; and although published in English, the paper is intended
to influence the mass of the French Canadian population, through whom its pernicious con-
tents are made to circulate, by infusion into French papers, an(.l by oral communication.—
The article was published a short time before the expected meeting of the Provincial Legis-
lature. The * conciliation” made mention of, and which is treated with so much contempt,
was the conciliation of the three branches of the Legis]aturg, and it is in relation to this
anticipated conciliation, that the writer gives vent to the tirade of vn:’ulent abuse yvhlc’l1
follows, and which terminates in giving the character of a  nuisance” to His Majesty’s
Colonial Government,—a brief and concentrated form of libel, it must be admitted,—quite
intelligible to the most ignorant of the persons for whose information 1t was intended,—and,
as applied to a government still possessed of any efficiency, I believe to be almost without
example. In using this disgraceful term, _the writer \vqul(.i seem to bave sought, in a §mg1e
expression, to unite, in the most offensive libel, a direct incitement to msurrection; for, if Fhe
Government were to be considered a nuisance, as represented by him, that nuisance, like
every other nuisance, it is fair to infer, was to be abated: and, as if to render his meaning
unambiguous, he immediately adds, that if the country would co-operate with firm and
decisive measures, it would be speedily extinguished.

Among the vague and general charges conveyed in this article against His Majesty’s
Government, admitting of no answer, is one of a specific nature, which, in a variety of insult-
ing forms, had been before made in the same paper, and could not fail to make a strong
impression on an ignorant population. The Colonial Government is charged with reviving
miﬁtary ordinances, against the plainest rules of legal construction. To render intelligible
this gross libel on the Government, it is necessary to mention, that in the twenty-seventh and
twenty-ninth years of His late Majesty’s Reign, two ordinances were passed b{ the Leglslatpre
of the country, at that period, one of which is intituled, ¢ An Ordinance for better regulating
the Militia of this Province, and rendering it of more general utility towards the preservation
and security thereof;” and the other of which is intituled, ¢ An Ordinance to explain and
amend the first mentioned Ordinance.” These Ordinances were permanent laws, for regu-
lating the Militia of the Province, the operation of which some years afterwards was sus-
pended by several successive statutes, containing a temporary repeal of them, and substituting,
during the period of such temporary repeal, other provisions in the place of those contained
in the Ordinances. The first of these statutes was passed in the year 1794, and the last in
1825, by which last statute the temporary repeal of these Ordinances was continued to the
1st of May, 1827, and no longer. At this period, by the expiration of the temporary repeal-
ing statutes, the Ordinances revived, and again became the law by which the Militia was regu-
lated. It was peculiarly fortunate, for the peace and tranquillity of the country, that, in the
absence of any other provisions, this revival took place ; inasmuch as, besides the ordinary
security conferred by a Militia Law, there is this peculiar benefit derived from it in this
Province, that it furnishes Peace Officers throughout the country Parishes, that is, throughout
the whole Province, with the exception of the Towns of Quebec, Montreal and Three Rivers;
there being a special provision of law by which Captains of Militia and Officers of inferior
grade are constituted Peace Officers, and there being no other Peace Officers except in these
three Towns. Without a Militia Law, therefore, the country at large would have been without
the legal means of maintaining, effectually, its internal tranquillity. The Government having,
as it was its duty to do, and as the public safety and interest required, enforced these Ordgi-
nances, as a part of the law of the land, a clamour against them was immediately raised by
disaffected persons, who, aware of the salutary and necessary power with which they per-
manently armed the Government, were anxious to prevent the execution of them. Amon
these persons the Editor of the Canadian Spectator, as the organ of the party to which he
belongs, rendered himself conspicuous; and it is with reference to these Ordinances that he
presumes to charge the Government with reviving Military Ordinances, against the plainest
rules of legal construction. It is proper to add, that, amidst the opposition which the execu-
tion of the Ordinances experienced, some Militiamen having been fined for attending the
reviews required by these laws, an action of trespass was brought against the Officers b
whom the fines were levied, for the express purpose, as the public were informed by the
Canadian Spectator and his associate papers, of trying the validity of the Ordinances. “This
action has been since brought to issue, and upon this question no gentleman could be found,
who was willing to compromise his professional character, by maintaining the Ordinances
not to be in force. 'I'he consequence has been, that upon a hearing, at the instance of the
defendants, these Ordinances have been solemnly adjudged, by His Majesty’s Court of King’s
Bench, to have been in force from the 1st May, 1827, the period at which the last of the

temporary repealing statutes expired; and this decision it has not been attempted to
impeach. :

The second of these
the 3d November, 1827,
the case of the former pro

prosecutions is grounded on an article in the Canadian Spectator of
for w_hlch_ an indictment was found against the same individuals, as in
secution, in the Court of Oyer and Terminer and general Gaol delivery,
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held at Montreal in that montl; and the matter charged as libellous will be found in the
extract, (No. 2), in the annexed Appendix. The enforcing of the militia ordinances, in this,
as in the articles already noticed, is made the ground of the imputations against the Government;
and the writer of this article introduces a libeﬁ;us letter from Mr. Thomas Lee to the Governor-
in-Chief, under the general head ¢ Militia.” He prefaces this letter,—by expressing his appro-
bation of it,—by stating that the doctrines propagated by His Majesty’s Government should inake
all true British subjects boil with indignation,—and by charging the Governor with having, by his
proclamation or general order, made law and military law, and with defaming British subjects,
because they declined obedience to orders which were not law. These disgraceful charges have
no other foundation than the execution of the laws of the land, which the editor and printer
of the newspaper now referred to, had the hardihood to assure the country were not laws. In
the letter of Mr. Lee which follows these prefatory remarks, this individual insults the person
at the head of the Government, and the Government itself, by charging the Governor-in-Chief,
with i1ssuing an illegal militia order, and by imputing to him tyranny and oppression, and also
falsehood ; and it 1s this letter which the Canadian Spectator, in the article in question, held
up to the public in terms of high commendation, as a very interesting document.

The third of these prosecutions was occasioned, by an article proceeding from the same press,
and contained in a newspaper called the Spectateur Canadien of the 14th of November, 1827 ;
for which an indictment was also found by the grand jury in the same court, against James
Lane, the printer of that paper. Of this article a co%y will be found in the extract, (No. 8), in
the annexed Appendix. Ta convey an adequate idea of the malignity of this libel, and of
the total absence of all ground for the criminal charge it conveys against the administration
of justice, it is necessary to state a few facts. A new street had been laid out at Montreal,
under the authority of the magistrates there, and in execution o_f the provisions of the Road
Act, prov. stat. 36 Geo. ITL, c. 9. After this street had been laid out, a Mr. Stanley Bagg,
deriving an alleged title from a convent of nuns called the Grey Sisters, thought proper to
erect a wooden building on it. This being an obstruction of a highway and a nuisance, it
became the duty of the surveyor of the highways, which office is filled by a Mr. Viger, to
remove it, in the manner prescribed by the 68th section of the same RO.?.!.d Act. Mr. Vige.r,
having neglected to perform this duty, one or more orders of ghe magistrates, asse_mbled in
special session, was made, enjoining on him the performance of it. After one, cert.amly, a_mfi
1 believe, two orders to the same effect, three magistrates, of their own mere aughorlty, indivi-
dually, and without any special session having been called to re-consider the subject, presumed
to issue a supersedeas, as they called it, discharging Mr. Viger, from that duty which the law
had imposed upon him, and which the magistrates acting collectively, in one or more special
sessions, had required him to perform. For this non-feasance of a duty required by a statute, an
indictment was found against Mr. Viger, in the Court of Oyer and Terminer and general Gaol
delivery already mentioned; and at the same time an mdlctment_ was foupd against Mr.
Bagg for a Nuisancr. In the libellous article now ref?rred to, this proceedlr_lg, than which
none more legal and unexceptionable could be adopted, is held up to the public, or rather to
the French Canadian part of it, as most unwarrantable, as involving an illegal assumption of
jurisdiction by the Court of Oyer and Terminer, over a subject belonging exclusively to a civil
judicature, and as being * une insulte et un outrage aur loix.” For having permitted this
proceeding, the court is charged with forgetting and disregarding the best established

rinciples of law and justice, the country 1s represented to be in an alarming state, and it is said
that the citizens ought to tremble for the con_sequences! ! In orde.r also to convey a chargg of
positive corruption, as one of the causes of this monstrous proceeding, the writer of the article
adds ¢« Les mdgistrats qui sé trowvent b{essés par ce sypcrscdeas sont dl.t nombre des grands
jurés, et le president de la police siége d cette cour!!” In a more enlightened community,
the writer of such an extravagant article would incur by it universal ridicule and contempt,
and the very excess of its folly would preclude any public ill-consequence fromit ; but it is not
so in this country; where, such is the ignorance which prevails among the people‘fo.r whpse
edification this article was intended, that the charge thus conveyed against the administration
of justice would be gl:avely received, anq a strong impression be produced by it. This article,
inci]ependently of its libellous character, it is proper also to obsel:ve, was de.ser.vmg of th_e most
serious consideration under another aspect, as being a manifestation of a dprmclple. on which the
press from which it proceeds habitually acts, tha}t of misrepresenting and calumniating the ad-
ministration of justice, whenever persons l?elongmg to the party, by wlpch it is supported, are
made obnoxious to punishment, for an infringement of the laws. Mr. Viger, the road-surveyor,
is intimately connected by relationship, and otherwise, with the party by which the Spectateur
Canadien is supported : hence, no doubt, the motive for misrepresenting the proceedings in

uestion ; with an expectation also, it is not uncharitable to suppose, that the petit jury (com-
posed of illiterate persons) by whom the case was to be tried, would not be uninfluenced by

this libellous misrepresentation.

f these prosecutions is derived from an article contained in the Canadian
Specgtl:::' %)f"] l.tt}}x]e 024th of pNovember last, for which an indictment was found a’gainst Mr.
Waller, the Editor, and Mr. Duvernay, the printer of that paper, in His .I\'Ia_]esty s Co.urt of
King’s Bench, held at Montreal in Ma.rCh last, and of which a copy wgll !)e fo.u“fi in the
Extract (No. 4), in the annexed Appendu_t. For the understanding of t'hls libel, it is neces-
sary to mention, that in the Court of King’s Bench, held at Mpntreal in September, 1827,
indictments had been preferred against several persons for perjury, committed by them at
an Election held at William-Henry, in the preceding month of July, by falsely swearing
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.6 .ation to entitle them to vote at that election.—
tl'{at they db-::ssef;dh;geb:eic3$Z¥c§ l[l,a;l‘f}:: Grand Jury of that Court, and new bi]l:s for the
e flil'] {‘L mf'ere referred before the Grand Jury of the Court of Oyer and Terminer and
onc 01 c(n}vcsl‘ddivg‘ held at Montreal in November, 18217, b)_' which ]at.ter_Grand Jury
ﬁfncriills E\l:r)eretfounc{, In the article now referred to, 'the not finding of the bills in September
is :ﬁled « An acquittal by the country ;" and- on ?hl-s gr_ound the Court o(fl' %yer'aﬂdk Terr:
niner is impeached before the public, for having, it is said, .thus overturned the well-know
l;Y)lrlinciplle of the English law, according to wluc}'l an acqmttalhby. a Ju}:‘y ls adp::rt;:citézg
acainst any further prosecution for the same crime ; gmd for avmfg t erefyl'?l rmined
tﬁat an individual is exposed to be prosecuted, to {nﬁmty, f9r an o enceho which 1et th.
already been acquitted by the country. In afidltlon to this lxbellm(lis c iar.ge .agaxlns e
court itself, the grand jury of the same court, having exercised a legal anb conat(itunona .potwer
in finding these bills, 1s charged with having allowed themselves to be used alsl a}r: instru-
ment. The foreman is represented as a person unworthy of conﬁden.ce,hq? ha tﬁ e mer?t
bers of the jury, with the exception of five or six, are held up to obloquy 4 “;‘ ltetlt ?Se-hZfa(:;lt' sr :
are made the objects of special commendation and eulogy ; 1t being stated t 5(11 })lelr ch 'the L;
private and public, and the independent manner with VthC!] they opposed, t gugbl.md olu
success, all these Yroceedings, made an honorable exception in their favour, and obliged the

c

writer of the article to distinguish them from the rest.

This scandalous libel on the court and grand jury, by wh'ich the court is made criminal for
permitting that which is the practice of every day, and by which the proceedings of the lattex;i
rendered secret under the obligation of an oath, are disclosed, or professed to be d1§c]osgd, and
are made the subject of disgraceful remarks, must be referred to Fhe sam,e‘motlve, which dlctated
that already noticed, with respect to the prosecution of Mr. Viger. I'he persons prosecute
for perjury had voted for a candidate supported by the party by which t_heﬁaqadﬁlan apfgcta;]o_r
itself is supported. On this ground, they were to be screened from public justice; and for this
purpose, courts and juries through whose power it was attetppted to bring them to justice, were
to be calumniated, for having entertained prosecutions against them, and were to be overawed
before trial and judgment. T will only beg leave to add, with respect to this prosecution, ttlgt
only one of the indictments for perjury which were ignored by agrand jury in September, 1827,
and found by a grand jury in November following, has been tried, since the publication of this
libellous article, and, on that indictment, the party accused, one Joseph Claprood, was found
guilty by a common jury, on the clearest evidence.

"The fifth and sixth of these prosecutions has been occasioned, by an ar?icle contained in
the Quebec Gazette of the 28th February, 1828, being a newspaper pubhsbed by Sam_uel
Neilson, at Quebec. For this article, an indictment was found against Mr. Neilson, the editor
and printer of the paper, and another indictment against Mr. Charles Mondelet, by the grand
jury, in the Court of King’s Bench, held at Quebec in March last, and a copy of it will be
found in the Extract (No. 5), of the annexed Appendix.

This prosecution differs from those of which an account has been given, ina very important
particular, that is, in what respects the means employed for the composition of the hbe!, and for
giving weight and effect to it. In the prosecutions alyeady n(.)thed, the llb.ellou_s articles pro-
ceeded from insulated individuals, expressing their sentiments, individually: in this prosecution,
the libel proceeded from a number of individuals invested with public authority, as magistrates
and officers of Militia, and associated under the imposing name of a Constitutional Committee.
These persons, being ofticers of Militia, erect themselves into a tribunal for trying the validity
of the public acts and orders of the commander-in-chief of the Militia, and pass sentence on
them, as in their wisdom seemeth fit.—They assume to themselves all the form of a legally-
constituted body, and arraign the conduct of the commander-in-chief, in such terms as toimply
in them a right of determining on it. It is for the publication of a libel proceeding from such
a self-constituted body, and conveyed in the form of resolutions, of a letter, and of a speech,
that this prosecution was instituted. Of the grounds on which the exercise of the power com-
plained of took place, I am ignorant, nor would it seem at all necessary to be informed of them,
inasmuch, as whether right or wrong, it could never be canvassed and determined on, by such
a self-constituted body, as a ¢ Constitutional Committee,” without a surrender of the powers
incident to the established Government. In the resolutions and letter, the conduct of the
commander in chief is arraigned, as being arbitrary and unjust ; and it is said by this body of
militia officers, that in their opinion, ¢ cet allegué de la part de son Excellence (meaning the
fact alleged by the commander-in-chief, as the foundation of his general order,) est entiérement
malfondé.” Tn the speech, the commander in chief is spoken of, in the most disrespectful and
indecent terms ; heis charged, in offensive language, with being guilty of a departure from truth,
with being under the influence of absurd and tyrannical notions, and with making defamatory
accusations, not deserving of refutation; and the administration of the government by him 1s
represented as being influenced and directed by persons ‘¢ qui sS’evertuent a le tromper, et qui
sacrifient honteusement leur honneur et leurs droits, pour encourager une oppression, dont i wy
a jamais eu d'exemple, dans les colonies Angloises!” Not satis?‘i%d with these terms of abuse,
the orator immediately after, characterizes the persons last spoken of, that is, the principal
officers of His Majesty's Government, with whose advice the Governor is presumed to be
assisted, as being a *“ horde d'envahisseurs et de destructeurs (de 1 olonté au moins ) de nos droits,”
and represents two individuals, then recently dismissed from their rank in the militia, as en-
titled to the glory “de voir leurs noms inscrits sur le catalogue de victimes de leur devouement g
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“la cause sacréc de lu patric.” In conclusion, he charges the Commander in Chief with a criminal
and disgraceful abuse of the patronage of the Crown, by stating that the persons on whom
he conferred honours were those  qui ne se les font prodiguer, qien abjurant leur foi poli-
“ tique, qu'en se declarant traitres a la patrie, et en flétrissant pour toujours un nom qui né leur
“ d été douné que pour y ajouter celui de vrai Canadien.”

The seventh of these prosceutions is grounded on an article contained in the same news-
paper, the Quebec Gazette, of the 11th March, 1828, for which an indictment was found
against Mr. Neilson, the printer and editor of that paper, in the same term of the Court of
King’s Bench, held at Quebec in March, 1828, and of which a copy will be found in the
Extract, (No. 6), in the annexed Appendix. )

In this prosecution, the libel is of the same character as that last mentioned. The example
set b[Z the Constitutional Committee of Three Rivers, in composing and publishing the libel of
which an account has been given, was too agreeable to the feelings of the turbulent and ill-
disposed elsewhere, and too well calculated to answer their views, not to be followed : other
meetings of similarly self-constituted bodies, called Constitutional Committces, were therefore
held for a like purpose, and among these a meeting of the United Constitutional Coninittees
of the parishes of St. Gregory, Becancour, Gentilly, and St. Pierre les Becquets, the proceedings
of which gave occasion to the seventh prosecution. At this meeting, the same assumption of
the forms of a legally-constituted public body obtained, as in the case of its prototype at Three
Rivers. In the 1st Resolution, it was declared, that the mecting, being composed of the
magority of the officcrs of the 3rd battalion of the County of Buckinghamshire, would
immediately take into consideration the general order of militia which was complained of ; and
in the ten following resolutions, this meeting of militia officers, assembled in that character,
express, in various forms of language, their disapprobation of the conduct of the Commander
in Chief, which they pronounce to be arbitrary and unjust. But the Gth and 7th of these
Resolutions were particularly deserving of attention. By the 6th they declared, Que les per-
sonnes qui acccptent des commissions, en replucement de cewv qui ont été destitués, sans cause
legitime, mcritent Uimprobation publique, et ne doivent étre considerées que comme enmemis
des droits du peuple. By the Tth they declared, Quc les membres de cette assembléc, formant
la majorite des officiers du dit 3me bataillon du comté de Buckinghamshire, ne prurront obiir
g’ avec morlification, @ la personne qui aura ordre de prondre le commandement du dit
bataillon.

The Constitutional Committee of Three Rivers had passed sentence on the Commander
in Chief, in what related to the general order of which they had taken cognizance. These
united Constitutional Committees go a step further; they not only pronounce judgment on
the Commander in Chief, in relation to the general order taken under their special consideration,
but by their 6th Resolution, they denounce public odium against persons accepting com-
missions, in the place of persons removed; and, by their 7th Resolution, they sufficiently
intimate a disposition not to yield obedience to such persons. Of the dangerous nature of the
associations, from which these libels proceeded, no person could doubt. 'Y'hey were evidently
calculated to bring the authority of the Government into discredit and contempt, and
gradually to supplant it. But however criminal may have been the views of a few individuals,
by whom this seditious machinery was put into motion, it is certainly due to the country at
large to remark, that it was the work of a few persons only, and that the mass of the inhabit-
ants was in no degree infected with the disloyalty that might be inferred from such procced-
ings, in other countries. The necessity, never.theless, of putting a stop to suph associations,
so pregnant with mischief, was urgent ; and thls_was (?ff'ectually accomplished, in this instance,
by restraining the publication of their proceedings in the newspapers. After the two last
prosecutions, of which an account has beeq given, the agency of Constitutional Committees,
in opposing the Government, and in producing disorder, ceased.

The cighth of these prosecutions is grounded on the publication of a letter to the Governor
in Chief, signed Charﬁs Mondelet,” inserted in the Quebec Gazette of 12th November,
1827, for which an indictment was found against ¢ Mr. Charles Mondelet,” in the term of
the Court of King's Bench, held at Quebec in March 1828, and of which a copy will be
found in the Extract, (No. 7), in the annexed Appendix.

The example which had been set by Mr. Lee, in obtaining notoricty, by addressing an
insulting letter to the person at the head of the Government, of which mention has been made,
had already been followed, in one or two instances, and as yet, with impunity, when Mr.
Mondelet, it would appear, became ambitious of the same distinction. It was evident, that
unless this disposition received some check, no act of the Government, disagreeable to an
individual, could be adopted, without exposing the person at the head of it to be traduced
and vilified, in the form of a libellous letter, and without, as a necessary consequence, sub-
jecting the Government itself to disparagement and contempt. It seemed necessary, there-
fore, that this check should be applied, in the case of Mr. Mondelet, who, it was obvious,
had taken Mr. Lee’s letter for his model, and had improved on it, b)_' rendering his own
more offensively libellous. In it Mr. Mondelet, as _Mr. Lee had prev1o.usly done,. chargqs
the commander in chief of the militia, in the most disrespectful terms, yv.nth enforcmg. ordi-
nances as law, which were not law, and with issuing illega ordgr.s_of militia. In relation to
Mr. Mondelet’s removal from a particular division of the militia, on the ground of non-
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)
the cases of some other officers, he accuses his Excellency of
i . . . - A . . ,
ross partiality, and observes, Votre conseil n'a craint, ni pour luz. méme, ni pour v\otre Excel-
lg l; e obzztion ublique, et le ridicule qu'une semblable contradiction mériterait son auteur.
Iencer;o;lh:,*f rart of }ﬁs Ietter, he observes, Si vous m'eussiez taxé, qu'il plaise & votre Ex-
na | a votre
cellence, de I7)n'étre refusé d Texécution de vos ordres generaux, qui me semblent aussi zl,legayx
. s ;
ue sont illearalrs, et non lois, les ordonnances que Uon assigne comme leztr,?ase, vous wauricx
qas 0, l; verité, en justice, me demettre, sans me donner loccasion d’étre e/ntendu‘, mats,
gu n]z)oi,ns les formes de votre ordre general m'aurotent pas, en apparence, choqué la raison, et
o, pas été aussi fortement Pobjet du ridicule. And towards the conclusion o‘f h‘ls
letter he imputes unheard-of tyranny to the commander in chief, in the follow!ng terms: ¢ En
dernier analyse, quil plaise a votre E.rqel{e1zce, Je me permettrai de ‘volz;s dire, en usant d’f
droit dun sujet Anglois, que votre conseil égare grandement votre Excellence, en le portant d
commetire des actes qui devroient étrc inows sous Pempire Britannique, et dont notre colonie

seule offre des exemples.”

residence, as compared with

“he ninth of these prosecutions is grounded on the publication of Mr. Lee's letter above-
ment;})xlll:d, in the Quel}:ec Gazette ofg29th. October, 1827, for which an mdlctmeqt was
found against Mr. Neilson, the editor and printer of that paper, by the Grand Jury, in the
term of the Court of King’s Bench, held at Quebec in March 1828. 1In explanation of this
prosecution, it is sufficient to refer to what is above stated, in relation to the second of these

prosecutions,

The tenth of these prosecutions is grounded, on an article contained in the Quebec
Gazette of 29th November, 1827, for which an indictment was found against Mr. Neilson, the
editor and printer of that paper, in the term of the Court of King’s Bgnch, h.eld at Quebec
in March 1828, and of w’}:ich a copy will be found in th_e Extracts, (No. 8), in tbe annexed
Appendix, This libel is an ampliﬁycation of the two llb-els, which are the sul.)‘]ects. of tbe
third and fourth prosecutions above mentioned, the two being blended and amplified in this.
Upon this prosecution it is sufficient, therefore, to refer to the explanations above given, in
relation to the third and fourth prosecutions.

On the part of the Crown, all due diligence, in bringing these several prosecutions to
trial, has, I beg leave to state, been exerted. The mdlctrpents found at Montreal,.m
November last, were brought by certiorari into the Court of King’s Bench, in the succeeding
term of March, and the trial of them was then moved for,' but the defendants represented
that they were not ready to proceed to trial, and succeeded in obt.almng a postponement of it
till the next term, held in September last. On this last occasion, the trials did not take
place, on the days fixed for them, in consequence of a_difterence of opinion in the ‘members
of the Court, respecting the manner of preparing the lists, from which the special juries for
these trials had been struck: they now stand over, therefore, to be had in the next term,
which will be held at Montreal, in the month of March. With respect to the indictments
found in the Court of King’s Bench at Quebec, in March last, they were found too late in the
term, to admit of the trials being had in it. In the last term, held at Quebec in September,
the multitude of cases of felony, before the Court, precluded the trial of these misdemeanors,
which were therefore permitted, on the part of the Crown, to stand over, and no application
was made for the trial of them, on the part of the defendants; so that these cases also remain
for trial, in the next term of the Court of King's Bench, which will be held at Quebec, in
March next.

In addition to what has been stated respecting these prosecutions, it would seem not to
be foreign to the order of reference, with which your Excellency has honoured me, to notice,
hriefly, some steps which have been taken by the persons indicted, or some of them, in con-
junction with their friends, to render abortive and defeat them.

By the Minutes of the Evidence taken before the Committee of the House of Commons,
on the Civil Government of Canada, in the last session of the Imperial Parliament, which
have reached this country, it appears that a set of Resolutions were produced before the
Committee by Mr. John Neilson, the father of one of the persons indicted, purporting to be
Resolutions of a ¢ Meeting of landholders and other proprietors composing the Committees
appointed at the general meetings of proprietors, held for the purpose of petitioning His
Majesty, and both Houses of Parliament, against the present administration of the Pro-
vincial Government, and for furthering the said petitions, assembled at the house of Louis
Roy Pertelance, Esq. in the City of Montreal, 17th April, 1828,” in which Resolutions these
prosecutions are made the subject of grievance and complaint. Among the names of the
persons, by whom these resolutions are alleged to have been adopted, is that of Mr. Waller,
the person against whom the first, second, and fourth of the indictments above mentioned
were found. " Whether these Resolutions were or were not adopted, at a meeting composed
of the persons whose names precede them, is a matter of some uncertainty. .The names
render it probable, however, that they were so adopted, being the names, generally, of the
known supporters of the papers which are the subjects of indictment, and probably of part
of the proprietors of them, whose acquiescence Mr. Waller would be likely to obtain, in an
statements he would submit to them, on the subjects to which the Resolutions relate, and in
particular, to those declaring these papers to be void of offence. The Resolutions themselves
contain convincing intrinsic evidence of their being the ‘production of Mr. Waller himself,
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who has found it convenient to embody his sentiments and defence in these Resolutions.—
He has evidently not neglected his own defence in them; for, in the 11th Resolution, this
unauthorized meeting of individuals is made to contradict the indictments found by the
Grand Inquest of the District, and to declare the publications which the latter, on their
oaths, pronounced to be seditious libels, < to be innocent and praiseworthy,” and ¢ entirely
free from any thing prejudicial to the laws, or to public order.” This mode of superseding
the authority of the legal tribunals of the country, I cannot but take the liberty of remarking,
is without precedent, and, if successful in this instance, must be destructive of all legitimate
authority. It does not belong to me, to notice the charges contained in these Resolutions,
against the Governor in Chief, Courts, Chief Justice, Sheriffs, Jurors, and other public
functionaries, all of whom it has entered into the views of the writer of these Resolutions to
traduce and villify. But as I am made personally conspicuous in these charges, and am
represented to have acted, from improper motives, and to have discharged my official duty
with undue severity, even oppressively, it seems fit, that, in submitting to your Excellenc

this account of the prosecutions complained of, I should exonerate myself from this foul
imputation, by stating a few particulars. It is insinuated, if not asserted, in these Resolu-
tions, that, in the institution of the prosecutions in question, I have acted under the influence
of personal feelings, from having concurred in advising the militia arrangements complained
of, My feelings, as prosecuting officer of the Crown, must be a matter of indifference, in
relation to the truth or falsechood of criminal charges; but the insinuation or assertion, such
as it is, is entire(]iy untrue, and has been hazarded at randowm, as the other disgraceful impu-
tations contained in these Resolutions have been, merely to bring discredit on individuals
and public authorities, and thereby render the Government itself odious. Except in having
advised the enforcing of the Militia Ordinances, as a part of the law of the land, it has not
fallen, within the scope of my duty, to have any thing to do with the militia arrangements of
the country.—To appointments and dismissals I have been equally a stranger. I am also
represented as a violent opponent of the representative body, but am at a loss to concelve
on what ground; and equally so, to perceive the bearing of this demerit, on the prosecutions
complained of. I am likewise charged with having proceeded, in a ¢ vexatious and oppressive
manncr,” against Mr. Charles Mondelet, of the prosecution against whom an account has
been given. This charge, depending on matter of fact, is easily refuted. It is said, that Mr.
Mondelet ought to have been prosecuted in the district in which he resides, and where his
offence was committed. Had the offences for which he has been indicted been committed
in the district of Three Rivers, this observation would have been true, and he could not
have been prosecuted elsewhere ; but he was not indicted, not for writing or publishing libels
in the district of Three Rivers, in relation to which offences I was in possession of no evidence
to enable me to prosecute him there, but for having published, and caused and procured to be
published, certain libels in the district of Quebec, 1n the courts of which latter district onl

could these offences be cognizable. This charge, therefore, is utterly groundless. But it 15
also said, that Mr. Mondelet was put to inconvenience, in travelling from Three Rivers to
Quebec, to answer these indictments against him, there. This certamnly is an unusual com-
plaint on the part of a person accused, particularly before his _innoccnce.has been ascertained
by an acquittal.—The inconvenience complained of is, necessat:ﬂy, experienced by all persons,
who subject themselves to criminal accusations, and, in making Mr. Mondelet amenable to
the Court of King’s Bench at Quebec, the trouble of travelling hither, on his part, was un-
avoidable. It is also said, that Mr. Mondelet, and the witnesses subpcenaed from Three
Rivers, incurred personal danger, in performing the journey. The route between Quebec
and Three Rivers, the great highway of the province, is known here (though it may not be
known by persons in London, for whose perusal Mr. Waller's Resolutions were intended), to
be free from danger to travellers at all seasons of the year, as much so as a promenade in the
streets of Quebec and Montreal.—If, by any strange misadventure or accident, these persons
should have incurred any risk, it must be considered, as one of the casualties to which men, in
every situation, even in those the most secure, are ]iable,.and for )Vhlch it does not seem
reasonable, to make His Majesty’s attorney-general responmble. It is also represented that |
have acted partially, in selecting for prosecution the edltor.s of one class of newspapers, only.
It has been my duty to prosecute those persons, b)f whom .hbel!ous attacks have been n]z}de.011
the Government, its courts of justice, and its public functionaries, for the purpose of bringing
them into contempt and disgrace, in the minds of the people. If such attacks have been found
in one class of papers only, as has been the case, it sufficiently accounts for my havmg prosecufed
the editors and printers of these, only. With the personal ab_use of contending cditors, which
it might have been prudent and proper, on the part of their respective employel:s, to have
restrained, but not affecting any department of the Government, I have had nothing to do.
The King’s courts of justice have been open to all persons 'aggrleved by.such libels, ax.]d it is
their own fault if they have not sought redress tl}ere, my ministry not being necessary in pro-
curing for them that redress; but it is trifling with the understanding of the persons to whom
such a palliation is offered, to attempt to excuse gross libels on the Government, and its courts
of justice, on the ground that other editors have published libels on some other persons, and on
some other things. I will only beg leave to add, as a general answer to the unfounded
misrepresentations contained in Mr._Waller’s_Resolut}ons, respecting the conduct of these
prosecutions, that in laying the indictments in question before the grand juries, by which
they have been found, I was, and could only be, influenced by a sense of duty; and, in the
several stages of these prosecutions, I have in no respect dgv:ated from the established
course of practice, which is observed in criminal prosecutions. The grand juries, by which the
indictments have been found, have been composed of persons of the first respectahility, in the
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districts of Quebec and Montreal, and have been returned, in the same manncr, as other grand
juries have been, from the period of the conquest downwards. 'Till the publication of the
libels of Mr. Waller and his associates, juries so returned had discharged their duties without
reproach, and no person had ever called in question the purity of the admm.xstrat].m.) of
criminal justice. In the desperate position in which Mr. Waller has placed himself, it is
not surprsing, that the criminal judicature of the country, ho.we.\'el" free from reproach, till
reached by his malignity, should not be acceptable to him: it is yldeed not hl\e_ly t.hat he
should be’satisfied, otherwise than with a judicature of his own choice, or with no judicature
at all; and, of these alternatives, the last would probably be most agreeablc.

I cannot conclude this report to your Excellency, without respectfully deprecating the
dangerous consequences to be apprehended to His Majesty’s Government, and the peace and
tranquillity of the province, from the course which has been pursued by Mr. 1WValler, and his
associates, if it should be permitted to be successful. ‘This course may be characterized in
a few words. The Governor of the Province, the Courts of Justice, Juries, and other prin-
cipal functionaries of His Majesty’s Government, have been grossly calumniated, traduced,
and vilified.—Of these grave offences, the authors of them have been accused, in legal form, by
the Grand Inquests of the Country.—Instead of meeting the charges against them, in the
course prescribed by law, the principal delinquent, for the purpose of counteracting the
legal proceedings had against him and his associates, and in contempt of the authority of
the Court in which the accusations are pending, calls a meeting of his friends and partisans,
who pronounce him and his co-delinquents innocent of the charges against them.— Under
colour of this meeting, he frames Resolutions, containing a specious misrepresentation of
the facts on which the indictments have been found, and proclaims the falsehood of the
charges contained in them.—In these same Resolutions, the principal party accused rencws
the calumnies he had previously published against the Government, and the administration
of justice; and, on the ground that these calumnies are true, presumes to decline the juris-
diction of the Courts before which he and his associates stand indicted, as being corrupt and
unfit to try them. Whether the execution of the laws can be thus eluded, or frustratecr, is an
important question, to which the attention of His Majesty’s Government is necessarily called,
by the foregoing statement. I shall not be thought, I hope, to take an improper liberty, if
I presume to express my humble conviction, that if impunity can be obtained by so unpre-
cefented a course of proceeding, the consequences thence resulting must be a general con-
tempt of the legal tribunals of the country, and an utter inability, on the part of His Majestys
Colonial Government, to assert its authority, and maintain peace and good order.

All which is, nevertheless, most respectfully submitted to your Excellency’s wisdom,
by your Excellency’s

Most obedient humble servant,

(Signed) J. STUART,
Attorney General.

Quebec, 20th October, 1828.
True Copy, J. STUART.
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(No. 1.)

_Extracts from the Canadian Spectator of the 7th November, 1827, containing the
libellous matter, for which an Indictment was found by the Grand Jury, against the Editor

and Printer of that Paper, in a Court of Oyer and Terminer and General Gaol Delivery, held
at Montreal, in November, 1827 : ’

~ “ The Official Gazette talks of the Speaker being the organ of ¢ conciliation’—With whom *
Not between two parties in the Commons over which he presided. There unanimity prevailed
—for two or three voices from the officers of the Government did not disturb the unanimity
in the Commons. Is it conciliation with His Excellency?  What conciliation could be hoped
Jor, with an administration which, for seven years, had been violating the laws, violating the
Constitutional rights of the Country—which had transacted with the Ministers in England, to
declare against us—uwhich had vowed interminable war with our rights—which had dishonoured
and defamed the Lieutenant Governor, who had won the affections of the Country, had treated
it kindly and established harmony—uwhich had refused communication of necessary documents
on important subjects, which had defamed, insulled, and injured the Representative body—
which had sanctioned, in its official papers, the filthiest abuse against all individuals prized by
their countrymen for their abilities, activity, and patriotism?  What hope of conciliation
remains with such an administration, which avows that it will not change, revives Military
Ordinances against the plainest rules of legal construction, and employs the power with which
it vests itself, to punish British subjects, for the evercise of civil rights, coercing the free ex-
pression of political opinion—which travels about thanking any half dozen of remote, ignorant,
Jawning, or designing individuals for addresses, which load it with flattery, and utter
abusive calumnies against the Representative body, chosen by the landholders and freeholders
of the Province? Conciliation s impracticable with such an administration. Conciliation
with the Clerkarchy would be submission, on the part of the Ilouse, to the loss of its essential
rights, to insult, and to dishonour.”

¢ The Country is threatened by the Official Gazette, that if Mr. Papineau is chosen
Speaker, the Governor, placing himselt in opposition to the voice of the whole country, will
refuse his consent and dissolve the House. We hope the House will choose Mr. Papineau,
and show reasous for choosing him, and persist in the choice. That the Governor and his
Council will refuse their ratification we think probable enough ; how far that will be valued we
cannot say ; and we think, it is probable, they will dissolve the House, to the great injury of
the Country. Another subject of discord and discontent will thus be raised, by the present
administration, and the passions of the Executive and of the place-holders will commence
another war against the whole Country. There can be little doubt that such an administration
will be considered as a nuisance, by the British Government, and that its vwn follies and mis-
conduct will, if the country co-operate with firm and decisive measures, speedily extinguish it.”

(No. 2.)

Extracts from the Canadian Spectator of the 3d Nov., 1827, containing the libe!lnus
matter, for which an Indictment was found by the grand Jury, against the Editor and Printer
of that Paper, in a Court of Oyer and Terminer and General Gaol delivery, held at Montreal
in Nov., 1827:

MILITIA.

Our readers will consider the following documents very interesting. Mr. Lee expresses
himself like a British subject. The doctrines, propagated by and on behalf of the Provincial
Erecutive, should make all true British subjects boil, with indignation. The Governor not
accountable ! The Governor by his Proclamation or General Order, to make law and Military
law! And British subjects to be defamed, because they decline obedience to Orders which are
not law! But the Province will yet, and soon, have justice.

« A Son Excellence le Comte de Dalhousie, Gouverneur en Chef de la Province du Bas-
Canada, &c., &c.

¢« MyYLORD,

« Puisque vous vous étes servi des papiers publics, et de votre prérogative, pour me perdre
dans opinion de mes concitoyens, sans m’avoir donné 'occasion légale et usitée, d’étre entendu,
. ”, A hd N 7

je prends la liberté d’employer, trés-respectueusement, la méme voie, pour y répondre.

« Je proteste donc contre I'Ordre Général de Milice du 25 Octobre, présent mois, qui an-
nulle ma Commission de Capitaine au ler Battalion de la Milice de Québec, dont Mr. :Io-
seph Francois Perrault est le Lieutenant-Colonel Commandant, iarce que je me suis honnéte-

ment et légitimement refusé A obéir aux ordres illégaux du Lieutenant-Colonel Perrault :
0
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parce quc wotre Ordre Général d/e Milice, Mylord, comme Gouverp/eu’r en ,C}“i'f’ est ilégal ;—
Parce que Tidée, adroitement r'epandue et propagée dans la société, qu’un Gouverneur, en
vertu de sa Commission, ne serait comptable qu’ a Dicu et sa propre conscience, de toutes ses
actions, ou qu’il pourrait impunément, en.quel/que cas que ce _f/'ul/:, agir arbitrairement, desPo-
tiquement et tyranniquement, envers ]_a liberté ou, la propricte des/\braves et loyaux sujets
Canadiens de sa M ajesté, est une doctrine monstrueuse et qul ne peut-ctre.adn.use sans le plus
grand danger; parce u'un Gouverneur ne peut, Sous le manteau de la loi, n méme sous les
formes les plus strictes de la loi, exerger de la cruauté, de la malice, ou de l'oppression envers
aucun des sujets de Sa Majesté, sans en étrg perspnnellement responsab]e;—'-l?ur{e que vous
vous étes, Mylord, prété injustement a des inszm.zatwns.méchantes, Jausses, et injurieuses a mon
égard ; enfin parceque la lcttre que vous avez fait publier, M, ylord, en téte de cet Ordre Qéneml
de Milice qui annulle ma Commission de Capitaine, contient des absurdités, des faussetés, et est

tncorrecte. « THOMAS LEE,
« Ex-Capitaine au ler Bataillon de Milice
« Quebec, 29e Octobre, 1827. « du Comté de Québec, et Notaire.”

Here follows a translation of the above letter:

To His Excellency the Earl of Dalhousie, Governor in Chief of the Province of Lower
Canada, &c. &c. &c.

My Lorbp,

As you have made use of the Public Papers, and of your prerogative, to ruin me in the
opinion of my fellow-citizens, without having given me the legal and usual opportunity of being
heard, I take the liberty, very respectfully, to use the same mode of conveying my answer.

I protest, then, against the General Order of Militia, of the 25th October, present month,
which annuls my Commission of Captain in the first Battalion of the Militia of Quebec, of
which Mr. Joseph Frangois Perrault is Lieutenant-Colonel-Commandant, because I have ho-
nestly and lawfully refused to obey the illegal orders of Lieutenant-Colonel Perrault, because
your General Ordcr of Militia, My Lord, as Governor in Chigf; is illegal, because the idea,
adroitly circulated and propagated in society, that a Governor, in virtue of his Commission, is
accountable for his actions to God and his own conscience only, or that he can with impunity,
in any case whatever, act arbitrarily, despotically, or tyrannically, in violation of the liberty or
property of His Majesty’s brave and loyal Canadian’ subjects, is a monstrous doctrine which
cannot be admitted without the greatest danger; because a Governor cannot, under cloak of
Law, or even under the strictest forms of Law, exercise cruelty, malice, or oppression towards
any of His Majesty’s subjects, without being personally respousible for it; because you have
lent yourself unjustly, My Lord, to wicked, false, and defamutory insinuations against me ;
finally, because the letter which you have published, My Lord, at the head of the General Order
of Mulitia, which annuls my Commission of Captain, contains absurdities, Jalsehoods, and is
wncorrect.

ExCaptain of '}{‘HOMAS LEE,
x-Captain of the first Battalion of Militi
Quebec, 29th October, 1827. P County of Quebec, and Notarl}l:la of the

(No. 3.)

Extracts from the < Spectatexr Canadien” of the 14th Novr. 1827, containing the libell
for which an Indictment was found by the Grand Jury, against the Printer of tl%at l%a;)ei (i’zsamcﬁ::
of Oyer and Terminer and General Gaol Delivery, held at Montreal, in Novr. 1827. ’

« Cour d'Oyer et Terminer—Lundi dernier les Grands Jurés ont trouvé un True Bill contre Mr
Stanley ’Bagg, pour nuisance, et contre Mr. Jacques Viger pour négligence & remplir les devoirs de sa
?harge d’Inspecteur des chemins, &c. Nous publions sur ce cas intéressant les faits qui sont parvenus
a notre connoissance.

o« Ilya q_uelques mois Mr. Stanley Bagg fit construire, sur un terrain clos, une petite batisse
bois, qui depuis a été habitée. Sur plainte portée devant les Magistrats, aprés iongue contestati elll
majorité des Magistrats, alors présents, ordonna la démolition de l'édifice, et enjoignit A Mr. Vi 0:1] . la
faire démolir aux frais de Mr. Bagg, si ce dernier ne se conformait point 4 leur jugement aanger ela
tain délal.. Mr.‘ Bagg se croyant 1ésé par cette décision, fit une application devant quel u:es M: ‘:nt cer-
qui trouvait quil avait raison de se plaindre, lui accordérent cet ordre de supersedeas dgnt lesd 8
ont déja rendu compte. Cependant Mr Viger, pour obéir i ses ordres, se mit en devoir (l’ex’(mrt:n aulx
jugement. Aussitot, le supersedeas lui fit suspendre ses travaux, et il présenta un rapport en f e aux
Magistrats. Leur corps s’assemble, on veut faire déclarer nul cet ordre; ﬁnalemenrt)]:m s'an on;li: que
le trlbur.xal civil supérieur peut seul décider ce différend, et I'assemblée se disperse, sur cesP:rl;gref :ltu .
les M\aglstratS qui se croient offensés par ce supersedeas envoient au Gouverneur une’ lainte contre ]a e
c?qfreres.—Nous ignorons quelle réponse a pu faire son Excellence. Dlais aujourd'lll)ui I'affaire dev(?mS
sérieuse, et la Cour d’Oyer et Termincr s'en trouve saisie. Quel en sera le résultat, c'ect ce que o
ne pouvons (}n’e-—.I.l parait trés-extraordinaire que Ton traduise ainsi @ la Cour Crim’inelle sanq di iy
tion, des a_gf;azr_es civiles et celles qui appartiennent 3 une classe différente. On oublie et on mé’ ris Sl zsfgéc-
que Ton s'était formées de la Justice et du droit. Le Pays présente un aspect alarmant13 lees :ist;ye:i
2 L
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doivent trembler. Les Magistrats qui se trouvent blessés par ce supersedeas sont du mombre des Grands
Jurés, et le Président de la Police qui a dirigé tous ces procédés, sidge & cette Cour ! une chose nous res-
sure un peu, cest que les Grands Jurés n’auront pas & Juger finalement cette poursuite. Nous n’eutre-
prenons point de disculper Mr, Bagg—S8'il a commis une infraction &la loi, et s'il a empiété sur le ter-
.rein qui n'est pas i lui, il doit étre débouté de ses prétentions. Mauis nous regardons la poursuite au
terme criminel, comme une insulte et un outrage aux lois, puisqu’il y avait un autre tribunal plus compé-
tent pour en juger, et qui en devait étre saisi.”

| Here follows a Translation of the above Extract.]

Court oF Over aND TERMINER..—On Monday last the Grand Jury found a true Bill against Mr.
Stanley Bagg, for a nuisance, and against Mr. Jacques Viger, for neglecting to fulfil the duties of his
oftice of Surveyor of Highways, &c. We now publish, respecting this interesting case, the facts which
have come to our knowledge. Some months since Mr. Stanley Bagg caused to be erected on a piece of
ground, within an enclosure, a small wooden building, which has since been inhabited. In consequence
of a complaint made to the Magistrates, the majority of them present, after a long contestation, ordered
the demolition of the building, and that it should be taken down by Mr. Viger, at the expense of Mr.
Bagg, if he should not comply with their judgment, within a certain delay. Mr. Bagg, considering him-
self injured by this decision, made an application to some M agistrates, wlo, being of opinion that he had
cause of complaint, granted to him the Writ of Supersedeas, of which an account has already been given,
in the Journals. Notwithstanding, Mr. Viger, in order to yield obedience to his orders, was about pro-
ceeding to execute the judgment, when the Supersedeas caused him to suspend his labours, and he pre-
sented a Report in form to the Magistrates. The Body of Magistrates assembled, the object being to
declare this order null ; finally, they became sensible that the Superior Civil Tribunal is alone compe-
tent to the decision of this dispute, and the meeting broke up. At this stage of the proceedings, the
Magistrates, who consider themselves aggrieved by this Supersedeas, transmit to the Governora complaing
against their Brethren of the Magistracy. We are ignorant of the answer which His Excellency may
have given. But now the affair becomes serious, and the Court of Oyer and Terminer holds cognizance
of it.  What may be the result we cannot say. It appears very extraordinary, that in this manner
civil effairs and those of a different description skould indiscriminately be carried before a Criminal Court.
By this proceeding, the ideas which we had formed of Law and Justice are forgotten and despised. The
Country presents an alarming aspect, the Citizens have reason to tremble, the Magistrates who are gffend-
ed by this Supersedeas are Members of the Grand Jury, and the President of the Police, who has directed
ull these proceedings, sits as a Member of this Court. One circumstance diminishes a little our alarm, and
that is, that the Grand Jury will not have to decide finally on this prosecution. We don’t mean to un-
dertake Mr. Bagg’s defence. If he has infringed the law, or if he has encroached on land not belonging
to him, his pretensions ought to be overruled. But we consider the prosecution in the criminal term to
be an insult and an outrage upon the laws, inasmuch as there was another Tribunal more competent to
decide on it, and which ought to have cognizance of it.

Nous ne pouvons terminer sans exprimer le désir que ncus avons, que la Législature s'occupe
promptement des changemens que demande impérieusement l'organisation de nos Cours Criminelles.
Les fonds de la Province doivent etre employés & des objets de nécessité, et non a des poursuites ruineuses pour
le pays, oppressives aux citoyens, et en opposition directe au but de la loi. L'objet qu'ont en vue ceur qui
excitent les deux poursuiles en question est trop €vident ponr que nous nous étendrions d'avantage sur cette
matiére: nous craindrions d'insulter au jugement de nos lecteurs si nous entrions dans des details.

[Here follows « Translation of the above Extract.]

We cannot conclude, without expressing our wish, that the Legislature may speedily take into its con-
sideration the changes which the organization of our Criminal Courts imperiously requires. The public
Sunds of this Province ought to be employed on objects of necessity, and not in prosecutions which are
ruinous to the Country, oppressive to the Citizens, and in direct opposition to the purposes of the law. The
object whick those, by whom these two prosecutions have been got up, have in view, is too evident, to make it
necessary that we should enlarge further on the subject : we should be apprehensive of offering on insult to
the good sense of our readers, if we were to go into details.

(No. 4.)

Extract from the Canadian Spectator of 24th November, containing the libellous matter for which
an Indictment was found by the Grand Jury, against the Editor and Printer of that Paper, in the
Court of King’s Bench, held at Montreal, in March, 1828 :—

In England, a practice almost without exception has established, that an individual acquitted by a
Jury, of an accusation brought against him for a crime or misdemeanor, is protected against any further
prosecution and inquietude, on account of that accusation. Our late Court of Oyer and Terminer has
just given us an example whick overturns from the foundation that principle, and which teaches us that
an individual is exposed to be prosecuted to infinity, for an offence of which he has already been acquitted
by the Country ; and we do not here allude to Mr. Jobin, against whom the Attorney General has pre-
sented, at different times, three Bills Cfor the same offence. However, we console ourselves, with the hope,
that what has just passed in that Court will not be taken as ?.precedent, and that a Jury composed of
independent men will never allow themselves to be used as an instrument, like th.at of zhg late Court of
Oyer and Terminer. 'The foreman, Mr. Henry MKenzie, had taken a very active part in favqur of the
Administration, in the late Election. He had carried his imprudence (to give it no other name) so far
as to require the intervention of the military, at the Elec!:xon of the West Quarter ; he was in the mld.dle
of a fray, where he played a part not suitable for a Justice of Peace; he has ventured to allege publicly
that the Governor of this country was not amenable to the law. This Mr. M Kenzie is a clerk in the
employment of Mr. Molson, and has no other property than his salary.—Would it be possible to expect
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i i ialitv from a man in that situation, who had, as foreman of the Jury,
mu_chd 0£ lx;lgﬁpfvrﬁieﬁzﬁ gge;lmf ?xl;;lrar::t{)art in the Elections on the side opposed to his gpinion? ’[y‘,o
ltl(:)J: f%r sustice in such case would be to show little knowle.dge of human nature ; partxcularly. when

ep knO\thinat this same Mr. M‘Kenzie, instead of withdrawing when the J ury was en ed_ with the
I‘;Vusiness of the Election for the West Ward, did conduct the measure himself, by relating facts,

searching for witnesses, and giving his opinion.

: at the public has great cause of complaint, with respect to the composition and the pro-
ceedin_{;.; i;g_/:;:g glratnd Jfry in quest%on, we owe it to justice to say, that five or siz of tlz'at Jury should be
excepted : their character, private and public, and the independent manner with which they opposed,
though without success, all these proceedings, make an honourable exception in their favour, and oblige me to
distinguish them from the rest, many of whom should have been excluded, from want of property, and other

circumstances.”
(No. 5.)

“ ini i Matter
te from the < Quebec Gazette,” of the 28th Febrqary, 1828, containing t‘he libellous
for w%?c:;}:a:he Irgg]ictmen? was found by the Grand Jury, against the Editor and Printer of that Paper,
in the Court of King’s Bench, held at Quebec, in March, 1828.

« A une assemblée du Comité constitutionel du District des Trois-Riviéres.

(Séance extraordinaire a la maison de Réné Kimber, Ecuyer).

Luxnbi, le 25e Février, 1828.
PRESENS,

M. Réné Kimber a la chaire ; Pierre Defossés, Jean Doucet, Etienne Tapir_l, Jos. Dubord La.fon-
taine, Jean Défossé, Louis R. Talbot, W. Vondenvelden, Joseph Courval, Etienne Leblanc, Pierre
Blondin, L. Olivier Coulombe, Laurent Craig, Charles Mondelet, Ant. Zept. Leblanc, et Ant. Cazeau.

Lu I'Ordre Général de Milice du 21 du courant.—

Résolu, 1o, Que la loyauté, l'intégrité, la fermeté et I'indépendance qui ont de tout tems caractérisé
toutes les actions publiques et privées de Frangois Legendre et Antoine Poulin de Courval, Ecuyers,
Vice-Présidens de ce Comité, et spécialement la conduite gu’ils ont déployée dans la crise qui a
nécessité de la part des habitans de ce pays, des accusations contre le Comte Dalhousie, leur
méritent la confiance et le respect de leurs concitoyens.

Résolu, 20. Que ce Comité a appris, que par I'Ordre Général de Milice du 21 du courant, que Sen
Excellence George Comte de Dalhousie a cassé et démis de leurs rangs de Lieutenant Colonel dans
la Milice, ces deux Messieurs, en alléguant < qu'ils se sont montrés les agens actifs d’un parti

P

hostile au Gouvernment de sa Majesté.

Résolu, 30. Que dans l'opinion de ce Comité cet allégué de la part de Son Excellence est entiérement
mal fondé.

Résolu, 40. Qu'en conséquence, ce Comité se croit autorisé a déclarer que ces démissions ne pourront
jamais porter atteinte 2 la respectabilité de ceux qu'elles ont pour objets.

Résolu, 50. Que 'adresse suivante MM. Frangois Legendre et Antoine Poulin de Courval, soit adoptée
par ce Comité et qu'un comité spéciale composé de quatre Membres, savoir: MM. Jean Doucet,
Joseph Dubord Lafontaine, Etienne Leblanc et Jean Défossés, prenne les moyens de la faire par-
venir 4 MM. Legendre et Courval. (vrai extrait).

CHARLES MONDELET,
ANT. Z. LEBLANC.

Magrpr le 26.—Les quatre Messieurs choisis par le Comité pour faire parvenir 'adresse du Comité 2
MM. Legendre et De Courval, apprenant que Mr. Legendre était en ville, se rendirent & 'hotel
ol il logeait, et lui présentérent 'adresse suivante adoptée par le comité.

Secrétaires,

A Frangois Legendre et Antoine Poulin de Courval, Ecuyers,

Nous, Membres du Comité constitutionnel du District des Trois Rividres, avons cru devoir vous
témoigner c'omblen nous sommes sensibles 3 lm‘]us_tme 3 vous faite, par Son Excellence George Comte
de Dal}’mus1.e, en vous destituant de vos commissions de Lieutenant Colonels. Nous espérons que ce
procédé arbitraire sera repoussé par le Gouvernement paternel de Sa Majesté, et en méme tems nous

prenons la ’hberte de vous assurer que notre estime s’est accrue envers vous, i proportion du rang dont
vous avez ét€ destitué tous deux,

Ce Comité voit en vous deux patriotes courageux, qui acquierent d'autant plus de droits au respect
public, que I'administration s’efforce de les rendre méprisables.

Trois-Riviéres, 25 Février, 1828.
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[(Here follows a Translation of the above Extract.]

At a Meeting of the Constitutional Committee of the District of Three Rivers (extraordinary sitting
in the House of R¢né Kimber, Esquire,) Monday, the 25th February, 1828:—

Present, MM. Réné Kimber in the chair, Pierre Défossés, Jean Doucet, Etienne T apin, Jos.
Dubord Lafontaine, Jean Défossés, Louis R. Talbot, W. Vondenvelden, Joseph Courval, Etienne
Leblane, Pierre Blondin, L. Olivier Coulombe, Laurent Craig, Charles Mondelet, Ant. Z. Leblanc,
and Antoine Cazeau.

Read the General Order of the 21st instant.

Resolved, 1. That the loyalty, integrity, firmness, and independence which have at all times charac-
terized the actions, public and private, of Franqois Legendre and Antoine Poulin de Courval,
Esquires, Vice Presidents of this Committee, and especially the conduet which they have displayed
in the crisis which has made it necessary for the inhabitants of this country to prefer accusations
against the Earl of Dalhousie, entitle them to the confidence and respect of their fellow citizens.

Resolved, 2. That this Committee has learnt that by the General Order of Militia, of the 21st instant,
His Excellency George Earl of Dalhousie, has broken and removed these two gentlemen from
their rank of Lieutenant Colonels in the Militia on an allegation ¢ that they have shown them.
selves the active agents of a party hostile to His Majesty’s Government.”

Resolved, 3. That in the opinion of this Committee, this allegation on the part of IIis Excellency is
entirely unfounded.

Resolved, 4. That in consequence this Committee considers itself authorized to declare that these dis-
missals can never affect the respectability of the persons who have been the objects of them.

Resolved, 5. That the following Address to Messrs. Francois Le Gendre and Antoine Poulin de Courval
be adopted by this Committee, and that a Special Committee composed of four Members, to wit,
Messrs. Jean Doucet, Joseph Dubord Leblanc, and Jean Défoss's do take the necessary steps for
conveying it to Messrs. Le Gendre and Courval,

(True Extract) CHARLES MONDELET, 9 ¢ .
ANT. Z. LEBLANC. ecretaries.

Tuesday, the 26th.—The four gentlemen chosen by the Committee to convey the Address of the Com-
mittee to Messrs. Le Gendre and De Courval having learnt that Mr. Le Gendre was in town,
waited on him at the hotel in which he lodged, and presented to him the following Address
adopted by the Committee.

To Frangois Le Gendre and Antoine Poulin de Courval, Esquires.

We Members of the Constitutional Committee of the District of Three Rivers have thought it
our duty to express to you how sensibly we feel the injustice which has been done to you by His
Excellency George Earl of Dalhousie, in depriving you of your Commissions of Lieutenant-Colonels.
We hope that this arbitrary measure will be put aside by His Majesty’s paternal Government, and at
the same time we take the liberty to inform you that our esteem for you has l?een increased in pro-
portion to the rank of which you have been both deprived. Th‘is Commlttee_ secs in you two courageous
patriots who have acquired the more claims to public respect, since the Administration has endeavoured

to render you contemptible.
Three Rivers, 25th February, 1828.

Avant Padoption des résolutions, Mr. Charles Mondelet, adressa quelques mots 4 lassembl/e,
A-peu-prés, comme suit :

DMessieurs,

Dans un tems od les esprits allajent reprendre cette tranquillité qui distingue les Canadiens, un
nouvel acte de notre administration colonial est venu y mettre une entrave. La Gazette Officielle de
Québec du 21 du courant nous annonce qu'entrautres, Fran?ois Legendre et Antoine Poulin de
Courval, Ecuyers, nos deux Vice-Présidents, ont été démis par le Comte Dalhousie, de leurs commis-
sions de Lieutenant Colonels, et la raison que Son Excellence allégue comme base de cette démission
est, assurément, des plus étranges. Ces Messieurs, le croiriez-vous! Ces \hommes que la loyauté la plus
¢éprouviée, le courage le plus élevé, et l'attachment le plus inviolable 4 leur patrie, ’(]nt toujours si
¢minemment distingués, sont accusés par Son Excellence le Gouverneur en Cl}ef de g¢’trr; montres les
agens actifs d’un_partie hostile au Gouvernement de Sa Majesté! Quelles accusations, 1\1es§1e}1rs, contre
tels hommes! Elles ne mériteraient en elles mémes aucune réfutation, car qui est celui d’entre vous
qui ne sait pas qu'elles sont absolument sans fondement? Mais eHe’s sont portées par une autorité
¢levée qui croit qu'il suffit d'étre exalté en rang, pour attaquer impunément des citoyens respec,tables
et sans reproches. Ces notions absurdes et tyrannigues sont 7{zal{teureftsement partagées par d’autres
que par le Comte Dalkousie; elles le sont par d’autres hommes intéressés 2 les propager et les proner
dans la soci¢té, comme justes et sensés! Il est donc important, Messieurs, que Son Excellence sache
que si son rang est ¢levé, du moins il ne lui donne pas le droit de ‘lancer cor}tre nos citoyens des ac-
cusations aussi injurieuses, et qui seraient sensibles, si elles ne partaient pas d'un quartier qui regorge
de ces sortes de matériaux officiels. p
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Vous vous rappelez tous de I'assemblée de ce District, du 22 Décembre derlme‘rl.. V(it,xs’ 1;31;: .:ap e‘}lel:
qu'elle fut présidé par Mr. Kimber, et MM. Legendre et Courval en étaillent es d1.c'e::- reést cns, Vo
savez tous que ces deux Messieurs ont montré, pour la cause du pays, ce zéle quia dis :lngu al e:
patriotes. Ils ont soutenu avec fermeté les réso}utlons et la requéte qui sous }ie)ulhe sqm?lmeslsqr(:n :
soumises au Roi et an Parlement: impérial, et qui comportent contre le Comte Dal tol’xsxq !fls‘ plain e: ‘
dont le pays entier a proclamé & haute voix la vérité! Ils se sont, en u(xlx- mot', mgn ;es t]')zu lql}en;eg;
les défenseurs de leur patrie, les amis de leur concitoyens, de vrais Canadiens! y uels t:) r;s ;“m, ils
donc pas o la haine et @ la malveillance d'une administration entourée de gens qui § vgrtu;n ‘ .la romper,
et qut sacrifient honteusement leur honneur et leurs droits pour encourager une oppression aon ll by a _"?ma‘;s
eu dezemple dans des colonies Anglaises ! Si MM. Legendrf et Courvdl s'etaient rangés sous la anfuereé e
cette horde denvahisseurs, et de destructeurs (de volonté arn moins) de nos dro_zts, ils aura:e}r;t té
aujourd’hui proclamés comme de fidéles sujets! C’est donc un honneur, une g(lio’lre, pour cfasl raves
citoyens, de voir leurs noms inscrits sur le catalogue sans fin de victimes de leur dévouement 4 la cause
sacrée de la patrie! DMais si nous partageons ces sentimens, hatons nous de les faire connaitre 4 ces
Messieurs. Qu’ils soient dédommaggés, que dis-je! Qu'ils meprisent cetie vaine tentative de les a(ir_lhr.
1Is ne seront jamais avilis puisque la patrie les apprecie ; quen faut il davantage, pour des Canadiens
amis de leur pays!

Nos procédés devenus publics feront voir d Son Excellence que le rang ne swifit pas pour en
imposer, que le mérite seul a du poids chez les honnétes gens, et que Popinion pu{)hque est non
seulement un contrepoids @ des accusations aussi déplacées que les sienmes, mais qu elle est mﬁzn-
ment préferable d tous les honneurs dont il abreuve ceux qui ne se les font prodiguer, qu'en
abjurant leur foi politique, qu'en se déclarent traitres a la j)atrze, et en jleh:zssa:z,t pour toujours
un nom qui ne lewr a été donné que pour y ajouter celui de “ vrais Canadiens.

[ Here follows a Translation of the above Extract.]

Before the adoption of the Resolutions, Mr. Charles Mondelet addressed a few words to the
Meeting, nearly as follows : —

Gentlemen,

At a time when the public mind was about resuming that tranquillity which distinguishes Cana-
dians, a fresh act of our Colonial Administration has occurred to prevent it. The Official Gazette of the
21st instant informs us, that among others Frangois Legendre and Antoine Poulin de Courval, Esquires,
our two Vice-Presidents, have been deprived by the Earl of Dalhousie of their Commissions as Lieu-
tenant-Colonels, and the reason assigned by His Excellency for this measure is certainly most singular.
These gentlemen—would you believe it ?—these men, who have always been eminently distinguished for
tried loyalty, the most elevated courage, and the most inviolable attachment to their country, are ac-
cused by His Excellency the Governor in Chief of having shown themselves active agents of a party
hostile to His Majesty’s Government ! 'What accusations, gentlemen, against such men! In themselves
these accusations would not merit a refutation, for who is there among you that is not aware, that they
are absolutely without foundation? But they are made by an elevated authority which conceives it
sufficient to be exalted in rank, to attack with impunity citizens who are respectable and without re-
proach. These absurd and tyrannical notions unfortunately are entertained by other persons besides the
Earl of Dalhousie; they are entertained by other men interested in propagating and inculcating them
in the society, as being just and sensible ! It is then important, gentlemen, that His Excellency should
know that if his rank be élevated he derives from it no right to level against our citizens accusations
so defamatory, and which would be sensibly felt, if they did not proceed from a quarter which abounds
with materials of this deseription. '

Youall recollect the Public Meeting of this District of the 22d December last. You recollect that
Mr. Kimber presided at it, and that Messieurs Legendre and Courval were Vice-Presidents. You all
know that these gentlemen evinced for the country the same zeal for which so many other patriots have
been distinguished. 'They supported with firmness the Resolutions and petition which in a few weeks
will be submitted to the King and to the Imperial Parliament, and which contain charges against the
Earl of Dalhousie, of which the whole country has loudly proclaimed the truth! They have in a word,
shown' themselves publicly the defenders of their country, the friends of their fellow citizens, true
Canadians! Wahat titles, then, have they not acquired to the hatred and malevolence of an Administration
surrounded by persons who labour to deceive it, and who shamefully sacrifice their honour and their. rights
to encourage an oppression of whick -no example has ever been afforded, in English Colonies ! . If Messieurs
Legendre and Courval had enlisted themselves under the banners of this horde of invaders and déstroyers
(at least in inclination) of our rights, they would now have been held Jorth as faithful subjects! It is
then an honoy, a glory, for these brave citizens to see their names inscribed on the interminable
catalogue of victims of their devotion to the sacred cause of their country ! But if we shave in these
sentiments, let us hasten to make them known to these gentlemen. Let them be indemnified,—what
do I say ?—let them despise this vain attempt to degrade them, they can never be degraded, inasmuch

a8 the country sets a proper value on them ; and what m i i
Erionas oy ptay sets & E;r ?p what more can be desired by Canadlans- who are

Our Proceedings when made public will teach His Excellenc ) ] i
. v His Exe Y, that rank alone is not a sufficient title to
:"s]’“‘: that m""fllonl.y has weight among honest people, and that public opinion is not onlchzﬂicounterpaise
7,0 agcjusatzzns 0 ;: ~timed as fhose made by_hi"b but that it is infinitely preferable to all the honors in which
¢ steeps those who only obtain them by abjuring their political faith, by declaring themselves traitors to

the country, and by di ; . . j . . . y
that qf“';yr;:e Cari{di(:fframng Jor ever a name which was only given to them that they might add to it
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BEAUPORT, Jer Février, 182x.

Narcisse Duchesnay, Ecuyer, Lieutenant-Colonel, &c. &c.
Mon Colonel,

Sous I'administration d’un homme 3 jamais mémorable et digne de I'amour de tous les bons et
loyaux sujets, je me trouvai honoré de mériter assez la confiance d’un si illustre personnage pour me
charger d'une Commission d'Enseigne. Mais en ce jour que tout est vénal, que l'on ne saurait &tre
citoyen étant milicien commissionné, que tant de personnes mille fois plus respectables que moi ont été
(.leplacée.s et que d’autres étrangers et inconnus, ont été substitués A leur place, je me croirais sousllé si
Je retenais une commission qui n'e plus rien que de degradant & mes yeuz.

Quelque honoré que je fusse lorsque je regus cette commission, je ne U'acceptai qu'aprés avoir su gue
. . > . 7 . . . ar
mon de}zozr serait_d’agir conformément @ la loi. Cette conformité ne pouvant plus étre, ma commission
cesse d'exister. Elle est a vous disposez en.

(Signé) M. PARENT.

(Here follows a Translation of the above Ertract.)
Bravport, Ist February, 15828,

Narcisse Duchesnay, Esquire, Lieutenant-Colonel, &c. &e.
My Colonel,
Under the Administration of a man for ever memorable and worthy of the love of all good and

loyal subjects, I felt myself honoured in meriting sufficiently the confidence of so illustrious a personage,
to be charged by him with the Commission of Ensign.

But at this moment when every thing is venal, when it is impossible to be at the same time a
Citizen and a Militia officer, when so many persons a thousand times more respectable than me, have
been displaced, and when other persons, strangers, and unknown, have been substituted in their place,
I skould consider myself polluted if I retained a Commission which has-no longer any thing in it but what is
degrading in my eyes. It is yours, dispose of it.

How much soever I was honoured when I received this Commission, I did not accept it till I was
assured that it would be my duty to act in conformity to law. As this conformity can no longer obtain, my
Commission ceases to exist.

(Signed) M. PARENT.

(No. 6.)

Extract from the Quebec Gazette of the 11th March, 1828, containing the libellous
matter, for which an Indictment was found by the Grand Jury, against the Editor and Printer
of that Paper, in the Term of the Court of King’s Bench held at Quebec in March, 1828.

A une Assemblée Générales des Comités constitutionnels des Paroisses de St. Gregoire Bécancour,
Gentilly et Saint Pierre les Becquéts, tenue dans la maison de M. Joseph Malhiot, en la Paroisse de
Blcancour, le 5 Mars courant :

Present.—MM., Jean B. Hébert, 2 la Chaire, Joseph Turcot, Antoine Leblanc, Vice-Presidens.

J. B. Legendre, Michel Malhiot, Ls. Landry, B. B. Beauchéne, Jean Turcot, M. Gingras, Pierre
Dubois, Julien Reau, Isidore Désilait, Jos. Malhiot, Laurent Genest, Alexis Reau, J. B. Panneton,
D. Prince, Js. Chartier, Ls. Leblanc, P. Désilait, J. Beauchéne, Jos. Bellefeuille, Frs. Héon, Thomas
Fortier, Joseph Pepin.

Lu I'Ordre Gé¢néral de Milice du 21 Février dernier.

Résolu, lo. Que cette Assemblée composée de la majorité des Qfficiers du 3me. Bataillon du
Comté de Buckinghamshire, doit s’occuper de suite de la_destitution tfe Frs. Legendre,
Lcuyer, comme Lieutenant-Colonel Commandant le dit Bataillon, opérée, par U'Ordre
Général du 21 Iévrier dernier.

Résolu, 20. Que pendant le tems que le dit Frs, Legendre, Ecuyer, été Commandant du dit Bataillon,
et de la ci-devant division de Bécancour, il s'est toujours conduit d'une manicre loyale et irré-
prochable, qui lui a mérité le respect, la confiance et Pestime de toutes les personnes qui ont été
sous son Commandement.

Résolu, 30. Que cette Assemblée regrette infiniment que Son Excellence ait usé de son autorité, pour
priver ce Monsieur, d’une Commission dont il remplisait les devoirs, avec honneur, par sa justice,
<a modération, et son exactitude.

Résolu, 4o. Que cette Assemblée ne voit aucune raison qui ait pu induire Son Ezcellence & agir d’une
maniére aussi arbitraire, si ce West le zéle avec lequel Frangois Legendre, Ecuyer, s'est conduit
comme Membre du Comité constitutionnel du District des Trois-Riviéres.

Résolu, 50. Que cette destitution ainsi que plusieurs autres, est une preuve non equivoque que
Son Excellence écoute les faux rapports des personnes ennemis de tout ce qus est libéral et
constitutionnel, et qui ne cherchent qu’d assowvir la haine qu'elles ont contre le peuple

Cranadien.
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Reésolu, Go. Que les personnes qui acceptent des Commissions en ‘remplacemeut. de ceux qui ont
été destitués sans cause légitime méritent Pimprobation publique, et ne doivent étre consi-

dérées que comme ennemus des droits du peuple.

Résolu, 70. Que les Membres de cette Assemblée, formant la majorité des Qﬁcierf du dit 3me
Bataillon du Comté de Buckinghamshire, ne pourront obéir gu’qvec mortification d la per-
sonne qui aura ordre de prendre le conmandement du dit Bataillon.

Résolu, 80. Qu’une Lettre soit adressé a Frangois Legendre, Ecugyer, et présentée par deux personnes
choisies par la dite assemblée, lui témoignant qu’elle le regardera toujours comme un ami sincére
des droits du peuple, gu'elle considérera sa destitution comme une couronne civique que son déveue-
ment lui @ méritée, qu'elle aura toujours pour lui le méme respect, le méme confiance et la méme
estime qu'elle a eu pour lui, et qu'il a justement mérités, soit comme Représentant du Comté,
Lieutenant-Colonel, Magistrat ou simple citoyens.

Résolu, 90. Que la Lettre suivante & Mr. Legendre, soit adoptée, et J. B. Hébert, et Louis Landry,
Ecuyers, soient priés de la lui présenter.

Résolu, 100. Que cette Assemblée remercie le président du zéle qu’il a montré dans la présente cir-
constance.

Résolu, 110. Que les procédés de cette Assemblée soit publiés.

(Pour vraie Copie,) (Signé) LAURENT GENEST, Scr.

Le 7 du courant MM. Hébert et Landry se sont rendus aux désirs de I’Assemblée, en présentant
3 Mr. Legendre 'adresse qui suit:

Monsieur,—Nous Soussignés Officiers de votre ci-devant bataillon, avons appris par un Ordre
Général du 21 Février dernier, qu’fl a plu & Son Excellence de vous priver de votre Commission de Lieu-
tenant-Colonel. Cette destitution nous eut surpris dans tout autre tems et toute autre circonstance,
mais accoutumés a voir des personnes de la plus haute considération destituées, nous avions déja prévu
que votre mérite personnel et votre dévouement 2 la cause publique, vous exposeraient 3 la critique
d’agens subalternes, qui pour avoir votre Commission, vous représenteraient sous un faux jour, auprés
d’un chef militaire. Nous vous assurons que nous conservons l'estime, la considération, et le respect
?ue votre conduite civile et militaire vous a meérités, e que nous comsidérons votre destitution comme

quivalente & une couronne civigue.

(Signé) JEAN B. HEBERT, Président.
LOUIS LANDRY.

(Réponse de Mr. Legendre.)

Messieurs,—Je suis sensible a 'éstime que vous me témoignez en cette circonstance. Votre dévoue-
ment me prouve ce que vous avez été par le passé, 3 mon égard, je vous en remercie. Je n’ai été nulle-
ment surpris de voir dans la Gazette Officielle, un Ordre Général du Comté Dalhousie, qui annongait
ma destitution de commandant du 3me Bataillon du Comté de Buckinghamshire, aprés les projets de-
puis longtems médités contre moi, par des gens vils et rempans, qui ont enfin trouvé une occasion
favorable dans la crédulité d'un chef qui se laisse induire en erreur par les imposteurs qui lancent au
hasard des jugemens sans avoir entendu les parties accusées.

J’ai I’honneur d'étre, Messieurs,
Votre Serviteur,

(Signé FRANCOIS LEGENDRE.
Gentilly, 7 Mars, 1828. &¢)

[Here follows a Translation of the above extract.]

At a General Meeting of the Constitutional Committee of the Parishes of St. Greqoire, B
Gentilly and St. Pierre les Becquets, held in the house of M{-‘. Joseph Malhi{t in the ef’a;';zil o:‘c;}'::::x:-’
cour, the 5th March instant :—

4 Present.—Messieurs Jean Bte. Hebert, in the Chair, Joseph Turcot, Antoine Leblane, Vice-Pre-
sidents. ’

J. B. Legendre, Michel Malhiot, Ls. Landry, B. B. Beauchéne, Jean Turcot, M. Gi Pi
Dubois, Julien Reau, Isidore Désilait, Jos. Malhiot, Laurent Genest, Alexis clg.e,au, J. lﬁ.grlgsa;m;:or::

D. Prince, Js. Chartier, Ls. Leblane, P. Désilait, J. i éon,-
Fortin, Jongh osts esilait, J. Beauchéne, Jos. Bellefeuille, Frs. Héon, Thos.

Read the General Order of Militia of the 21st February last.

Resolved, 1. That this Meeting, composed jority of i
) ; posed of the majority of the Qfficers of the 3d Battalion
of the Cqunty of .Buckmgiamshzre, ought immediately to takéﬁ;'r:to céﬁsiderutz’on the re-
mf;?al of Frangois Leéendre, Esquire, as Lieutenant Colonel commanding the said Bat-
talion, effected by the General Order of Militia of the 21st February last.



APPENDIX. 6l

Resolved, 2. That during the time that' the said Frs. Legendre, Esquire, was Commandant
of the said Battalion, and of the late division of Becancour, his conduct was always loyal

and irreproachable, which procured him the respect, confidence and esteem of all persons
who have been under his command.

Resolved, 3. That this Meeting regrets infinitely that His Excellency should have exerted
his authority for the purpose of depriving that Gentleman of a Commission, the duties of
which h_e fulfilled with honour, by reason of his justice, his moderation and his
punctuality.

Resolved, 4. That this Meeting can perceive no reason which could have induced His Excel-
lency to act in so arbitrary a manner, unless it be the zeal with which Frangots Legendre,

Esquire, conducted himself as a Member of the Constitutional Committee of the District
of Three Rivers.

Resolved, 5. That this removal, as well as several others, is an unequivocal proof that His
Excellency listens to the false reports of persons who are enemies of every thing that
is liberal and constitutional, and who are only anxious to gratify the hatred they bear
to the Canadian people. o

Resolved, 6. That persons who accept Commissions, in the place of persons who have been
removed, without legal cause, are deserving of the public disapprobation, and are to be
considered in no other light, than in that of enemies of the rights of the people.

Resolved, 7. That the Members of this Meeting, forming the majority of the Officers of the
said 3rd Battalion of the County of Buckinghamshire, will not submit to obey, without
mortification, the person who will receive orders to take the command of the said
Battalion.

Resolved, 8. That a letter be addressed to I'rangois Legendre, Esquire, and presented to
him by two persons chosen by the said Meeting, assuring him this Meeting will always
consider him a sincere friend of the rights of the people, that it will consider his removal
as a civic crown acquired by his devotion, that it will always entertain for him the same
respect, the same confidence and the same esteem which it has heretofore entertained,
and which he has justly merited, in the several capacities of Representative of the County,
Lieutenant Colonel, Magistrate and simple Citizen.

Resolved, 9. That the following letter to Mr. Legendre be adopted, and that J. Bte Hebert
and Louis Landry, Esquires, be requested to present it to him.

Resolved, 10. That this Meeting thanks the President for the zeal shown by him on this
occasion.

Resolved, 11. 'That the proceedings of this Meeting be published.
(A true copy) (Signed) LAURENT GENEST, Secretary.

The 7th instant, M. M. Hebert and Landry complied with the desire of the Meeting by
presenting to Mr. Legendre the following address:

S1r,—We the undersigned Officers of your late Battalion havg learnt bfy a Gen‘eral quer
of the 21st February last, that it has pleased His Excellency to deprive you of your Commission
as Lieutenant Colonel. This dismissal would have surprised us at any other time and under
different circumstances; but, accustomed to see the dismis_sal of persons of Fhe highest con-
sideration, we had already foreseen that your Eersonal merit and your devotion to the public
cause would expose you to the invidious remarks of 'subaltern agents, whq, in order to obtain

our Commission, would represent you in a false light to a Military Chief. We assure you
that we preserve for dyou the esteem, consideration and respect, \\(hlch your civil a{ld military
conduct have entitled you to, and that we look upon your dismissal as being equivalent o «

civic crown. (Signed) JEAN BTE. HEBERT, President,

LOUIS LANDRY.
(Answer of Mr. Legendre.)

GENTLEMEN,—I am sensibly affected by the esteem you show for me on this occasion.
Your devotion assures me of the sentiments you have entertained for me in times past, and I
thank you for it. I was not at all surprised to observe, in the Official Gazette, a General Order
of the Earl of Dalhousie, which announced my dismission from the 3d Battalion of the County
of Buckinghamshire, after the plots long since hatched against me, by mean and crouching
individuals, who at last have found a favourable opportunity in the credulity of a Chief who
permits himself to be drawn into error by impostors, who decide at random without hearing

arties accused.
thep I have the honour to be, Gentlemen,

Your Servant,
(Signed) FRANS. LEGENDRE.
Gentilly, 7th March, 1828. ‘ Q



APPENDIN.

1)

(No. 7.)

vov. 1827 ini he libellous matter
DAY tl ucbec Gazette of the 12th Nov. 1827, containing t .
for \ﬁl\lg:l c;nfr;)r:?lict)ﬁxgn was found by the Grand Jury against Mf‘ Charles Mondelet, in
the Term of the Court of Xing’s Bench held at Quebec, in March, 1828.

A Son Excellence George Comte de Dalhousie, Gouverneur-cn-Chef, &c. &ec. &e.

Qu’il plaise 4 Votre Excellence,

Si je n’écoutais que la voix qui se fait entendre Puissarpment au fo:ul tdes C((J:el;lr:'s.\dsoli)sa:[;
coup de vos partisans, et de la plupart de vos courtisans, je S€rais p?lll -el* re en o td, olr e
vous un étre privilégié, et a I'abri des atteintes de la loi. Mais, qu’il p! :use a Votre Excel-
lence, glorieux d’étre né et de vivre sujet Brx.ta}nmque, je dmsdrecnnnatl re ((:iomme gl’?acllopli
souverain, que la loi est au dessus des autorites. Il me sera donc }l)eln31!§<r te mEe} p ell
du droit dont jouit un sujet de Yempire Britanmque, celui d,e signaler a 3& tc'le xce ipce,
avec tout le respect que votre haut rang commande, un acte récent de vgtre] ,ml_n}stra ion,
qui, ce me semble, ne lui donne pas beaucoup de relief. La plus grande c alrte 1:1 je ncel:, me
trompe, aussi bien que la bonne foi la plus scrupuleuse, d’owe.nt caracterls/erd es 1ctes .u\ne
Administration quelconque; la bonne foi dans leur perpétration, la clarté dans la maniere
et le mode ot il sont soumis au public. Or, qu'il plaise a Votre Excellence, quelqueN soit
le mérite des motifs qui ont pu induire Votre Conseil a vous porter a me démettre de ma Com-
mission de Capitaine Aide Major & la division de Bouchervﬂ!e, Je prendrai la liberté de
représenter a Votre Excellence, que votre Conseil s’est un peu écarte de la saine logique, en
vous avisant sur cette matiere, abstraction faite de l’zl{égalzté 'de votre ({rdre Général du
5 Novembre courant, a Uémanation duguel votre Conseil a fait servir d’instrument, Votre
Excellence. La raison assignée comme Cause agissante sur Tesprit de Votre Excellence, me
paroit-étre mon absence de la Division a laquelle j'appartenais. Il faut avouer, que si cette
découverte de la part de Votre Conseil est récente, elle ne dl't I?eaucoup en sa faveur; si lop
savait que je ne résidais pas a4 Boucherville, comment se fait-il que le zéle de VOtI'B/COI)SEll
ait ¢té jusqu'd présent si endormi? Si donc? l.e.motlf de Votre f_Exce_llence, pour me demettre,
est appuyé sur ma non-résidence dans la division de Boucherville, il est assez singulier que
MM. Charles Panet, Pierre Elzéar Taschereau, et Charles Turgeon, également absens des
divisions auxquels ils appartiennent, soient devenus les objets des prédilections de Votre
Conseil, au point de engager i aviser aussi singuliérement Votre Exce!lencje. Ces Messieurs
sont promus, et chose frappante, Votre Conseil n’a craint ni pour lui méme, ni pour Votre
Eueellence, la reprobation public, et le ridicule qu’une semblable contradiction merztergzt d son
auteur! Peu de lignes la montrent au public dans tout son jour. Il me semble, qu il plfnse
i Votre Excellence, que la loi, la justice, et la saine politique (q}u dans une administration,
doit avoir pour but de ne pas exciter des mécontentemens) auraient du suffire pour ne pas
égarer A ce point, Votre Conseil, et par suite, Votre Excellence. Démettre d’e ses fonctions
quelconques, un sujet Britannique, sans lui donner préalablement I'occasion Qéltre entendu,
sans lui assigner de raisons, ou lui en assigner qui couvrent de ndlcule.]e. procédé quiy tend,
aussi bien que ceux qui I'adoptent, n'est pas beauCOu(f respecter les opinions, ]qs idées et les
principes, que Pige actuel, et le systéme admirable de 'administration Britannique, ont con-
sacrés, au foyer de l'empire qui, grace & Votre Conseil, est souvent privé de nous faire ressentir
la douce influence des rayons qui en jaillissent. Si vous m’eussiez taxé, qu'il plaise a Votre
Excellence, de m'étre refusé a lexécution de wvos ordres généraur, qui me semblent aussi
illégaur que sont illégales, et non lois, les ordonnances que Von assigne comme leur base,
vous n'auriez pas pu, a la vérité, en justice, me démettre, sans me donner occasion d’étre
entendu, mais au moins, les formes de votre Ordre Général n’auraient pas en apparence
choqué la raison, et cette ordre n'aurait pas été aussi fortement V'objet du ridicule de ceux
qui ne font pas profession volontaire ou necessaire de courber servilement la téte a la voix de
celui que plusieurs regardent comme étant au dessus des lois. En derniére analyse, qu’il
plaise a Votre Excellence, je me permettrai de vous dire, en usant du droit d’un sujet Anglais
que votre Conseil égare grandement Votre Excellence, en la portant @ commettre des actes qui
devraient étre inouis sous U'empire Britannique, et dont notre Colonie seule offre des exemples.
Quant a ma démission (qui dans le fond n’en est pas une puisqu'il W’y a aucune loi de milice)
loin de me peiner, loin de produire sur moi I'effet que Votre Conseil et Votre Excellence en ont
peut-étre anticipé, elle ne peut que me rendre glorieux, soit qu'elle ait ew pour cause mon
refus de reconnaitre comme lois, des ordonnances qui ne le sont pas, soit qu'elle ait été la suite
de la conduite politique que la justice, mon respect pour les ﬁix et la constitution, et mon
attachement inébranlable aux intéréts de ma patrie, m’ont imposé le dévoir impérieux de tenir.
Telle a été ma conduite, qu'il plaise a Votre Excellence, telle elle sera, tant que jaurai le
bonheur de me glorifier d’&tre un sujet Britannique.

CHARLES MONDELET,

Ex-Capitaine Aide-Major 2 la division de Boucher-
ville, et Avocat résident aux Trois-Rivieres.

Québec, 10 Novembre, 1827.
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[Here follows a Translation of the above Extract.]

To His Excellency George, Earl of Dalliousie, Governor in Chief, &c. &c. &c.
May it please Your Excellency,

If I were only influenced by the voice which is strongly emitted from the bottom of the hearts of
your partisans, and of the greater part of your courtiers, I should perhaps be inclined to see in you
a privileged being, not to be reached by law; but, may it please Your Excellency, proud of being
born and of living a British subject, I must admit, as a sovereign principle, that the law is superior
to the authorities. I may then be permitted to avail myself of the right which every British subject
enjoys, that of exposing to Your Excellency, with all the respect due to your high rank, a recent
act of your administration, which it appears to me is not much calculated to signalize its character.

The greatest clearness, if I am not mistaken, as well as the most scrupulous good faith, ought to
characterize the acts of every administration ; good faith in the performance of them, clearness in the
mede and manner of submitting them to the public. Whatever then, may it please Your Excellency,
may be the merit of the motives which have led your Council to advise you to dismiss me from my
Commission of Captain aide Major in the division of Boucherville, I will take the liberty of telling
Your Excellency, that your Council has deviated a little from sound logic in advising you on this
subject, to say nothing of the illegality of your General Order of the Gth November instant, in the
issuing of which your Council has made Your Exzcellency an instrument. The reason assigned, as the
determining cause in Your Excellency’s mind, appears to be my absence from the division to which
I belonged. It must be admitted that if this discovery on the part of your Council be recent, it is
not very creditable to it; if it was not known that I did not reside at Boucherville, how happens
it that the zeal of your Council has been, up to the present time, so sluggish ? If, then, the motive
of Your Excellency for dismissing me has been my non-residence in the division of Boncherville,
it is rather singular that M. Charles Panet, Pierre Elzéard Taschereau, and Charles Turgeon,
equally absent with myself from the divisions to which they belong, should have become such
peculiar objects of the favour of your Council, as to induce it to give Your Excellency such extra-
ordinary advice. These gentlemen have been promoted, and singular to say, your Council has not beer
Searful, either for itself or for Your Excellency, of public reprobation, or the ridicule which such con-
tradictory conduct must bring on the person guilty of it! A few lines will suffice to exhibit it to the
public in all its deformity.

It appears to me, may it please Your Excellency, that law, justice, and sound policy (which under
an administration ought to have for its object not to cxcite discontent) ought to have had sufficient
influence to prevent your Council, and as a necessary consequence Your Excellency, from thus going
astray. To dismiss a British subject from his public functions, without first affording him an oppor-
tunity of being heard, without assigning him any reasons for the measure, or assigning such as_cover
both the measure itself as well as those by whom it has b_een adopted_wx'th rldlcqle, is certainly not
manifesting much respect for public opinion, and for the ideas and principles which the present age
and the admirable system of British administration have consecrated at the seat of the Empire, which,
thanks te your Council, is often prevented from making us sensible of its mild influence.

If you had charged me, may it please Your Excellency, with a refusal to execute your General Orders,
which appear to me to be as illegal and as destitute of all legal character as the ordinances which are alleged
to be the foundation of them, you could not, it is true, in justice dismiss me without giving me an oppor-
tunity of being heard, but at least, in its form, your General 'order wqu{d not {uwe been revolting to
reason, and that Order would not have been so str:ikzng an object oj: rldzcul_e.wnh men ‘who do not
make a voluntary or constrained profession of bowing their heads with serv1hty,.on hearing t.he voice
of him who in the estimation of many is considered to bfe above the laws. F mal_ly, may it please
Your Excellency, I will take the liberty of telling you, with the freedom of a British subject, tkat
your Council leads Your Eaxcellency sadly astray, by inducing you to commil acls whick onght to be
unheard of under British dominion, and of which our Colony alone exhibits _e.z‘amples. As to my
dismissal (which in fact is no dismissal at all, inasmuch as there are no Militia Laws), far from mor-
tifying me or producing on me the effect which your Council and your Excellency may have anticipated,
it can only redound to my honour, whether it has been occasioned by my refusal to acknowledge to be
law, ordinances which are mot so, or by the political conduct which justice, my respect for the laws
and constitution, and my inviolable attachxpent to the interests of my country, h'ave corppelled me to
pursue. Such has been my conduct, may it please Your Excellency, such it will continue to be, as
long as I shall have the happiness to boast of being a British subject.

CHARLES MONDELET,
Ex-Captain Aide Major, in the division of Boucherville,
and Advocate, residing at Three Rivers.
Quebec, 10th Nov. 1828.

(No. 8.)

from the Quebec Gazette of the 29th Nov. 1827, containing the lil}ellous matter, for
whicllxg::lrii?ltgictglrgnt Svs% found by the Grand Jury against Mr. Neilson, the Editor and Printer of
that Paper, in the Term of the Court of King’s Bench held at Quebec in March 1828.

Nous avons vu que le Procureur-Général a soumis au grand juré des bills d’accusation pour hl\mlle,
savoir; deux contre MM. Waller et Duvernay, Yun éditeur et }’autre imprimeur dq C.ax’mdien‘ bgec-
tateur, un contre M. Lane, imprimeur du Spectateur Canadien ; et que la majorité des jurés a
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approuvé ces bills. Pour toute remarque, Jje renvoie 3 la composition du juré; et je declare seulement
qu:e c'est la premiere fois, @ ma connaissance, qu'une cour de justice, au lieu d'inspirer, la confiance et la

securité a tous les citoyens, a paru inspirer au contraire des craintes pour la liberté ct la propriété des
individus en.général, qu'elle (tait censée défendre.

Le bill trouvé contre les Editeurs des Papiers qui ne sont pas les fauteurs d’u powvoir arbi-
traire, est certainement digne des oulres proce,des d’une cour qui, au lien (!e § o&cugeQ coméne
lindique la pratique constante et le discours d’ouverture de son honneur Ile Juge ei ; a vuider
les prisons surchargées de brigands, d’,ncemgz-azres et de meurtners, a priy pll) esque e{cduswe;nlelmt
pour objet de ses travaux pendant une durée de quinze jours, des offense, bien mowndres, af es
que des émeutes, des assaults et batteries de simples déhits ; devant l_aq/uelle enfin on a éra uit,
pour des offenses politiques, des personnes qut a‘vc,uent deja été acquitiées par un jure Lu ]iggﬁs,
ou d’autres personnes qui n’étaient pas méme arrélées lors de la,co,nstztutzqn de la cour. e; ; ills
pour parjure trouvé contre eux 4 la peursuite du Procureur-Général, maintenant partleépu ique
contre eux, et qui avait été acquittés au dernier terme du banc du roi; lgs bills pour émeute et
assault et batterie contre nombre d'électeurs du quartier-ouest de Mor’lt.real, lorsgue le dernier

rand juré avait trouvé bill contre deux senlement pour rescue ou délivrance d’un prisonnier
g’entre les mains d’un connétable; laccusation portée contre Mr. Jacques Vger pour n'avoir
pas mis & exécution un ordre des magistrats, n’ayant pu le faire en conséquence d’un supersedeas
accordé par plusieurs autres membres de ce corps; enfin le bill contre les presses qui ne ram-
pent pas servilement aux pieds de certains officiers publics; \"Oll;d la, protection que doit 3 la
cour la société du corps de laquelle on prétend que le grand juré a &té tiré.

En parlant de la composition du grand juré, ce n'est pas a dire que tous ses membres
soient de la méme trempe ; la partialité et été trop visible; je me flatte seulement que la seule
inspection de leurs noms peut exciter de grand soupgons a ce sujet.

[Here follows a Translation of the above Extract.]

We have seen that the Attorney General laid before the Grand Jury Bills of Indictment for
libel, to wit, two against MM. Waller and Duvernay, the forme'r being editor and the latter
printer of the Canadian Spectator, and one against Mr. Lane, printer of the Spectateur Cana-
dien, and that the majority of the Jury found these Bills true. As th_e sole remark to be made,
I refer to the composition of the Jury, and declare that it is the first time to my knowledge that
a Court of Justice, instead of inspiring in all the citizens confidence and security, has appeared
on the contrary to inspire alarm for the liberty and property of the indiv_iduals in gengral, for
whose protection it must be supposed to have been constituted. 'I'he B.lll found against the
editors of the papers which are not the supporters of arbitrary power, is certainly worthy of
the other proceedings of a Court which, instead of occupying itself according to constant usage,
and as pointed out in the charge of his honour Judge Reid, in delivering the gaol crowded with
brigands, incendiaries and murderers, selected almost exclusively, as the objects of its labours,
during a session of fifteen days, offences of a much inferior description, such as riots, assaults
and batteries, and mere misdemeanors, before which, in fine, were dragged for political offences,
persons who had already been acquitted by a Jury of their country, or other persons who were
not even in custody when this Court was constituted. The Bills for perjury found at the in-
stance of the Attorney General, against persons who had been acquitted at the last term of
the Court of King’s Bench ; the Bills for riot, and assault and battery; against a number of the
electors of the West Ward of Montreal, whereas the last Grand Jury had found a Bill against
two only for rescue, that is, for rescuing a person out of the hands of a constable; the accusa-
tion against Mr. Jacques Viger for not having executed an order of the Magistrates, which he
was prevented from executin%, in consequence of a supersedeas granted by several other of the
Magistrates :—finally, the Bill against t(.}‘le presses which do not servilely crouch at the feet of
certain public officers. This is the kind of protection for which the society from which the
Grand Jury, it is pretended was drawn, is indebted. In speaking of the composition of the
Grand Jury, we do not mean to say that all the members of it were of the same cast; such
partiality would have been too evident. I only persuade myself that the mere inspection of
their names is sufficient to excite strong suspicions on this head.

_ Les Membres.du juré ont été bien loin d’étre unanimes sur les accusations d’une nature
politique; plusieurs d’entr’eux auraient rougi de servir d’instrumens 3 la persécution; on dit
méme que quelques-uns dont les opinions politiques auraient pu les égarer, ont été frappés de
la nature des offenses qu'on soumettait  cette cour; ont dit aussi que dans I'affaire des jour-
naux, quatorze seulement des vingt-trois jurés, ont été d’accord sur un des bills; qu'un des
Me,:_mbres de la minorité a exposé a ses confréres d’une maniére ferme et lumineuse, le danger
qu'il y aurait, pour eux d’agir par ressentiment et par passion.

[Here follows a Translation of the above Extract.]

The members of the Jury were far from being unanimous on the accusations of a potitical
nature; several of them would l.lave blushed at being made the instrument of persecutibti ; itis
even said that some whose political opinions might have led them astray, were struck with the
nature of the offences brought before that Court; it is also said that in the affair of the Jour-
nals, fourteen only out of twenty-three Jurors concurred in opinion on ove of these Bills; that
one of the members of the minority explained to his colleagues, in a firm and luiinous manner,
the danger they would incur by acting under the influence of resentment and passion.
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No. 17.

Copy of a Lelter from JaMEs STuaRT, Esquire, to the Right Honourable Lord Viscount
Goderich, &c. &c.

London, 8, Dover Street, 22nd October, 1831.
My Lorb,

Within these few days past, I have received from Canada several affidavits, relating to
two of the charges of the Assembly, against me; which, though strictly speaking, not
necessary for my justification, cannot but be deemed satisfactory, in the consideration of
these charges; and I beg leave, therefore, to transmit copies of them, herewith, to your
Lordship. Among them are the affidavits of Samuel Gale, Esquire, late chairman of the
Court of Quarter Sessions for the District of Montreal, of John Delisle, Esquire, Clerk of
the Peace, and also Clerk of the Crown for the same District, and of Thomas Andrew
Turner, Esquire, Foreman of the Grand Jury,in March, 1830, whose presentment is referred
to in the Proceedings of the Assembly. The affidavits of these respectable individuals,
whom I had no opportunity of seeing previous to my departure from Canada, have been
made by them, of their own accord, from a sense of justice, and a regard for truth. They
contain details, with which the official duties of these gentlemen, connected with those of
the Attorney General, made them particularly acquainted; and, while they confirm my
statement, the truth of which is well known to persons at all conversant with the proceed-
ings of the Criminal Courts in Lower Canada, they disprove in fofo, and in minute par-
ticulars, the second charge of the Assembly, grounded on the evidence of Mr. Jacques
Viger.

®The two other affidavits herewith transmitted relate to the fifth charge of the
Assembly. In my answer to this charge, it is stated, that no private prosecutor ever
required me to institute the prosecutions for perjury, for the non-institution of which I am
held culpable; and also, that one of the charges for perjury, alluded to by the Assembly,
was made against a voter, who had voted without taking any oath whatever. Both these
are singular facts, and are now accounted for, by the disclosures made in these two affidavits ;
by which it appears that the persons, by whom the charges in question were made, being all
of them of low condition in life, were conveyed to an island lying in the River St. Lawrence,
between William Henry and Berthier, where they were made drunk; and that while they
were in a state of intoxication, disqualifying them for taking an oath, a Justice of the Peace,
who had been sent for to the contiguous mainland (Berthier) for this purpose, arrived on the
island, and swore them to the Depositions, which were subsequently sent to me, to ground
prosecutions for perjury. With a knowledge of these facts, it ceases to be a_matter of
surprise, that a voter, who had taken no oath at all, should have been charged with perjury
by a drunken man deprived of his reason, and that no private prosecutor would incur the
responsibility of acting on depositions thus taken.

I have the honour to be, with the greatest respect,
My Lord,
Your Lordship’s most obedient, humble servant,

(Signed) J. STUART.

To the Right Honourable Lord Viscount GODERICH,
&e. &e. &e.

No. 18.

Affidavit of SAMUEL GALE, Esquire, late Chairman _of the Court of Quarter Sessions of the
Peace for the District of Montreal, in Lower Canada.

PROVINCE OF LOWER CANADA.

DisTRICT of{TO wit:
MONTREAL. §

SAMUEL GALE, of Montreal, in the said district, Esquire, Advocate, being duly

sworn, deposeth and saith, that he was appointed one of His Majesty’s JlII{stices of the
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: ions, i r the said district of Montreal
Peace, and Cha‘fnlr\l/?n of t:z Ct(ﬁ?:szgg l:;gﬁ: Shf;g);s(ilgr?gdtaoenty-four, or about that time;
in the m'omhdot dizsi(}:]l’la(:‘ﬂe the duties of the said office, as well as the duty of Police Ma-
and contiuer &2 id di trict, until the month of October now last past, with the exception of
gIStra'tP;lfo: t}l;?nfta lsevealrsltzxgn’ months, during which he was absent ona mission, on behalf of
ahpeEO c?xtia:'e Government of Lower Canada, and during which another person was ap-
g t fle to perform the duties of the said office. And the De.ponent.further saith, that,
gglcr(l)riling tg the practice which Prevailfed dgring’ the said period (if;‘ txmﬁ. as %eg as pre-
viously, it was his duty to transmit to_Hxs Majesty’s At'tomey General for ﬁ e sal ro'vu'xcei
residing at Quebec, in the said Province, th? depositions a.md’ papers rfg attllr:g tqdcalomu!a
roceedings to be carried on in His Majesty's Court of King’s Bench for the S?l lls(tlnct
of Montreal : and such depositions and papers, 1t was usual and customary to forwar hto
the said Attorney General, some days befove the opening of the said Court, in order that
the said Attorney General might prepare the necessary Indictments, and give the requisite
directions for the subpcenaing of the witnesses in support of the proceedings to be grounded
on the said depositions and papers. And the Deponent further saith, that this course was
pursued, as well before as after the appointment of James S_tuart, Esquire, to the said
office of the Attorney General. And the Deponent further saith, that among the depo-
sitions and papers so transmitted to the Attorney General, it has been the practice to
include depositions and papers relating to petty larcenies and misdemeanors, of which
persons in custody have been accused, and proceedings for such offences in these cases hav?,
during the period aforesaid, been carried on by the Attorney General in His Majesty’s
said Court of King’s Bench; and the Deponent believes that the same practice has ob-
tained for a great number of years past, in t}}e said district. And the I_)epgnent further
saith, that having perused the evidence ascribed to Jean _Dehsle,‘Esqulre, in the second
Report of Grievances of the House of Assembly of the sz.ud Provx_nce of Lower' Canada,
and therein appearing to have been given before the sa}q Committee, on the e:lghteenth
day of February last, this Deponent saith, that the depositions and papers relatmg‘to the
indictments therein-mentioned to have been preferred against Fran%ns Eourne], Thomas
Pebble, Jean Baptiste Bloudin, Pierre and Timothé Guerin, Jean Baptiste Fournel, and
Richard M‘Ginnes, and David Codey, and also against Charles Charpenter, were, to the
best of his recollection and belief, transmitted, together with the recognizances of such of
the witnesses as had been bound over, to the said James Stuart, as such Attorney General,
in the usual and accustomed manner, in order that he might prepare Indictments, and
carry on proceedings on the same, in His Majesty’s said Court of King’s Bench, for the
offences specified in the said evidence of the said Jean Delisle. And having also perused
the evidence ascribed to Jacques Viger, Esquire, in the said second report of the said
Committee of Grievances, and therein appearing to have been given, before the said
Committee, on the twenty-third day of February last, this Deponent further saith, ac-
cording to the best of his recollection and belief, derived from his having acted in his
capacity aforesaid, that the several indictments whereof mention is made, in the said last-
mentioned evidence, and which, it is therein stated, were preferred against the individuals
therein named, were framed and drawn up, upon or in consequence of depositions and
papers, which, in the usual and accustomed manner before mentioned, had been transmitted
to the said Attorney General (James Stuart), in order that he might ground proceedings
on the same ; and that the said James Stuart, in the several cases mentioned in the evi-
dence of the said Jean Delisle and Jacques Viger, preferred Indictments, and carried on
proceedings against the several individuals therein named, in His Majesty’s said Court of
King’s Bench, in the usual manner, and as this Deponent is of opinion would have been
done by his competent predecessors in office, under all the circumstances.

And this Deponent further saith, that, during his continuance in the office of Chair-
man of the Quarter Sessions, he endeavoured to cause various larcenies and offences of the
minor descriptions, mentioned in the evidence of the said Jean Delisle and Jacques Viger,
to be prosecuted before the Court of Quarter Sessions, and gave directions to that effect to
the Clerk of the Peace; but that the said Clerk of the Peace, Jean Delisle, Esq., repre-
sented to this Deponent, that he had heretofore made disbursements in subpeenaing wit-
nesses, and other proceedings, on behalf of Government, before the said Court, for ‘?vhich
he had long and vainly solicited payment, as there were no funds appropriated for the
payment of such process, and the allowance of witnesses, before the Court of Quarter
Sessions, and that it could not be expected that he, the said clerk, was personally to incur
the losses and expense attendant upon such prosecutions, nor was he inclined, from his
own funds, to make the disbursements. That this Deponent conceived the said clerk to
have just reasons for his conduct, and hath a knowledge that many bills of indictment for
crimes could not be found, nor when found, proceeded upon in the said Court of Quarter
Sessions, for want of funds to pay the expenses and allowances to witnesses; and that
when the accused were in confinement for such crimes, there was often no alternative, but
either to discharge them, without trial, or to bring their cases before the said Court of
King’s Bench, for whose proceedings funds were provided, applicable to the payment of
the expenses and allowances to witnesses ; and that, in the opinion of this Deponent, the said
Attorney General would have been culpable, and it might have been made a charg’e against
him, for the neglect of duty, and the established practice of his predecessors in office, had
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he omitted to bring before the Grand Jury and the said Court of King’s Bench the bills

of indictment, the bringing of which is now, by some persons, endeavoured to be perverted
into malversation_or ascribed to improper motives.

(Signed) SAML. GALE.
Sworn before me, at Montreal aforesaid,
this 30th July, 1831.
(Signed) JS. REID, J. K. B. Montreal.

True Copy, J. STUART.

No. 19.

Apidarit of Jonx DrvisLy, Esquire, Clerk of the Peace for the District of Montreal, Lower

Canada.

DISTRICT OF LOWER CANADA.

DistrICT OF
MoxNTREAL.

JOHN DELISLE, of the City of Montreal, in the Province of Lower Canada,
Esquire, maketh oath and saith, that he hath been, since the wonth of September, one
thousand eight hundred and fourteen, and continues to be, clerk of the peace in and for
the said District of Montreal, and hath been, during six years now last past, and continues
to be clerk of the crown in and for the said District. And the Deponent further saith,
that, in the whole course of the said periods, during which the Deponent hath been clerk
of the peace and clerk of the crown as aforesaid, one uniform practice has prevailed with
respect to prosecutions for petty larcenies and misdemeanors, in His Majesty’s Court of
King’s Bench for the said District, by the Attorney General, or other crown officer, charged
with the conducting of criminal prosecutions; according to which practice, prosecutions for the
said offences have been carried on by the said Attorney or Crown officer, in His Majesty’s said
Court of King’s Bench, in cases in which the persons accused of the said offences have been in
custody ; the said Court of King’s Bench being a Court of General Gaol Delivery for the said
District. And the Deponent further saith, that, since James Stuart, Esquire, His Majesty’s
Attorney General for this Province, assumed the duties of that office, no deviation whatever
has taken place in the said practice; the same course having been pursued by the said
James Stuart, in carrying on criminal prosecutions, in His Majesty’s said court, as was
pursued by his predecessors in office, during the periods aforesaid ; and in no instance, to the
knowledge of the Deponent, has any one prosecution been carried on by the said James
Stuart, in His Majesty’s said Court of King’s Bench, which, he beheves‘, would not, under
like circumstances, have been carried on by the predecessors of the said James Stuart, in
the said office of Attorney General. And the Deponent further saith, that, according to
the practice which has prevailed during the periods aforesaid, the depositions and papers
on which prosecutions have been carried on by the Attorney General, in His Majesty’s said
Court of King’s Bench, have been forwarded to him, by the chalrman of the Q}xarter Sessxgns
and the Clerk of the Peace, in order that such prosecutions.mlght k{e carried on by h}m.
And the Deponent has no knowledge of any criminal prosecutions having been ever carried
on by the said James Stuart, in His Majesty’s said court, the depositions and papers in
relation to which were not forwarded to him, for that purpose, as aforesaid. And the
Deponent further saith, that the circumstance \yhlch has in many instances Prevented the
carrying on of prosecutions for Petty Larceny, in th.e Court of Quarter Sessians, pas been
the want of pecuniary means to pay for the subppenalpg of, and the allowance to witnesses ;
and this, in reality, has been, in this Deponent’s opinion, the impediment in the way of
prosecutions for such offences, in that court, and has rendered necessary the prosecution of
them, in the Court of King’s Bench. And the Deponent further 'salth, that, in the evidence
ascribed to the Deponent, in the second Report of the Committee of Grievances of the
Assembly of this Province, and which ev1der}ce is therein statied to have been given on t_he
18th February last, an error has been committed in representing the Deponent to have said,
that fines were paid by him into the hands of the Attorney General; W}lereas,_lngtead of
the Attorney General, it should have been stated, that such fines were paid by him into the
hands of the Receiver General of the Province.

(Signed) JOHN DELISLE.
Sworn before me at Montreal, this
30tk July, 1831.

(Signed) J. REID, C. J. K. B,, Montreal.
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No. 20.

Affidavit of Tomas ANDREW TURNER, Esquire, Foreman of the Grand Jury for the District
of Montreal, in the Term of the Court of King’s Bench for that District, held in March

1830.
PROVINCE OF LOWER CANADA.

DISTRICT OF
MONTREAL.

THOMAS ANDREW TURNER, of Montreal, in the District of Montreal, being
duly sworn, deposeth and saith as follows :—I have resided in Montreal, in the said District,
for more than thirty years, during twenty years of which period, I have, upon an average,
served about once a-year as a Grand Juror in the Criminal Court of King’s Bench, and
also in the Courts of Oyer and Terminer and General Gaol Delivery for the said District.
From the opportunities afforded me in this respect, I have a knowledge, that, during
the period aforesaid, Bills of Indictment have been laid before the Grand Juries of
the said Courts, by the respective Crown Officers prosecuting for the Crown, for Petty
Larcenies, Misdemeanors, and other offences cognizable in the Court of Quarter Sessions.
I have observed no variation from the usual practice, in this respect, since James Stuart,
Esquire, has filled the office of Attorney General.—I do believe that Bills of Indict-
ment for Petty Larcenies, Misdemeanors, and such other offences, have generally been
laid before the Grand Juries of the said Courts, against persons who were in custody, for
I observed that they were generally arraigned in the dock, with the prisoners actually
detained in gaol, and tried shortly after having been arraigned. It has also happened
occasionally, that persons accused of such minor offences have been indicted before said
Grand Juries, from the circumstance of their having been bound over to appear at the said

Courts.

I have acted as one of His Majesty’s Justices of the Peace for the said district, for
about nine years, and in such capacity have frequently sat in the Court of Quarter Sessions
for the said district.—From my experience, in the last mentioned Court, I am enabled to
say, that no provision was made for the expense of prosecuting, in the said Court of Quarter
Sessions, petty larcenies and offences of the above-mentioned description, and no fund set
apart to pay the necessary expenses and allowances to witnesses; and that such offences
must have been committed with impunity, unless the persons accused had been indicted in
the said Court of King’s Bench, or Court of Oyer and Terminer and general Gaol delivery
This was found to be such an evil, that, in the term of the said Court of King’s Bencl;
holden in March 1830, the Grand Jury, in the presentment which they made, at the close
of: the Court, complained of it, in the following terms, which are a true ext;act from the
said presentment:—¢ The Grand Jury further present, that, during the present term, a
¢ number of bills of indictment have been laid before them, for petty offences, which might
‘ have been (tried) in the Quarter Sessions, in the months of October and J’ anuary lagt ”
I was foreman of the said Grand Jury, by whom that presentment was made, and as such I
can safely say, that by what is contained in the foregoing extract, it was by no means
intended to cast the least reflection upon James Stuart, Esquire, who then filled the office
of At.torney-General, but that the object of the Grand J ury was solely to direct the
?}:tentl(()ln t(i)f :hfg (u:rioverpnlllen:) to the }:lractice that had so long obtained in that respect, to

e en at funds might be provided for facilitati i
before the said Court O?Quartell') Sessions. clltating the prosecution of such offences,

(Signed) THO. A. TURNER.

Sworn before me at Montreal, this
9th day of August, 1831.

(Signed) = GEORGE PYKE, J.K. B.
True Copy, J. STUART.
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No. 21.
A ﬁdavit of MicHEL LAFLEUR, of Sorel, labourer.
PROVINCE OF LOWER CANADA.

DisTRICT DE
MoNTREAL.

MICHEL LAFLEUR de Sorel, autrement appellé William Henry, dit district,
Journalier, agé de vingt sept ans, aprés serment prété sur les Saints Evangiles, depose et
dit comme suit :—Je demeure & Sorel, depuis douze ans. En mil huit cent vingt sept au mois
de Juillet, il y eut une election au dit lieu de Sorel, trés contestée entre James Stuart,
Ecuier, Procureur-General pour la dite province, et Wolfred Nelson, Ecuyer, Médecin.
Cette election étoit pour choisir 'un ou Iautre, pour servir comme membre du parlement
provincial.—Lors de cette election, je travaillois pour Louis Marcoux, qui demeuroit alors
a Sorel, comme marchand, et qui reste maintenant 3 Yamaska, au méme district. Depuis
cette election, j’ai continué & travailler pour lui, jusques dans le mois d’Octobre de la méme
année. Vers la fin d’Adut de cette année, pendant que j’étois occupé a décharger une
barge pour lui, le dit Louis Marcoux m’envoya chercher, et me demanda si je voulois amener
un de mes hommes avec moi, et le traverser lui et d’autres personnes, a 'Isle d’'un nommé
Morrison, qui étoit une des Isles dependant de la paroisse de Berthier, situ¢e de Pautre
c6té du fleuve Saint Laurent, et presque vis-3-vis du dit Bourg de Sorel.—Viens, viens, avec
moi, dit-il, tu gagneras plus, et je mettrai deux hommes a ta place, et a celle de celui que
tu aménes avec toi. La-dessus, je lui dis que j'irois, et je me suis en consequence rendu
chez lui, avec un de mes hommes. Ayant vi partir de chez le dit Marcoux, le nommé Joseph
Allard de Sorel, scieur de long, avec une cruche, je m’attendois bien qu’il alloit chercher
du Rum, chez le nommé Crebassa. Quelque tems aprés son depart, je fus au devant du dit
Joseph Allard; l'ayant rencontré a-peu-prés a moitié chemin sur son retour chez le dit
Marcoux, nous avons bfi 2 méme la cruche, chacun i sa soif. Cette cruche pouvoit tenir
environ un galon et demi, et me paroissoit pleine ou presque pleine de Hwm. Arrivés chez
Marcoux, celui-ci a fait préparer une chaloupe, et a fait embarquer sur icelle plusieurs
personnes: entre ceux qui se jout embarqués sur la dite chaloupe, 4 la requisition du dit
Marcoux, étoient les personnes suivantes, savoir, Joseph Allard, Gonzague Rouleau, Jean
Crébassa, Noél Guillot, Antoine Hus dit Cournoyer, Pierre Bouage, ct le nommé Des Jar-
dins. Je ne me rappelle pas des autres, si toutefois il y en avoit; mais Mr. Marcoux ¢toit
un du nombre. Quand je suis parti de Sorel, j’étois un peu pris de boisson, mais assez bien
en état pour gouverner la chaloupe, que je crois avoir gouverné comme il convenoit, puisque
je l'ai conduite & I'lsle appartenante a2 un nommé Morrison, laquelle est une des Isles de
Berthier susdit. Je me rappelle trés bien qu’en partant de Sorel, le nommé Joseph Allard,
dont jai parlé, étoit dans la chaloupe. Dans le cours de la traversée de Sorel 4 cette Isle
de Berthier, j’ai bi du Rum que je croyois venir de la cruche en question. Arrivé a I'Isle
en question ; que I'on disoit &tre I'Isle de Monsr. Morrison, je ne me rappelle pas au juste
si jai bi et mangé: il y avoit de quoi faire P'un et Vautre. J’ai senti que ma raison étoit
bien affoiblie; elle ne I'étoit cependant pas assez pour m'empécher de me rappeller de ce
qui s’y est passé, pourvii que ce fiit quelque chose qui me frappat, mais je sais que ma
raison étoit trop affoiblie, pour pouvoir me servir de guide dans mes actions. Cette Isle
ot nous debarquames, appellée I'Isle de Monsr. Morrison, étoit separée d’avec la terre ferme,
par un chenal d’environ quinze arpens. Pendant que j*étois dans l’état que je viens de
mentionner, l'on fit chercher & Berthier Monsieur Joseph Douaire Bondy, qui étoit alors
un juge de paix. Ce monsieur est venu dans I'Isle en question, et m’a fait préter serment,
sur une deposition contre un nommé Fontaine, qui avoit voté pour le dit J ames Stuart,
Ecuyer, je me rappelle bien du fait. Mais je sais bien que je n’étois pas en état, sur la
part que je pouvois pretendre en paradis d’appeller Dieu a temoin de la verité de ce que
je disois. Je nétois seulement pas en étoit de faire un marché, ou de contracter avec
quelqu’un pour une entreprise. Je me rappelle trés bien que le dit Monsieur Douaire m’a
fait faire serment. Suivant mon opinion le dit Joseph Allard qui étoit dans la dite Isle avec
nous étoit dans un état pire que le mien, et incapable de pouvoir se rappeller le lendemain
de ce quiil pouvoit faire alors. Le Deposant declare que cette Deposition lui ayant été
1ug, elle contient la verité. Lecture faite, dit de plus qu’il ne sait signer.

Sa
(Signé) MICHEL x LAFLEUR.
Marque.

Assermenté devant moi ce 27e jour de Juillct, une
huit cent trente et un s cette Deposition ayant cte par
moi-méme préalablement lué au dit Deposant.

(Signé) PETER M‘GILL, J. P.

True Copy, J. STUART.
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No. 22..
Affidavit of WiLLiam M‘LEAN, of Sorel, Boatman.
PROVINCE OF LOWER CANADA.

DISTRICT OF }
MONTREAL.

WILLIAM M‘LEAN, of Sorel, otherwise called William Henry, in.the said District,
Boatman, being duly sworn on the Holy Evangelists, deposeth and saith as follows,
to wit:—

1 have lived at Sorel aforesaid, for about fifteen years. In the m.onth of July, one
thousand eight hundred and twenty-seven, there was a contested election there between
James Stuart, Esquire, Attorney General for the said Province, and Wolfred Nelson,
Esquire, physician. In the month of August following, it might be about the fifteenth or
twentieth, Louis Marcoux, then residing at Sorel aforesaid, but now‘resxdmg at a place
called Yamaska, merchant, told me that he wished me to assist in ferrying or crossing some
eight or twelve persons, to one of the islands belonging to Berthier, on the opposite shore
of the River St. Lawrence, and said that he would pay me for my trouble. I went with
Mr. Marcoux to his house, where I found eight or a dozen persons. A boat was prepared,
some bread and butter was put on board, together with a jar capable of containing about
a gallon and a half, and which contained rum. We all got on board, Mr. Marcoux being
with us. I was one of those who rowed the boat, and Joseph Allard steered her. We
put ashore upon one of the Berthier Islands called Morrison’s Island. On our arrival
Mr. Marcoux told us to eat and drink, while he would be going to Berthier, that is, the
village of Berthier: he did not tell us for what purpose. We were there at about the
distance of a mile from the said village. After an absence of about an hour or an hour
and a half, Mr. Marcoux returned, with a Justice of the Peace, whose name I did not
know, nor do I know it now. While Mr. Marcoux was absent, we did nothing but eat
and drink. I observed that the others were drinking too much, and resolved to keep
myself sober; I therefore drank but little. By the time Mr. Marcoux returned, they were
all tipsy, except myself; some of them were very tipsy. Soon after the return of Mr.
Marcoux, he inquired of us what we knew about certain persons who had voted for the
said James Stuart, at the said election. The said Justice of the Peace swore us upon a
Bible or book, which had a crucifix tied to it. After we were sworn, a man of the name
of Kimber, who had crossed over from Sorel aforesaid before us, began to write. I sup-
pose that he was writing what we said. I can swear positively that one Joseph Allard and
one Michel Lafleur were on the island with me, and were sworn by the Justice of the Peace
above mentioned. Joseph Allard appeared to me to he very tipsy: Michel Lafleur was
not so far gone. Mr. Marcoux, Mr. Crebassa, who was one of the party, Mr. Kimber,
and myself, were the only sober persons of those who had left Sorel with me: the others
appeared to me tipsy, some more tipsy than the others. From what I could perceive of
my companions, there were none of them sufficiently sober to make a bargain, or enter
into any kind of contract, or comprehend the nature of an oath. After we were sworn we
returned to Sorel. I received from Mr. Marcoux fifteen pence. What I swore to on the
island was, that [ was present when a man of the name of Thompson of Sorel had sold his
lot and premises to Mrs. Kittson, reserving to himself the enjoyment and use of it during
his life. I also swore there, that a Mrs. Hunes had, to my knowledge, made a deed of
gift to one Joseph Bernier of one lot of land situate at Sorel, with a reservation for her
children, and of the other lot of land which she had adjacent thereunto. In consideration
of the said deed of gift, the said Joseph Bernier was to support her during her life. Such
were the facts, which I swore to. I know not how Mr. Kimber wrote them down. I

*declare that I cannot write or sign my name. ’

Hi.
(Signed) 7ILLIAM x M‘LEAN.
Mark.

Sworn to before me, this 1st day of August
1831, at Montreal, in the said Distr'iyct{th%e-’

going having been by myself first duly read to
the said WiLLIAM M‘LE{/&N.f o y
(Signed) JOS. SHUTER, J. P.

True Copy, J. STUART.

- LONDON :
THOMAS DAVIBON, LOMBARD-STREET, WHITEFRIARS.
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